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1 We have got
you covered 99

In a world shaped by constant change and unforeseen challenges, our non-life insurance company stands as
a resilient fortress, ready to shield individuals and businesses from life's unpredictable twists. At the heart of
our mission lies a simple yet profound commitment, encapsulated in our slogan: "We’ve got you covered."
These words resonate far beyond mere marketing—they embaody the very essence of aur purpose: to provide
unwavering protection and peace of mind in the face of uncertainty.

Imagine a tapestry of protection woven with threads tailored not only for individuals but also for the diverse
needs of businesses. Our coverage extends beyond homes and personal possessions; it encompasses the
intricate workings of companies, recognizing the unique risks they face. From safeguarding commercial
properties against unexpected disasters to providing liability protection for businesses navigating a dynamic
marketplace, our insurance solutions are designed to fortify the resilience of enterprises.

For businesses relying on a fleet of vehicles, our commitment to coverage means more than just insuring
against accidents. It involves anticipating the intricacies of a mobile workforce and offering solutions that go
beyond vehicular mishaps to ensure seamless operations. We understand that a company's success is often
intertwined with the reliability of its transportation, and our insurance plans are crafted to keep businesses
moving forward with confidence.

The safeguarding of valuable assets extends to the realm of businesses as well. From high-tech equipment to
crucial inventory, our insurance solutions create a safety net, protecting against theft, damage, or loss. We
recognize the integral role these assets play in the operational continuity of businesses, and our commitment
is to provide tailored coverage that secures not just possessions but the very foundation of enterprises.

Our company eperates with a profound sense of responsibility in navigating the complexities of business risk
management. We go beyond merely mitigating potential losses; we strive to empower businesses with
knowledge. Through transparent communication, risk assessments, and educational resources, we aim to
demystify the intricacies of insurance, enabling companies to make informed decisions that align with their
unique challenges and aspirations.

In essence, our slogan, "We've got you covered, " transcends individual concerns to envelop the diverse needs
of businesses. As you navigate the dynamic landscape of uncertainties, our dedicated team is here to provide
not just insurance but a partnership that fortifies enterprises against the unexpected. Rest assured, with us
as your trusted ally, both individuals and businesses are not just covered—they are empowered to face the
uncertainties of tomorrow with confidence.
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Letter of

lransmitta

To

Esteemed Members;

The Bangladesh Securities and Exchanges Commission;
The Registrar of Joint Stock Companies & Firms;

The Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited;

The Chittagong Stock Exchange Limited;

Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA);

Subject: Annual Report for the year ended 31st December 2024 of Crystal Insurance PLC.

Dear Sir/Madam (s),

We are very pleased to enclose herewith a copy of the Annual Report containing Director's
Report, Auditors’ Report along with Audited Financial Statements for the year ended 31st
December, 2024 with notes for your kind record.

Thank you

Faithfully yours,
On behalf of Crystal Insurance PLC

A Se

M Mahfuzur Rahman FCA
Company secretary
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Date: February 24, 2025

cry-tal Insurance PLC
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Notice of the 25" Annual General Meeting.

Notice is hereby given that the 25" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Shareholders of
Crystal Insurance PLC will be held on Sunday, March 23, 2025 at 11:30 a.m. by using hybrid
system: I.e. combination of physical presence at Holiday Inn Dhaka City Center, 23, Shahid
Tajuddin Ahmed Sharani, Tejgaon, Dhaka and using Digital Platform link http://crystalinsurance.
bdvirtualagm.com to transact the following businesses:

AGENDA

1. To receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year
ended 31st December 2024 and the Directors Report and the Auditors report thereon.

To approve Dividend for the year ended 31st December 2024,

To elect Directors in terms of the relevant provision of Articles of Association.

To appoint the Statutory Auditors for the year 2025 and to fix their remuneration.

To appoint Compliance Auditors for the year 2025 in order to issue the Certificate on
Compliance of Corporate governance.

By order of the Board of Directors

AnSE

(M Mahfuzur Rahman FCA)

Company Secretary

Hnnuaf Report 2024 09
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Notes:-

e 2" March, 2025 shall be considered as the 'Record Date' for entitlement of cash dividend.

s Pursuant to the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission’s (BSEC) Letter MNo.
BSEC/ICAD/SRIC/2024/318/09 dated January 16, 2024; the AGM will be held Hybrid System.

e Valued shareholders are requested to update their E-mails, addresses and the bank account
information (if required) in their respective BO/Folio accounts before 2nd March, 2025.

# Shareholders bearing BO numbers are advised to update their BO Account information by
inserting 12 digit e-TIN number through Depository Participants (DP) and Shareholders bearing
Folio numbers are requested to submit their 12 digits e-Tin to the Share Department of the
Company by 2™ March, 2025

e As per Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission Notification no.
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/208/Admin/81 dated 20th June 2018 the Soft Copy of the Annual
Report 2024 will be sent to the email addresses of the Members available in their BO Accounts
maintained with the Depository and will also be available in the company website at
www.ciplchd.com

e A Member entitled to attend and vote at the AGM may appoint a Proxy to attend and vote
instead, duly filled signed and stamped Proxy Form must be sent through email to the Share
Dept. at least 72 hours before commencement of the AGM at sharedept@ciplchd.com.

e Shareholders are requested to check and update their BOID's Bank A/c details along with
Routing Number to get Dividend online through BEFTN System.

e Depository Participants (DP)/Stock Brokers are requested to send the list of Margin Account
Holders based on Record Date, if any, within 19th March, 2025 to the Company’'s Registered
Office and Email- sharedept@ciplchd.com.

10 Snnuat Report 2024



ISLES
Responsibility Statement of our
Integrated Reporting

This integrated report is our concise message about how the strategy, governance, performance and
prospects of Crystal Insurance PLC lead to the value creation process over the short, medium and long
term from the perspective of its external environment.

Acknowledgement of Our Responsibility for Integrated Report- 2024

i) We acknowledge our responsibility to ensure the integrity of the Integrated Report 2024;

i) We acknowledge that we have applied our collective mind in the preparation and presentation of
this integrated report;

iii) This integrated report is presented in accordance with the International Framewaork;

iv) Our management and those charged with governance were directly involved in the process of
preparation and presentation of this integrated report; and

v) We are constantly on the lookout for further development of our integrated report in future.

Matters under Consideration
Considering the limited uptake of the Integrated Reporting Framework, the following factors have been
superseded (as and where applicable) in this integrated report:

o Conflict with local rules & regulations (e.g. Securities Laws, Companies Act, Tax & VAT rules etc.);
e Directors’ liability concerns;

¢ Inconsistency with the prevailing reporting approaches;

e Sign-off fatigue and additional reporting burden;

e Skepticism about the benefits provided by the statement;

e Contradiction with a principles-based approach; and

® PLC understanding of the term ‘collective mind’.

We are very pleased to publish the Integrated Report 2024 for a better understanding of our business
and to provide improved information to the users of this report. We also believe that our integrated
reporting enhances the way we think, plan and report.

Sincerely yours

At

(S M Shahidullah)
Chief Executive Officer

Hnmuaf Report 2024 11
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Credit Rating Status

CRYSTAL INSURANCE ACHIEVED
HIGHEST CREDIT RATING

Short Term Rating | ST-1

RATING EXPLANATION :

Crystal Insurance PLC has been rated by National Credit Ratings Lid. The Result of credit
rating In the long term "AAA" reflects highest quality with Lowest expectation of credit risk, short term

ST-1 refiects highest certainty of timely Payment and outiook-Stable.

12 Anmal Report 2024
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Vision
Our Vision is to reach at zenith point of providing the maost
economic and competitive services and hence achieving highest

VISION

Mission

Qur Mission is to provide prompt, efficient and personalized
services for maximum risk coverage of the insured, to provide
insurance coverage at the most competitive premium rates
ensuring maximum security, to promote Human Resource
development and professionalism in insurance business, to settle
insurance claims promptly. Crystal Insurance PLC. believes in the
guality of the deals struck rather than the quantity of it. With our
knowledge and expertise it is our commitment to the insuring
community to deliver them the highest standard of security and
professionalism.

Our Goal

corporate goal and Customer Satisfaction.

MISSION

Our goal is to be the top insurer in the Non-life insurance sector of the Country.

To achieve the goal we aim at:

& Maximizing Insurance Coverage at a Minimum Cost.
e Assessing and managing our business risk carefully.

o Establishing a long term relationship with our clients
and business partners built on our personalized service,
professional and trust.

& Maintaining strong relationship with a wide variety of
partners, like re-insurers, insurance brokers and so on.

® Responding quickly to new opportunities.

14
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Our Motto

“Economic Development through Risk
Minimization and Efficient Client Service”

Core Values

: Integrity
- Ve maintain the highest standands
of integrity
- e always Iy to do e Aght thing

Customers
e & Q3 L . We ahyays think about the impact on our
‘M ¢ i customer
. | - ‘Weoffer the best qualty and sendce
o - 'We provide innovative solution

e People
- We treal everyane egually, faify and with respect
- We communicate ogenly, honestly and prormpthy
WY - We pricrities safety

Quality
- ¥ e strive for quality in everything we do
- We continugusly iImgronse

Sunaal Report 2024
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Our Strategic Objectives

Underwriting

Profitahility
Customer
Engagement

Partnerships
and Alliances

Customer
Retention

Effective Risk
Maragement
System

Operational
Efficiency

Claims
Management

e Strategic i
Objectives

Customer
Awareness

Brand
Reputation

Resilience
Planning

Market
Expansion

Talent
Development

Innovation

Sustainability ~ Resulatory
Initiatives Compliance

16
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Prudent Conduct and Behavior

Employees need to behave sensibly at workplace not
only to gain appreciation and respect from others
but also to maintain a healthy work culture with
prudent conduct applied by CIPLC. One needs to
adhere to the rules and regulations of workplace.

Compliance with Laws, Rules and Regulations

Employees of Crystal Insurance PLC are expected to
comply with the laws, rules and regulations
governing the Organization's business vis-a-vis
regulatory bodies. No individual is expected to know
the details of all applicable laws, rules and
regulations, but individuals shall be knowledgeable
about specific laws, rules and regulations that apply
to their areas of duties and responsibility.

Conflicts of Interest

The conflict of interest is often a very strong hurdle
on the way of implementation of national integrity
strategy. When an employee thinks of his/her
personal interest from his/her official position, a
guestion of conflict of interest arises. The statute
allows him/her to serve his/her own gain, or interest
at the cost of employing institution or the state.

Cultural and ethnic diversity of its workforce. It shall
believe that creating a work environment that
enables to attract, retain and fully engage diverse
talents, leads to enhanced innovation and creativity
in the services of the organization.

Anti-Money Laundering

Crystal Insurance PLC shall not do business with drug
traffickers, money launderers and other criminals. It
shall formulate Anti Money Laundering Policy
following regulatory body’s (BFIU) guidelines to
enable all employees to follow the policy
meticulously. Employees shall exercise requisite
diligence in selecting those with customers/counter
parties while conducting business.

Sl Report 2024
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Code of Conduct

Workplace Environment

Energizing the workplace is one of the key factors of
any organization. All employees of the organization
are responsible to keep the workplace friendly,
congenial, transparent free from harassment &
corruption etc, and ensure the cohesiveness among
the colleagues.

Responsibility

Crystal Insurance PLC should preserve the lawful
benefits and interests of their shareholders;
understand and honor the customer needs, as well
as serve them indifferently, promptly and honestly
comply with the recognized /established legal
regulatory, as well as social/community norms,
customs and values.

Confidentiality

An employee shall not disclose official information
unless authorized by competent authority. He/she
shall protect the confidentiality and security of
customer information. Any information of govt.
agencies shall not be disclosed without prior
approval of competent authority. An employee shall
keep information about the purchase of goods or
services confidential. Price quoted, methods,
business policy etc. of the vendors should not be
disclosed.

Independency

At a workplace, expressing independence often
recognize to the freedom to make decisions, having
the autonomy to set some of work parameters,
being responsible for services and getting to use
creativity in how to do the job perform and CIPLC
make sure it.

Diversity
CIPLC shall respect all employees as unigue

individuals with fundamental human rights and
supports the

17
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Fraud, Theft or lllegal Activities

Employees shall be vigilant about the frauds, theft or
illegal activities and shall not engage in such
activities at any cost. If any such activity comes into
any employee’s notice, he/she shall immediately
report the same to his/her immediate superior/s or
management to protect the interest of the
organization. He/she shall act as a whistle blower
thereby.

Prohibition of Personal Investments and Insider Trading.

Employees and other representatives of Crystal
Insurance PLC are prohibited from partaking in
trading of publicly traded securities (including the
securities of their place of employment) for personal
gain [or for the gain of the members of their
household) if they possess material non-public
information about the security or the issuer.

18

Disciplinary Procedures and Actions.

Crystal Insurance PLC shall have a laid down
disciplinary procedure which is in compliance with
local laws and ensures fair treatment to employees.
They should ensure that the employees disciplinary
matters are judged fairly, transparently, consistently
and proportionately, using appropriate processes
and achieving fair outcomes,

Code of Conduct of CIPLC published in the Annual
Report in brief. If details please visit our website
www.ciplchd.com

Anmual Report 2024



Company Briefing

Crystal Insurance PLC (CIPLC) is a third generation private
sector non-life insurance Company which has established
itself as one of the leading non-life insurance companies in
Bangladesh with its dynamic leadership in Management
with specialized and significant expertise in serving
unparallel insurance services for traditional and
non-traditional risk underwriting. With a portfolio of broad
range of products, Crystal Insurance always works hard for
the clients to deliver innovative products and services while
maintaining a commitment to safety, security and
sustainability.

Crystal Insurance PLC (CIPLC) was incorporated in
Bangladesh as a Public Limited Company on 11 November
1998 under the Companies Act, 1994 and licensed under
the Insurance Act, 1938 in order to run all types of general
insurance business other than life insurance business. CIPLC
obtained certificate of commencement of business on 11
November 1999. CIPLC got registration from Controller of
Insurance on 12th June 2000. The name of the company has
been changed from Crystal Insurance Company Limited to
Crystal Insurance PLC on 28th August, 2024, Presently the
Company has been operating the business through 42
branches. The branches are located in different strategically
important areas of the Country.

Crystal Insurance PLC is a fastest growing general Insurance
in the private Insurance sector of Bangladesh. The Company
started its business operation in June, 2000. The authorized
capital of the Company is tk. 1,000,000,000 and Paid-up
Capital is tk. 440,000,000.
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Date of Incorporation Authorized Capital
1 | 4
11™ November, 1999 100 (One Hundred) Crore
Paid-up Capital Type of Organization
1
a4(Forty Four) Crore Mon Life Insurance

Company

Mature of Business

. |

Fire, Marine, Motor,

Number of Directors

. B

; 11 Directors
Miscellaneous etc.

Number of Shareholder Number of Branches
1992 as per CDBL 42 Branches

Number of employees

! |

310 (as on 31*
December, 2024)

Economic development
through risk minimization

Business Motto

. |

and efficient client
service.

20

Statutory Auditor

! |

Mahfel Huq & Co.
Chartered
Accountants
BGIC Tower

34, Topkhana Road,

Dhaka-1000

Provident Fund
Auditor

! |

Mahfel Hug & Co.
Chartered
Accountants

Independent
Scrutinizer

ESS & Partners

Private Limited

Rupsha Tower (6"
floor), Flat 6A, Road
17, Banani C/A,
Dhaka-1212

Compliance
professional

|

Jobair Satter & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Rupsha Tower (6™
floor), Flat 6A, Road 17,
Banani C/A, Dhaka-1212

Legal Advisors

!

Seik Golam Maksud
Maksud & Associates
Tropicana Tower
45, Topkhana Read
Dhalka-100

Credit Rating Agency

! |

National Credit Ratings
Limited
Pritom Zaman Amit
Tower, Level 8
37/2 Purana Paltan,
(Box Culvert Road)
Dhaka-1000

Anmual Report 2024
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Our Products And Services

Standard Fire Insurance Policy

Fire and allied perils Insurance Policy
House hold policy

Industrial All Risk Palicy

Property All Risk Policy

Power Plant Operational Package Insurance

* Marine Cargo Insurance Import/Export Policy
Marine Hull Insurance Comprehensive/TLO Policy

Motor Insurance Policy

Engineering|
Insurance

+ Machinery Breakdown Insurance (MBD)

+ Contractors All Risks Insurance (CAR)

Erection All Risks Insurance (EAR)

Contractors Plant & Machinery Insurance (CPM)
Deterioration of Stock Insurance (DOS)
Electronic Equipment Insurance (EEI)

* Boiler and Pressure Vessels Insurance (BPY)

* Ayiation Engineering Insurance

Miscellaneous
Insurance

e Cash in Transit Insurance

* Cash in Counter/Cash in Safe Insurance
* Maney Insurance

* Personal Accident Insurance

= Peoples Personal Accident Insurance

» All Risks Insurance

* Public Liability Insurance

* Burglary Insurance policy

» Comprehensive General Liability Insurance
» Fidelity Guarantee Insurance

* Safe Deposit Box (Bank Lockers)

* Hotel Owners All Risks Insurance

* Professional Indemnity Insurance

* Product Liability Insurance

* OMP Insurance

21



Branch Network

9

: Wymensingh
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Dhaka

DHAKA DIVISION
Total number of Branches

22

Total number of Branches

08

SYLHET DIVISION
Total number of Branch

02

_. Total number of Branches
{

RAJSHAHI DIVISION
Total number of Branch

02

RANGPUR DIVISION
Total number of Branches

9
oy 02
Rangpur

HAnnuaf Report 2024
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BARISHAL DIVISION
Total number of Branch

01

KHULMNA DIVISION
Total number of Branches

03

CHOTTOGRAM DIVISION

MYMENSINGH DIVISION

23
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Organogram of Crystal
Insurance PLC

Addl. Managing

Director

v

b

Head of Finance Head of Internal Head of
& Accounts Audit & Compliance Head Ot BOD S MIS Underwriting
¢ ¥ ¥ ¥
Cc t
Internal nurgizr: < Branches
Finance A.ccuqnts Audit & BCD & MIS N aan Business
Department Department Compliance Department Underwriting Underwriting
Department Department Department
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Chief Executive Officer

e

[

Head of Cliams

and Reinsurance

Reinsurance Claim
Department  Department

i

Head of IT

IT
Department

Head of Admin
and Estb.

+

HRM &
Admin

¥

Establishment
& Common
Service

Department Department
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Company
Secretary

Board &
Company <

Affairs
Department

Share
Department
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Sponsons' Name and their
Shareholding Position

Name No. of shares Percentage
Abdullah Al-Mahmud 4,400,000 10.00%
Abdullah Hasan 4,400,000 10.00%
AH.M. Mozammel Hogque 880,000 2.00%
Md. Tajul Islam 990,000 2.25%
Farhana Danesh 1,050,500 2.359%
Nabila Mahmud 2,200,000 5.00%
Soera Zahir 2,200,000 5.00%
Nusrat Mahmud 4,400,000 10.00%
Arafat Rashid 880,000 2.00%
Asoke Ranjan Kapuria 1,320,000 3.00%
Igbal Hasan Mahmood 412,500 0.94%
Sarah Hasein Mahmood 330,000 0.75%
Rubyat Tanveer Huda 297,000 0.68%
Syed Salman Hahib 586,666 1.33%
Sayeda Samina Mirza 293,334 0.67%
Suraya Akter Tondra 440,000 1.00%
Khalid Al Mamun 220,000 0.50%
Zarif Al Mamun 220,000 0.50%
Total 25,520,000 58.00%

726 Srmuaf &?fFPEJ'?'f 2024




Chairman
Mr. Abdullah Al-Mahmud

Directors

Mr. Abdullah Hasan

Mr. A.H.M Mozammel Hoque
Mr. Md. Tajul Islam

Ms. Farhana Danesh

Ms. Soera Zahir

Independent Directors

Mr. M.A. Latif Miah
Mr. Md. Rashedur Rahman

Sl Report 2024
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Board of Directors' and
Its composition

Ms. Nusrat Mahmud
Ms. Nabila Mahmud

Mr. Arafat Rashid

27



Directors' Shareholdings
in other companies

5l. No. MName of the Directors Companies Name

Mahin Apparels Limited
beiuiiat: Al o Hamid Fabrics Limited
4 MEBochlish AT m Hamid Weaving Mills Limited

Tazrian Weaving Mills Limited

Hamid Fabrics Limited
Hamid Weaving Mills Limited

2 Mr. Abdullah Hasan

Hamid Fabrics Limited
3 Mr. A.H.M Mozamimel Hogue
Hamid Weaving Mills Limited

4 Mr. Md. Tajul Islam N/A
5 Ms. Farhana Danesh Hamid Fabrics Limited
6 Ms. Soera Zahir N/A

Hamid Fabrics Limited
¥ Ms. Nusrat Mahmud

Hamid Weaving Mills Limited

8 Ms. Nabila Mahmud Hamid Fabrics Limited

Home Textiles Limited
Apex IT Solution Limited
9 Mr. Arafat Rashid Apex Foods Limited
Apex Accessories Limited

Apex Trade and Commerce Limited
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CES
Chairman’s Profile

Mr. Abdullah Al-Mahmud

Chairman

Abdullah Al Mahmud is a prominent business figure in Bangladesh, renowned for his remarkable
accomplishments and leadership in the RMG (Ready-Made Garments) and Textile industry. With over 30
years of experience, he has played a pivotal role in the growth and success of various companies under
the Mahin Group. He stands out as one of the pioneers and iconic figures for his visionary and
revolutionary ideas to challenge the textile industry in Bangladesh.

Mr. Mahmud's entrepreneurial journey began in 1992, following his graduation from the USA. Upon
returning to Bangladesh, he embarked on establishing his own business empire. In 1993, he founded
Mahin Apparels Limited, a specialized RMG unit focused on manufacturing bottom wears. Recognizing the
importance of backward linkage in the industry, he established Hamid Fabrics Limited in 1996, with its
Weaving Unit located in Shilmandi, Narsingdi.

In 2003, he further extended the operation by adding the most advanced Dyeing and Finishing machinery
from Germany to Hamid Fabrics Limited. Over the years, he continued to strengthen his position in the
sector by incorporating Hamid Weaving Mills Limited in 2007, Tazrian Weaving Mills Limited in 2013 and
Hamid Yarn Dying Mills Limited in 2016.

At present, Abdullah Al Mahmud is currently working on a state-of-the-art Spinning Mill (Hamid Spinning
Mills Ltd) that benefits from collaborative efforts between Germany and Japan. The mill is currently in the
process of being installed, and production is scheduled to commence by the beginning of 2024.

Hnnuaf Report 2024 29
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In addition to his role at Hamid Fabrics Limited, Mr. Mahmud holds several prominent positions in the
business community. He is the founding Chairman of Crystal Insurance PLC establish in 2000.At Present he
is also a valued member of the Executive Committee (EC) of Bangladesh Insurance Association (BIA) and
Executive Committee (EC) member of the Bangladesh Association of Publicly Listed Companies (BAPLC).
Previously, he served several times as a Director of the Bangladesh Garment Manufacturers and Exporters
Association (BGMEA) and also former Vice President of the Bangladesh Textile Mills Association (BTMA).

Throughout his career, Mr. Mahmud has received several accolades and recognitions for his outstanding
contributions to the country's economy. He held the prestigious CIP (Commercially Important Person)
status awarded by the Government of Bangladesh in several times. He also received several Awards from
Bangladesh Garment Manufacturers and Exporters Association (BGMEA) &Bangladesh Textile Mills
Association (BTMA). Furthermaore, he was honored with the KOR BAHADUR award by the National Board
of Revenue, highlighting his exemplary achievements in business.

He is an avid supporter of business forums and engages in social causes, reflecting his commitment to the
betterment of society. As a visionary entrepreneur, he continues to shape the industry's landscape while
actively participating in social initiatives that uplift the society at large. Mr. Mahmud is on the board of
directors of Jaflong Valley Boarding School in Sylhet, Bangladesh. His philanthropic efforts extend beyond
that. An avid supporter of the arts, he promotes local emerging artists through different programs both
inside and outside educational intuitions.

He is also a member of the prestigious Gulshan Club, Uttara Club, Army Golf Club, Gulshan Youth Club and
Gulshan Society.

30 Srmuaf ﬂepwf 2024
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Other Directors’ Profile

Mr. Md. Tajul Islam, Director

Mr. Md. Tajul Islam, Director of Crystal Insurance PLC comes of
a respectable Muslim family of Chandpur. He is an MBA from
Karachi University (1268). He is also an associate of the Institute
of Chartered Secretaries and Managers of Bangladesh. He has in
his credit mare than 46 years of experience in different sectors
of business.

Mr. A.H.M. Mozammel Hoque, Director

Mr. A.H.M. Mozammel Hoque, is one of the Directors of Crystal
Insurance PLC. He completed his Bachelor of Commerce degree
from Jagannath College in 1960. He has been actively involved
in the textile sector for more than 17 years. He was the Deputy
Chief Accountant in Bangladesh Jute Mills Corporation (BJIMC)
for 22 years after which he entered the RMG business in 1993,
Apart from being a founder director of CIPLC, Mr. Hoque is also
a founder Director of Hamid Weaving Mills Ltd. and Hamid
Fabrics Limited.

Mr. Mozammel also has got in his credit more than 46 years'
experience in different business areas. Since his involvement in
business, he dedicated himself towards control and
maintenance of accounts and finance. He oversees total
management operations for all companies he is involved with.
His guidance and supervision is ane of the main reasons behind
Mahin Group’s success.
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Mr. Abdullah Hassan, Director

Mr. Abdullah Hassan, is a founder Director of Crystal Insurance
PLC has been working in the RMG and Textile sector for more
than 33 years. Prior to CICL, he was the Head of operations in
Atlantic Garments in 1985, and eventually Mahin Apparels in
1993. He is a vibrant entrepreneur. His expertise and
experience have been vital for the enhancement and eventual
growth of the textile and garment division of Mahin Group. Mr.
Hassan is also a founder Director of Hamid Weaving Mills Ltd.
and Hamid Fabrics Ltd.

Mrs. Farhana Danesh, Director

Mrs. Farhana Danesh is a founder Director of Crystal Insurance
PLC comes of a respectable Muslim family of Cumilla. She is an
energetic and established business woman. She is one of the
Directors of Hamid Fabrics Ltd and Proprietor of Crystal
Packaging.
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Mrs. Nusrat Mahmud, Director

Mrs. Nusrat Mahmud is the Director of Crystal Insurance PLC.
She obtained Post Graduate from City University, London and
Graduation from Bentley College and has significant
4 contributions towards establishment and development of
Crystal Insurance PLC, Apart from being a director of Crystal
Insurance PLC she is also the Director of Hamid Fabrics Limited
and Hamid Weaving Mills Limited.

Mrs. Soera Zahir, Director

Mrs. Soera Zahir is one of the Director of Crystal Insurance PLC.
She played a pivotal role in the Company. She is associated with
various social, cultural & religious organizations. She has the
strong ethics having moral values,
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Ms. Nabila Mahmud, Director

Mabila Mahmud holds Masters of 5Science degree from
Northeastern University College of Professional Studies,
Boston, Massachusetts, USA. She has specialization in Corporate
& Organizational Communications with concentration in Human
Resources Management. Before that she gathered knowledge
in Human Resources, Organization behavior, Human Rights,
Small Business Management from Regent Business School in
UK. And she attended Suffolk University Sawyer Business
School, Boston, Massachusetts, USA to do her Bachelors of
Science and studied global business and management.

Before going abroad for academic purpose, Ms. Nabila gathered
experience through jobs with International School, Dhaka and
lago Foundation (an NGO). She served in the accounts
department of Hamid Fabrics Ltd (HFL) and practically
contributed in reducing labour costs of the HFL through
developing smooth expense tracking system. She is also the
Director of Hamid Fabrics Limited.

Mr. Arafat Rashid, Director

Mr. Arafat Rashid Undergraduate from Brunel University,
Uxbridge, London is the Director of Crystal Insurance PLC. He is
Managing Director of Home Textiles Limited and Apex IT
Solution Limited. He is also Director of Apex Green Foods
Agro-based Limited. Besides, he is Shareholder of Apex
Accessories Limited and Apex Trade & Commerce Limited.
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Mr. Abdul Latif Miah
Independent Director

Mr. Abdul Latif Miah obtained Bachelor of Arts (BA) from
university of Dhaka and LLB from Central Law College, Dhaka is
an Independent Director of Crystal Insurance PLC. He was
engaged Sadharan Bima Coporation in various position and
designation for thirty two years. He was chief Executive officer
of Crystal Insurance PLC. He is a Bir-Muktijoddha and associated
with various social, cultural & religious organizations.

Mr. Md. Rashedur Rahman
Independent Director

Md. Rashedur Rahman obtained Masters of Business
Administration {MBA) from USA and University of Dhaka. He
completed Entrepreneurship Development Program (EDP) from
Massachusetts Institute of Technology (MIT), USA. He was a
consultant for the International Finance Corporation (IFC) of the
World Bank Group (WBG) for the period October 2013 to June
2019. He received significant number of awards for his excellent
performance. He took the challenge of engaging in cross
functional assignment, which refined his expertise in various
areas.
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Board Committees

Mr. Md. Tajul Islam, Director Chairman
Mr. A H.M.Mozammel Hogue, Director Member
Ms. Farhana Danesh, Director Member
. P Ms. Soera Zahir, Director Member
Mr. Arafat Rashid, Director Member
Ms. Mabkila Mahmud, Director Member
5 M Shahidullah, CEC Member
Mr. M. Mahfuzur Rahman FCA, Company Secretary Member Secretary
Mr. Md. Rashedur Rahman, Independeant Director Chairman
Mr. Md. Tajul Islam, Director Member
Mr. A H.M.Mozammel Hoque, Director Member
5 S i Ms. Farhana Danesh, Director Member
Ms. Soera Zahir, Director Member
Ms. Nabila Mahmud, Director Member
Mr. M. Mahfuzur Rahman FCA, Company Secretary Member Secretary
Mr. Md. Tajul Islam, Director Chairman
Mr. A.H.M.Mozammel Hogue, Director Memiber
Ms. Farhana Danesh, Director Member
3 Claims Committee Ms. Soera Zahir, Director Member
Ms. Nabila Mahmud, Director Member
5 M Shahiduliah, CEQ Member
M. Mahfuzur Rahman FCA, Company Secretary Member Secretary
Mr. Md. Rashedur Rahman, Independent Director Chairman
Mr. A.H.M.Mozammel Hogue, Director Member
Nomination & Mr. Md Tajt.JI Islam, Din.ecmr- @ember
4|  Remuneration | Ws. Farhana Danesh, Director Member
Committee Ms. Soera Zahir, Director Member
M. Mahfuzur Rahman FCA, Company Secretary Member Secretary
Employee’s Mr. Arafat Rashid, Director Chairman
5 Pf:ﬁ:imm Mr. S M Shahidullah, CEO Vice Chairman
Committee Mr. Tajul Islam, Director Member
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Mrs. Soera Zahir, Director

Member

Mr. Md. Saydul Islam, DMD and CFO

Member Secretary

Mr. M. Mahfuzur Rahman FCA, R:;Te?::t;:fve
Addl. MD & Company Secretary of Officer
Member of
Mr. Md. Abul Fazol, Asst. MD (Claims & RI) Representative of
Office Staff
Mr. Tajul Islam, Director Chairman
Mr. S M Shahidullah, CEO Vice Chairman
Mr. Arafat Rashid, Director WMember
Gratuity Committee Mrs. Soera Zahir, Director Member
Mr. Md. Saydul Islam, DMD & CFO Member Secretary
Mr. M. Mahfuzur Rahman FCA , Member of
Addl. MD & Company Secretary Representative
of Officer
Member of
Mr. Md. Abul Fazol, Asst. MID (Claims & RI) Representative of
Office Staff
Mr. A.H.M.Mozammel Hogue, Director Chairman
Mr. Md. Tajul Islam, Director Member
Ms. Farhana Danesh, Director Member
Investment Ms. Nusrat Mahmud, Director Member
i Ms. Soera Zahir, Director Member
Mis. Mabila Mahmud, Director Member
Mr. S M Shahidullah, CEO Member
Mr. M. Mahfuzur Rahman FCA, Company Secretary Member Secretary
Mr. A.H.M.Mozammel Hogue, Director Chairman
Mr. Md. Tajul Islam, Director Member
Ms. Farhana Danesh, Director Member
Risk Manz_ugement Ms. Soera Zahir, Director Member
Committes
Ms. Mabila Mahmud, Director Member
Mr. Md. Rashedur Rahman, Independent Director Member
Mr. M, Mahfuzur Rahman FCA, Company Secretary Member Secretary
Mr. A.H.M . Mozammel Hogue, Director Chairman
Policyholder Ms. Farhana Danesh, Director Member
Pmﬂ'&' Ms. Soera Zahir, Director Member
E::P'::{::: Ms. Nabifa Mahmud, Director Member
Mr. Md. Rashedur Rahman, Independent Director Member
Mr. M. Mahfuzur Rahman FCA, Company Secretary Member Secretary
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Our Mangement Team

Chief Executive Officer

Mr. S M Shahidullah
Chief Executive Officer

Mr. S M Shahidullah is the Chief Executive Officer of Crystal Insurance PLC. He has an impressive
career spanning over 35 years in the Bangladeshi insurance industry. His journey began on July 1st,
1989 at Eastland Insurance Company Limited, where he rose through the ranks to become Assistant
Manager and Head of the Claims Department.

In December 1996, Shahidullah moved to Northern General Insurance Company Limited, joining as
Senior Manager and Head of Claims and Re-Insurance. Over the next six years, he climbed the ladder
to Senior Vice President.

Seeking new challenges, Mr. Shahidullah joined Sonar Bangla Insurance Limited in July 2003 as Deputy
General Manager and Head of Claims, Re-Insurance and Branch Control Department. His tenure there
lasted until March 2005. Crystal Insurance PLC then welcomed Mr. Shahidullah as Senior Vice
President, again heading the Claims, Re-Insurance and Branch Control departments. Demonstrating
his leadership skills, he earned a promotion to Executive Vice President in July 2008, taking on the
additional responsibility of Company Secretary and leading the Administration and Establishment
department. His dedication and expertise were further recognized in 2012 with his promotion to
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Deputy Managing Director. Mr. Shahidullah's rise continued in 2018 when he became Additional
Managing Director, effectively acting as the company's second-in-command. After that, On August
17, 2023, Mr. Shahidullah began serving as Acting CEQ. Subsequently, the Board of Directors
officially appeinted him as the CEO which has approved by the Insurance Development and
Regulatory Authority.

Beyond his professional experience, Mr. Shahidullah holds a Bachelor of Science with Honors in
Geography (1986) and a Master of Science in Geography (1987) from Jagannath University College
under the University of Dhaka. He went on to achieve the Associate of Bangladesh Insurance
Academy (ABIA) designation in 1994,

Mr. Shahidullah demonstrates a continuous pursuit of knowledge. He is currently enrolled with the
Chartered Insurance Institute, UK, and has cbtained the CERT Cll (UK) gualification. He actively
contributes to the insurance industry by serving as a part-time lecturer at the Bangladesh Insurance
Academy and the Bangladesh Insurance Association. Additionally, he holds the positions of
Treasurer for both the Association of Insurance Executives (AIE) and the Bangladesh Insurance
Diploma Association (BIDA). His commitment extends to participating in various insurance seminars
and workshops.

Mr. Shahidullah is involved in various social activities. He is the Founding President of the Bagdi High
School Old Students' Welfare Fund, President of the Grand Christy Welfare Association and General
Secretary of the Somaj Kallyan Songstha. He is also a member of governing bodies and committees
including the Bagdi High School Governing Body, the Khilkhet Jame Mosgue Governing Body, the
Kurmitela High School Eidgah Ground Management Committee and a life member of the Center for
Geographers and Uttara Sector 14 Welfare Society. He is the Executive Member of Baitul Aman Jame
Meosgue, Uttara Dhaka. He is also a member of the Rotary Club of Uttara.

In essence, Mr. 5 M Shahidullah's career trajectory embodies a remarkable ascent through the
ranks of the Bangladeshi insurance industry, marked by a dedication to both professional
excellence and the advancement of the field.
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M. Mahfuzur Rahman FCA, Cert Cll (UK)
Additional Managing Director &
Company Secretary

Mr. Md. Saydul Islam
Deputy Managing Director &
Chief Financial Officer

40

Company Secretary

Mr. M. Mahfuzur Rahman FCA has been an integral part of
Crystal Insurance PLC since September 2007. Before joining
the company, he served as Manager of Finance & Accounts at
Maziat Sweaters and T.5.R. Fashion & Design Limited.

Mr. Mahfuz is a distinguished academic achiever, earning a
Master's degree with First Class honors and securing 7th place
in order of merit during his B.Com studies at Dhaka City
College. Professionally, he is a Fellow Member of The
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh (ICAB) and
Associate Member of the Bangladesh Insurance Academy
(BIA). Additionally, he is a Member of the Chartered Insurance
Institute in the United Kingdom.

Throughout his career, Mr. Mahfuz has enhanced his expertise
through various trainings on financial management, financial
reporting, corporate governance, secretarial practices and tax
& VAT regulations. Currently, he serves as the Additional
Managing Director and Company Secretary; Head of HR,
Administration & Establishment of Crystal Insurance PLC,
where he continues to make significant contributions to the
company’s growth and success.

Chief Financial Officer

Mr. Md. Saydul Islam, M.Com. (Management), serves as the
Chief Financial Officer and Deputy Managing Director (F&A) at
Crystal Insurance PLC, where he also head of the BCD & MIS
Department. He joined the company in November 2007, bringing
with him a wealth of experience and expertlise in the insurance
sector.

Before his tenure at Crystal Insurance, Mr. Islam held the position
of Deputy Manager (F&A) at Desh General Insurance Co. Ltd.
from August 15, 2004, to November 28, 2007. Prior to that, he
served as Senior Executive Officer (F&A) at Republic Insurance
Company Ltd. from July 1, 2000, to August 14, 2004, and began
his career as an Officer (F&A) at Eastemn Insurance Co. Ltd.,
where he worked from March 15, 1995, to June 30, 2000.

In addition to his professional achievements, Mr. Islam is actively
involved in various socio-cultural organizations and activities,
reflecting his deep commitment to community engagement. With
decades of experience In the insurance industry, he has become a
prominent figure, inspiring others with his dedication and success.

Anrual Report 2024



T %%L

Mr. Md. Mahbub Hasan, Assistant Managing Director and
Head of Underwriting, has been serving the company since
December 30, 2021. Before joining this Company, he built a
distinguished career across several leading insurance
companies, including Federal Insurance Company Limited,
Agrani Insurance Company Limited, Rupali Insurance Company
Limited. Pioneer Insurance Company Limited, City Insurance
Company Limited, and Purabi General Insurance Company
Limited.

He holds a postgraduate degree in Management from the
University of Dhaka and earned a professional certification, the

Diploma in General Insurance (ABIA), from the Bangladesh
Insurance Academy in 1997.

Mr. Md. Mahbub Hasan
Assistant Managing Director &
Head of Underwriting Department

With 31 years of extensive experience in underwriting,
reinsurance, claims management, and all aspects of risk
investigation, assessment, and acceptance, Mr. Hasan is a
seasoned professional dedicated to driving excellence in the
insurance sector.

Mr. Md. Abul Fazol, M. Com {Accounting) is Asst. MD & Head
of Claims & Reinsurance Department has been serving this
Company since 31st December 2015. Prior to joining this
Company he worked in Provati insurance Company Limited as
Assistant General Manager; Claims & Reinsurance Department
from January 2013 to 30th December, 2015, Sonar Bangla
insurance Company Limited as Manager in Claims &
Reinsurance Department from January, 2010 to December
2012 and Dhaka insurance Limited in the Claims & Reinsurance
Department from 16.01.2004 to December, 2009,

Mr. Md. Abul Fazol
Assistant Managing Director &
Head of Claims & Reinsurance
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Shourav Chandra Bhadra
AVP & In-Charge
Audit & Compliance Department

Shourav Chandra Bhadra is a highly accomplished
professional with a stellar academic background and extensive
experence in the field of audit and accounting. He has
consistently excelled academically, garnering several awards
and accolades throughout his educational journey. Shourav's
academic achievements include obtaining 1200 marks out of
1700 in the ICAB's exams. Furthermore, he earmned an MBA
and BBA in Accounting with a commendable CGPA. In
addition to his academic achievements, Shourav has actively
pursued professional development opportunities, completing
the Chartered Accountant Course from Mahfel Hug & Co.,
Chartered Accountants a network firm of agn international. He
has also participated in various training programs and
workshops, Including workshops on ERP software and
different training and workshops held by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Bangladesh. With 8 vyears of
experience, including 3 years of articleship, Shourav has held
significant roles in reputable organizations. Currently holds the
position of Assistant Vice President and In-charge of the
Internal Audit and Compliance Department at Crystal
Insurance PLC.
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Branch In-Charges and
Senior Development Personnel.

MR. 5.A.M. SHAFIQUL HASAN Ms. MINU RAHMAN MRS, FERDAUS ARA CHOWDHURY (MINNAL
&r. Additional Managing Director and &r. Additional Managing Director and &r. Additional Managing Directar
In-Charge of Corporate Branch In-Charge of Dilkusha Branch Corpaorate Office

|
4

MR, MOHAMMED MOHASIN SIDDIQUEE MR. HAMIDUR RAHMAN HAIDER MR. MD. MAHMUD HASAN
Sr. Addl. Managing Director and Sr. Additional Managing Director, Addl. Managing Director
In-Charge of Agrabad Corporate Branch Corporate Office Corporate Office

MR. MD. ASHRAFUL ALAL CHOWDHURY MR. DEWAN MOSTAFIZUR RAHMAN MRS. JESMIN AKTER
Addl, Managing Director Additional Managing Director and Additional Managing Director
Mayabazar Branch In-Charge of Local Office Uittara Branch
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MR. MD. ZIAUR RAHMAN (MIRON) MR. GOUR HARI SAHA MRS, NAZMA AKHTER
Addl. MD & In-Charge Additional Managing Director Additional Managing Director and
Principal Branch Corporate Office In-Charge of Mallbagh Branch

MR. ZOAHERUL ISLAM TALUKDAR MR. MD. MIZANUR RAHMAN MR. MD. SHAHADAT HOSSAIN
Additional Managing Director and Additional Managing Director and Additional Managing Director and
In-Charge of Paltan Branch In-Charge of imamganj Branch In-Charge of VIP Road Branch

MR. MD. SHAHIDUL ALAM MR. MD. JULFIKAR ALI MR. MIZANUR RAHMAN
Addl. Managing Director and Additional Managing Director Additional Managing Director
In-Charge of Bogura Branch Corporate Office Principal Branch
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MR. MD. SHOWKAT ALI MR. ABDUL MALEK BEGH MR. MD. SAIFUL ISLAM CHOWDHURY
Deputy Managing Direclor and Deputy Managing Director and Deputy Managing Director
In-Charge of Babu Bazar Branch In-Charge of Lal Dighi Branch and In-Charge of Kishoreganj Branch

MR. MD. RUSTOM ALI RIPON MR. SYED NURUL BASHAR SHAHAZADI HABEBA SULTANA
Deputy Managing Director Deputy Managing Director and Deputy Managing Director and
and In-Charge of Jamalpur Branch In-Charge of Khatungon| Branch. In-Charge of Hatkhola Branch

MST. NARGIS PARVIN MRS. FARHANA RAHMAN MR. SYED MOSHFIQUR RAHMAN
Deputy Managing Director and Deputy Managing Director and Deputy Managing Director and
In-Charge of Elephant Road Branch In-Charge of Narsingdi Branch In-Charge of Rajuk Avenue Branch
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MR. YAMEEN YOUSUF KHAN ME. MD. ANWAR HOSSEN MR. MD. SAFIUDDIN AHMED

Deputy Managing Director Deputy Managing Director and Asst. M.D and
In-Charge of B.B. Avenue Branch In-Charge of Chandpur Branch

MR. SHAIFUL ISLAM MR. MD. WAHEDUL ISLAM MR. MD. NAZISUL HOQUE CHOWDHURY
Asst. MD Asst. MD and SEVP and In-Charge
Corporate Office In-Charge of Mirpur Branch of Dewan Hat Branch

MR. MD. ABDUS SOBUR MR. MD. SHAFIQUL ISLAM MR. MD. SHAH ALAM SHEIKH
Sr. Executive Vice President and Sr. Executive Vice President and SEVP and
In-Charge of Rangpur Branch In-Charge of Barishal Branch In-Charge of Bangshal Branch
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MRS. SAILA AHMED SILPI

Executive Vice Fresident and
In-Charge of Arambagh Branch

~

<
MR. SHARIF UDDIN

Executive Vice President and
In-Charge of Mymensingh Branch

MR. BIPUL ANANDA HALDER
Senlor Vice President and
In-Charge of Jashore Branch
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MR. MD. HAIDER ALI
Executive Vice President and
In-Charge of Khulna Branch

l _,.—\EA \

MR. MD. NUR ISLAM
Executive Vice President and
In-Charge of Dinajpur Branch
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-
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MR. MD. JOAHER ALI
Senior Vice President and
In-Charge of Pragati Sarani Branch
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MR. PRANESH CHANDRA BARDAN
Exacutive Vice President and
In-Charge of Moulvi Bazar Branch

~

MR. MOHAMMAD FAZLUR RAHMAN
EVP & In-Charge
Sylhet Branch

MR. KHANDAKER SHAHEEN
Vice President and
In-Charge of Uttara Branch
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MR. MD. ZAHID HOSSAIN KHAN MR. MD. ZIAUL ISLAM MR. MD. OMAR FAROQ
Vice President and VP & In-Charge Vice President and
In-Charge of Sadarghat Branch Rajshahi Branch In-Charge of Cumilla Branch

MR. MD, KAMRUL ALAM MR. MD. FARUK HOSSAIN
ar. Manager and In- Charge of Manager and
Jubilee Road Branch In-Charge of Kushtia Branch
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In the Neme of Almighty Allah,

Dear Shareholders,

Itis my immense pleasure and privilege to welcome
you to the 25th Annual General Meeting of Crystal
Insurance PLC. On behalf of the Board of Directors,
| am honored to present our Integrated Annual
Report and the audited financial statements for
the financial year ended 31st December 2024.

This meeting marks a significant milestone as we
celebrate 25 years of excellence in providing
insurance services. Over the vyears, Crystal
Insurance PLC has continued to grow and evolve,
standing resilient in the face of challenges and
committed to achieving sustainable growth.

In the year under review, we focused on accelerating
revenue growth, enhancing operational efficiency,
and prioritizing quality in every aspect of our
business. Key achievements include:

* Sustained growth in gross premium income,
driven by quality business and strategic
partnerships.

» Improved operational efficiency through robust
cost management and technology-driven
solutions.
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* Enhanced customer satisfaction with faster
and more efficient claims processing.

» Strengthened our governance framework to
ensure compliance with the regulations set by
the Insurance Development and Regulatory
Authority {IDRA) and other relevant authorities.

Crystal Insurance PLC's long-term strategy remains
focused on sustainability, innovation and excellence.
\We are committed to:

1. Enhancing client-centric solutions to ensure
insurance is viewed as a financial security tool,
not a burden.

2. Investing in digital transformation to deliver
seamless and efficient services.

3. Upholding ethical business practices by avoiding

unhealthy competition and maintaining
transparency in all operations.

4. Empowering our workforce to deliver
value-driven results through continuous

training and development.

We have also made significant progress in
strengthening our risk management practices,
aligning with international standards to safeguard
the interests of our clients and shareholders.
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| would like to thank all the regulatory authorities
i.e. The Insurance Development Regulatory
Authority (IDRA), The Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission (BSEC), Dhaka Stock
Exchange (DSE), Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE),
Bangladesh Bank (BB), Schedule Bank, Our Valued
Clients, Stockholders, Media and well-wisher for
their continuous support.

Special thanks to our external auditors for their
valuable insights and to the shareholders for their
unwavering trust and confidence in our vision.
Your support motivates us to strive for excellence
and continuous improvement.

My sincere gratitude goes to my colleagues on the
Board for their wisdom and counsel. | would like
to thank our management team for their resilience
and responsibilities in this difficult year. | look
forward to seeing you all next year and wish you
success in all your endeavors, | also put on record
my thanks to the leadership's different initiatives
adopted along with drive provided by the Chief
Executive Officer under the difficult circumstances
throughout the year.

| would like to express my sincere thanks to our
employees for their untiring efforts, dedication to

the company and devotion to their duty.

To all our stakeholders; thank you for your
unwavering support.
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As we embark on the next chapter, our ambition to
become Bangladesh's leading insurance services
provider. We are steadfast in our commitment to
delivering value to all stakeholders, fostering
innovation, and contributing to the nation’s
economic growth.

| look forward to seeing you all at our next Annual
General Meeting and wish you continued success
in all your endeavors. Together, let us propel
Crystal Insurance PLC to even greater heights.
Thank you for your unwavering support.

Sincerely,

Wttt

Abdullah Al Mahmud
Chairman
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Bismillahir-Rahmanir Rahim

Assalamualaikum,

Dear Shareholders,

| begin with gratitude to the Almighty Allah for His blessings and the opportunity to present to you the
Annual Report 2024 and the 25" Annual General Meeting of Crystal Insurance PLC. This year holds
special significance as we celebrate our Silver Jubilee, marking 25 years of excellence performance in
the insurance industry.

It is my immense pleasure to address you during this landmark year, as the leader of this esteemed
organization. Our success is the result of collective efforts, teamwork and dedication from every member
of the operational management team, employees and development staffs. We have made substantial
strides in achieving our business goals for 2024 and we are committed to continuing this journey of
success.

As we reflect on the past 25 years, we recagnize the growth and progress we have made, which was built
upon a foundation of strong teamwork and shared goals. We look forward to another 25 years of
sustainable growth and leadership in the industry.

From the beginning of the year, we tied with our plans, to progress business growth economically and
profitably by accomplishing responsible work socially and keeping lime environment by implementing our
policies and technology in the interest of the company. Professionalism and quality service track indicates
clients’ confidence and market image of the company. We have 42 branches and those are able to
undenwrite the insurance policy from any districts because our technology permit us for this wider facility.
By this time, the Company is able to create market image and goodwill in the industry.
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The confidence level of our business partners and clients is very high on the Company's operations.
Business growth of the Company is optimistic compared to previous years. All of you know how severe

the competition is in a small market like ours. Due to our market research, effective business model,

sincerity, hard work, transparency, corporate governance culture and accountability, we have been able to
bring an outstanding brand image in the market.

Therefore, this year has been recognized as a great successful year of Crystal Insurance PLC. In this
happy moment, | express imy heartfelt thanks and gratitude to all our valued clients, business partners, all
our regulatory bodies, honorable Members of the Board for giving me the opportunity to lead the
operations of the company with their marvelous support.

Compliance with IDRA and other regulators

Compliance to regulations introduced by "Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority (IDRA)" is our
top priority. It is our strength, which facilitates good corporate governance, and adequate service levels,
bringing sustainability. We also abide the regulations made by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission (BSEC), Dhaka Stock Exchange (DSE), Chittagong Stock Exchange (CSE) and Bangladesh
Bank (BB).

Our Business Perspectives

As you know that the clients are the key factors for a business organization that's why | have utilized our
existing skilled manpower, technology, products, facilities, equipment o deliver prompt and technically
efficient services to the valued clients. As CEO of the company, | worked hard to improve our position,
increase clients as well as to set a remarkable growth for the Company with an excellent improvement in
its profit earning.

Company’s Achievement
| take the opportunity to thank all the team members and members of the Board, especially the Chairman
to encourage us for promote business, without which our Company could not be able to reach the bright
position as noted below:

(Taka in million)

Particulars 2024 2023 Growth
Gross Premium 813.04 710.74 14.42%
Net Premium o61./9 476.36 17.92%
Interest Income 99.96 42.85 133.28%

Our Strategies

The above achievements depend on satisfying the clients and meeting market demands. A variety of
diversified and unique products is superior in the market in terms of risk management mechanism. Our
approach towards taking risk was calculative and we thought out of the basket. We continue to evaluate
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market demands and approached towards inventing new and socially acceptable products. We research
for improvement of existing products and try to get contemporary insurance solutions through our
research team. It is obvious that there is no alternative to market survey and investigation into clients’
demand. Our efficient Management Team meets frequently to identify problem and focus on using
problem tools. Our dynamic Board guides us evaluating employees' efficiency and facilities continuous
training to develop the professional and technical skills of the employees.

In untoward competition by the enormous procurers of various Insurance companies in the little
insurance business market of Bangladesh. We have taken strategies to grow slowly and make profit with
client satisfaction.

Our Strengths

Our main strength is our skilled and experienced human resources and qualified management team
including dynamic members on the Board. Besides, we have supportive corporate ethics are based on
good governance, statutory compliance and transparency.

Since commencement, the company has been trying to grow its capabilities by adopting dynamic
mechanisms, technologies, new products, experienced sales teams, new sales channels, new policies,
strategic planning and its implementation. All the success ceoines through our valued business clients to
take utmost care for settlement of claims which bring us to improve our position in the market.

Our Products

The enriched and diversified product portfolio has made Crystal Insurance PLC as a distinctive company
in comparison of other insurance companies in the industry. The Company already enhanced its regular
products i.e. marine, fire, burglary, engineering and various types of miscellaneous accidental insurance.

It is my firm conviction that we have taken up the right strategy in delivering the products and services
which are required by the clients and at the same time making the company profitable.

Contribution to the GDP growth through insurance business

The Insurance industry is contributing to the GDP growth by insurance businesses. The insurance
industry of Bangladesh is lagging far behind in contributing to the GDP of Bangladesh. But there are ample
opportunities to increase this contribution to bring it to a considerable percentage. The government may
take few strong decisions for increasing the scope of insurance industry making mandatory of some
insurance coverage, such as Health Insurance, Hajj and Umrah Insurance, Crop Insurance, etc. and
making mandatory of taking policy from the local insurers regarding the capital machineries used in the
projects under Public Private Partnership (PPP) and also obtaining Personal Accident policy for the
workers working in these projects.

Commitment and deliveries towards clients through different approach:

We are contemplating to make the Company into an institution of excellence and prominence. As such,
we are always moving forward with our commitment delivering diversified but exclusive products and
faster services to our valued clients engaging different approaches keeping in mind that clients’ happiness
is our ultimate aspiration.
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We are maintaining Company's focus on improving response time in customer services, the Company
realized the necessity of using updated technology in every possible area of service and accordingly,
developed information technelogy (IT) infrastructure, including efficient software solution based on entirely
online system which are designed to offer excellent customer services as well as prompt settlement of
claims.

In conclusion, it is my sincere belief that our nation and the global economy will stand at stable position. In
the upcoming years, with the best wishes from all of you, and sincere efforts put in by our colleagues, we
expect to do better than before.

| would like to express my sincere gratitude and appreciation to our respected business pariner clients and
the regulatory bodies.

| would also like to extend my warmest gratefulness to the management and employees for being the
backbone of the company. It was their unrelenting commitment, dedication and diligence throughout the
year that led the company to achieve solid all-round performance in 2024 that will always be remembered
in times to come,

Crystal Insurance PLC will execute long-term strategy successiully and meet the goals with the continuous
dedication and commitments for future affluence success,

Finally, | extend my sincere gratitude to the chairman of the Board of Directors of Crystal Insurance PLC
for his constant support and guidance at all times. My whole-hearted appreciation goes to our Directors,
shareholders, stakehclders, IDRA, SBC, BSEC, DSE, CSE, RJSC, BIA and valued clients for their
continued support and for keep faith on us

We are proud of you all and look forward to your continued support as we stride ahead to take Crystal
Insurance PLC forward as a leading non-life insurance Company in Bangladesh.

With warm regards,

Ads,

S M Shahidullah
Chief Executive Officer
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Future Prospect
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A widening Rapidly svolving An increasingly Climate risk C“HWFE_E“DE.-
trust gap in an eustamer nasds digital and and a focus on mllabmatt:r_n andd
uncertain world and preferences Al-driven world sustalnability competion

A widening trust gap in an uncertain world

In a world in which trust in businesses and governments is declining, trust in financial institutions is near an all-time
low. This erosion of trust, combined with lack of access and poor financial education, has made customers less likely
to buy insurance and has led to wider protection gaps and higher economic losses, Trust is fundamental for
insurance, and insurers clearly have a much bigger role to play in our society and economy than Just protecting
risks. Insurers will need bold, purpose-driven leadership and a clear strategy for addressing the trust challenge.

To strengthen trust in insurance, we are focusing on alleviating social injustice by creating a more inclusive social
and business environment. We are working to bridge access and coverage gaps by educating customers, creating
affordable products, such as micro insurance, and more effectively distributing them to reach more customers.

Rapidly evolving customer needs and preferences

Customers today aren’t simply looking for financial protection. They want personalised solutions presented in the
context of their day-to-day lives, be it while buying a car, planning for retirement or starting a business. Customers
expect insurers to go beyond their risk-transfer obligations and offer end-to-end solutions, covering risk prediction,
prevention and intervention, and to underpin those services with powerful digital and data capabilities.

To remain competitive, we must reimaging how we serve customers, provide advice, and capitalise on new
partnerships and Innovative engagements in order to create sustainable business models that drive growth and
enhance the customer experience,

An increasingly digital and Al-driven world

As digital innovation and adoption continue to fundamentally reshape the risk landscape, they also create new
opportunities for those insurers that can innovate at pace.

Automation and Al are already changing the way insurers interact with consumers across the value chain—from
product design to underwriting, pricing and claims. Recent advancements in the digitisation of client interactions
have included the growing use of so-called bionic advisers that integrate human and digital client experiences. The
digital world will reward those who can innovate and adapt quickly, and insurers need to be on the offense with the
right strategy, capabilities and urgency needed to win.

We have to embrace the digital future by leveraging the power of digital technologies, data and responsibie Al4 for
product offerings, pricing and customer engagement.

Climate risk and a focus on sustainability

The growing threat of climate change poses systemic physical and transition risks, with direct implications for the
insurance industry. To protect against and prevent these risks, insurers will need to develop a deeper
understanding of them in their portfolios, rebuild their risk models and pricing assumptions, create new climate
related products and services, and work with organizations to help them mitigate climate risks.

We can work with customers to better adapt to climate change by investing in more resilient infrastructure and
supply chains and providing advice to help clients address the physical and transition risks. In addition to advancing
environmental priorities at an operational level, we have a role to play as institutional investors. Even though we
may not have direct control over decisions made by investment firms, we must find a way to get their voices heard
on climate issues.

Convergence, collaboration and competition

A digital, data-rich econoray is allowing organizations to share and collzborate within and across industry
boundaries in new ways and create new value propositions for customers. Whether it's in mohility, financial
wellness, health, or small and medium-sized enterprise business needs, much investment is converging around
digital platforms such as ecosystems and marketplaces.
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Key Financial Highlights

5 Years Key Financial Data at a Glance

BDT in Million
Particulars 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Gross Premium 813.04 71074 | 684.85| 617.44| 598.42
Net Premium 561.79 47636 | 479.19 ] 39050| 388.11
Claim Paid 205.43 183.99 60.13 59.00 33.33
Underwriting Profit 154.21 142.16 | 13744 | 118.07| 14400
Profit Before Tax 187.72 146.01 | 130.24 134.70 149.92
Profit After Tax and WPPF 137.64 121.87 | 108.96 | 113.17| 11547
Investment Income and Other Income 94.60 64.26 52.45 73.90 56.44
Cash Flows from Operating Activities 96.79 69.66 | 243.19 | 111.82| 208.64
Total Asset 2,059.61 1,907.42 |11,838.05 | 1,598.50 | 1,454.30
Reserve and Surplus 689.50 63461 | 57243 | 511.89| 439.07
Balance of Funds and Accounts 227.36 192.50 | 192.87 | 15854 | 156.67
Shareholders' Equity/ Net Assets 1,129.50 103461 | 97243 | 911.89| 839.07
Total Liabilities 702.75 680.31 672.74 528.07 A58.57
Outstanding Claims 131.98 119.81 | 152.34 7.56 33.82
Investment in Shares and Bonds 286.66 309.09 | 264.59 246.21 140.44
FDR with Bank and Financial Institutions | 1,085.18 1,005.85 | 984.85| 79255| 604.40
No. of shares 44.00 40.00 40.00 40.00 40.00
Face Value (in BDT) 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
NAV Per Share 25.67 25.87 24.31 22.80 20.98
Earnings Per Share 3.13 3.05 2.2 2.83 4.58
12% Cash |10% Stock &
Dividend (Proposed)| 7% Cash 10% Cash | 10% Cash | 10% Cash

NAV Per Share and Earnings Per Share of the previous years have been presented as per the respective year's
NAV Per Share and Earnings Per Share

Business Growth |
Gross Premium 14.39% 3.78% | 10.92% 3.18% | 13.48%
Underwriti ng Profit B8.47% 3.44% | 16.40% | -18.01%| 44.01%
Total Asset 7.98% 3.77% | 14.99% 9.92% | 37.73%
58
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Vertical and Horizontal Analysis

Vertical Analysis of Financial Position

Amount in taka

Shareholders’ equity and liabilities
Shareholders’ equity
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

Reserve and surplus

Reserve for exceptional losses

Profit and loss appropriation account
Investment fluctuation fund

General reserve

Total shareholders equity

Liabilities and provisions

Balance of funds and accounts (A)

Fire insurance revenue account

Marine cargo insurance revenue account
Marine hull insurance revenue account
Motor insurance revenue account
Miscellaneous insurance revenue account

Liabilities (B)
Lease liability
Deposit premium
Deferred tax liability

Estimated liability in respect of Outstanding
claims whether due or intimated

Amounts due to other persons or bodies
carrying on insurance business

Sundry creditors

Unpaid/Unclaimed dividend

Provision for workers profit participation
fund (WPPF)

Total liabilities and provisions (A+B)

Total Shareholders’ equity and liabilities

Snmaaf Report 2024

21.36% 2097% 21.76% 25.02%  27.50%
33.48%  33.27% 31.14%  32.02%  30.19%
3264% | 30.98% | 28.28% | 2824% | 26.79%
229% | 3.44% | 273% | 317%| 2.76%
1.99% | -1.38% | -0.36% | 012% | 0.15%
0.53% | 052% | 049% | 050% | 0.48%
54.84% 54.24% 52.91% 57.05% 57.70%
11.04%  10.09%  10.49%  9.92% 10.77%
518% | 4.45% | 452% | 3.65%| 3.70%
446% | 4.09% | 481% | 461%| 501%
021% | 017%| 011% | 024% | 0.16%
064% | 0.56% | 066% | 1.08%| 1.45%
0.54% | 0.82% | 039% | 033%| 045%
3412% 35.67% 36.60% 33.04%  31.53%
100% | 098%| 064% | 058%| 0.56%
468% | 6.18% | 850% | 8.94% | 11.11%
0.02% | 0.09%| 025%| 033%| 0.42%
641% | 628% | 820% | 423%| 2.33%
13.09% | 14.45% | 11.64% | 1217% | 9.96%
846% | 7.17%| 6.80%| 621%| 6.57%
0.02% | 015% | 0.14% | 0.18% | 0.08%
0.43% | 0.36% | 0.34% | 040% | 0.49%
45.16% 45.76% 47.09% 42.95%  42.30%
100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
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Particulars

Properties and assets

Property, plant and equipments

Advance against land and office Space
Investments

Investment property

Right of use {(ROU) assets

Insurance stamps

Amount due from other persons or bodies
carrying on insurance business

Accrued interest

Sundry debtors (including advances, deposits,
and prepayments)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand

BO account balance

Cash at banks on STD accounts

Cash at banks on CD accounts

Fixed deposit receipt (FDR) with banks
and financial institutes

Total assets

Vertical Analysis of Financial Performance

Particulars

Gross premium

Reinsurance premium ceded

Net premium

Net re-insurance commission earned
Net premium reserve retained
Commission paid

Management expenses (revenue A/C)
Net claims incurred
Underwriting/gross profit
Investment income and other income
Management expenses (P & L A/C)
Workers' profit participation fund
Profit before tax

Income tax expense

Profit after tax
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47.31%  45.63% 44.13% 48.88% 45.41%
12.20% | 13.50% | 15.58% | 18.49% | 21.18%
3.65% 1.23% 0.65% 0.75% 0.83%
13.92% | 16.20% | 14.40% | 15.40% 9.66%
1.29% 1.51% 1.68% 2.07% 2.42%
1.11% 1.08% 0.66% 0.93% 1.08%
0.05% 0.08% 0.11% 0.08% 0.10%
7.36% 7.25% 6.88% 7.11% 7.01%
273% 0.77% 0.72% 1.02% 1.09%
5.02% 4.00% 3.46% 3.03% 2.04%
52.69% 54.37% 55.87% 51.12%  54.59%
0.00% 0.01% 0.01% 0.01% 0.01%
0.01% 0.01% 0.01% 0.02% 0.15%
1.36% 1.47% 1.17% 1.41% | 12.68%
0.52% 0.15% 1.10% 0.10% 0.20%
50.80% | 52.73% | 53.58% | 49.58% | 41.56%
100,00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
Amount in taka
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
100.00% | 100.00% | 100.00% | 100.00% | 100.00%
-30.90% | -32.98% | -30.03% | -36.76% | -35.14%
69.10% 67.02% 69.97% 63.24% 64.86%
7.05% | 6.77% 6.05% | 10.33% 7.44%
-429% | 005%| -5.01% | -0.30% 0.21%
-9.20% | -8.79% | -8.68% | -4.46% | -15.12%
-25.36% | -27.86% | -29.69% | -35.76% | -34.62%
-18.33% | -17.20% | -12.57% | -13.94% 1.30%
18.97%  20.00%  20.07% _ 19.12%  24.06%
11.64% | 9.04% 7.66% | 11.97% | 9.43%
751% | -850%| -8.71% | -9.28% | -8.44%
-1.10% | -098% .| -091%| -1.04% | -1.19% |
21.99% 19.57% 18.11%  20.78%  23.86%
5.06% | -242%| -2.20% | -2.45%| -4.57%
16.93% 17.15% 1591% 18.33%  19.29%
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Horizontal Analysis of Financial Position

Particulars

Shareholders' equity and liabilities
Shareholders' equity
Issued, subscribed and paid up capital

Reserve and surplus

Reserve for exceptional losses

Profit and loss appropriation account
Investment fluctuation fund

General reserve

Total shareholders equity

Liabilities and provisions

Balance of funds and accounts (A)

Fire insurance revenue account

Marine cargo insurance revenue account
Marine hull insurance revenue account
Motor insurance revenue account
Miscellaneous insurance revenue account

Liabilities (B)

Lease liability

Deposit premium

Deferred tax liability

Estimated liability in respect of Qutstanding
claims whether due or intimated
Amounts due to other persons or bodies
carrying on insurance business

Sundry creditors

Unpaid/Unclaimed dividend

Provision for workers profit participation
fund (WPPF)

Total liabilities and provisions (A+B)

Total Shareholders’ equity and liabilities
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Amount in ia_Ea

Hpe

10.00% 0.00%  0.00% 0.00% 66.67%
8.65% 10.86% 11.83%  16.59% 26.83%
13.76% | 13.67% | 15.17% | 15.85% 18.14%
-21.14% | 19.57% | -1.05% | 25.95% 63.29%
56.23% | 300.93% |-449.63% | -15.59% | -115.03%
10.00% | 11.11% | 12.50% | 14.29% 7.69%
9.17% 6.39%  6.64% 8.68% 43.14%
18.11%  -0.19% 21.66% 1.19% -0.79%
25.70% 2.19% | 42.44% 8.52% -15.09%
17.73% | -11.78% | 19.92% 1.15% -0.65%
35.24% | 63.38% | -48.79% | 64.06% -8.21%
23.08% | -11.95% | -29.26% | -17.98% 39.46%
-28.49% | 118.27% | 34.84% | -19.59% 86.33%
3.30% 1.12% 27.40%  15.16% 47.07%
11.01% | 59.35% | 25.80% | 13.82% | 100.00%
-18.15% | -24.57% | 9.36% | -11.58% | 132.14%
-80.34% | -61.49% | -11.68% | -14.20% 2.22%
10.15% | -21.35% | 125.49% | 99.79% 5.28%
-2,20% | 28.79% | 10.01% | 34.28% 9.09%
27.52% 9,38% | 25.89% 3.82% 46.51%
84.13% | 12.80% | -7.63% | 131.77% 31.30%
28.56% | 12.11% | -3.31% | -10.15% 41.73%
6.56% 0.83% 26.07% 11.60% 30.98%
7.98% 3.77%  14.99% 9,92% 37.73%
61
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Properties and assets

Property, plant, and equipments
Advance against land and office space
Investments

Investment property

Right of use (ROU) assets

Insurance stamps

Amount due from other persons or
bodies carrying on insurance business
Accrued interest

Sundry debtors (including advances,
deposits, and prepayments)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand

BO account balance

Cash at banks on STD accounts

Cash at banks on CD accounts

Fixed deposit receipt (FDR) with banks and
financial institutes

Total assets

Amount in taka

Horizontal Analysis of Financial Performance

Particulars

Gross premium

Reinsurance premium ceded

Net premium

MNet re-insurance commission earned
Net premium reserve retained
Commission paid

Management expenses (revenue A/C)
Net claims incurred
Underwriting/gross profit
Investment income and other income
Management expenses (P & L A/C)
Workers' profit participation fund
Profit before tax

Income tax expense

Profit after tax

b2

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
11.96% 7.30% 3.82% 18.33%  19.24%
-2.46% | -10.05% | -3.11% | -4.05% 3.11%
220.41% | 95.42% | 0.00%| 0.00% 0.00%
-7.26% 16.82% | 7.47% | 75.30% | 100.38%
-7.48% -6.96% | -6.51%| -6.11%| -5.76%
10.31% | 70.18% | -18.13% | -6.05% | 100.00%
41.47% | -19.46% | 49.25% | -10.10% | 16.40%
9.64% 9.25% | 11.36% | 11.49% | 17.28%
280.12% | 12.34% | -19.68% | 3.34% | -8.80%
35.60% | 19.99% | 31.31% | 63.24% | -1.29%
4.64% 0.99% 25.66%  2.92%  58.12%
4847% | -36.64% | 9.52% | 21.60% | -23.99%
50.07% | -53.81% | -9.42% | -88.90% | 2383.15%
-0.30% | 30.96% | -5.29% | -87.73% | 522.56%
265.62% | -85.56% 223.75% | -46.46% | 124.22%
4.03% 2.13% | 24.26% | 31.13% | 28.44%
7.98% 3.77% 14.99%  9.92%  37.73%

Amount in taka

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
14.39%| 3.78% | 10.92% | 3.18%| 13.48%
7.20%| 13.96% | -937%| 7.91%| 54.15%
17.93% -0.59% 22.71%  0.61% -0.71%
19.10%| 16.24% | -35.07% | 43.21%| 18.17%
-9503.51% | -101.08% |1738.88% |-250.58% | -103.48%
19.76%| 5.06% | 115.97% | -69.57%| 15.25%
4.12%| -2.60%| -7.90% | 6.56%| 52.28%

| 2196%| 42.01%| 0.00% {1209.85%| -109.90%
_ 8A47%  3.44%  16.40% -18.01%  44.01%
47.21%| 22.52% | -29.02% | 30.94%| 33.41%
112%| 1.27%| 4.16% | 13.36%| 38.35%
| _28.56%| 12.11% | -3.31% | -10.15%| 41.73% |
56% 12.11%  -3.31% -10.15%  41.73%
Egg.sﬁﬁ.l 13.95% | -0.20% | -44.70%] -10.62% |
12.94% 11.86% -3.73% -1.97% 64.54%
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B 25
Graphical and Pictorial Presentation

of Financial Data
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NET PREMIUM INCOME
(IN MILLION}

561.79
476.36
4749.19

390.50

3H8.11

CLAIMS PAID (IN
MILLION)

205.24
183.99

G0.13
50.00

r 33.33

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

UNDERWRITING PROFIT
(IN MILLION)
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137.44
144.00

118.07
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2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

INVESTMENT INCOME AND
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CASH FLOWS FROM NET OPERATING CASH
OPERATING ACTIVITIES FLOW PER SHARE
(IN MIQLLIDN}
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=
N

208.64
6.08

B9.66
111.82
2.20
1.74
.80

B o670

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
NAV PER SHARE EARNINGS PER SHARE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
DIVIDEND PER SHARE RETURN ON EQUITY

(IN%)

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

12.19
11.78
11.20
12.41
13.76

I .20
2023 N .70

2022 N 100
zoz1 N 100
2020 N 100

2024
(PROPOSED)

Hnnuaf Report 2024 65



Uy B

RETURN ON AVERAGE RETURN ON CAPITAL
ASSETS (IN%) ] EMPLOYED (IN%)
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
PRICE EARNING RATIO DIVIDEND YIELD (IN %)

27.93

B.61

1812
14.80
20.01
I 1
zozz: N -.o0
zoz1 N 17
zoz0 N -

(PROPOSED)

2022 N o=

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020

2024

STOCK PERFORMANCE IN DSE
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Current Ratio

2024 h 2.05

2023 | 2.22
2022 N 2.19
2021 |, 2 .34

2020 — 2.35

Quick Ratio

2024 _ 1.82

2023 D ] .() |

2022 . 1.99

2021 . .12

2020 — 2.12

Combined Ratio

2024 — 76.55%

2023 I :0.34%
2022 N 7:2.280%

2021 | 25.62%

2020 F 74.69%
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Ratio analysis

Quick Ratio

2020 [ 15

=

2023 . 2.01
2022 | 1.99
2021 |, 2.12

2020 — 2.12

Debt to total Assets Ratio

2024 _ 0.34

2023 | 0.36
2022 | 0.37
2021 N 0.33

2020 P 0.32

Assets Turnover

2024 — 0.39

2023 N 0.37
2022 N 0.37

2021 | .39

2020 — 0.41
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Gross Margin (%)

2024 — 18.97%

2023 | 20.00%
2022 | 20.07%
2021 | 19.12%

2020 — 24.06%

Net Profit (%)

2024 — 16.93%

pIERE R —————— | N U = T
2022 1 15.01%
2021 I 12.33%

2020 — 19.29%

Return on Equity

2024 — 12.19%

2023 | 11.78Y%
2022 | 11.20%
2021 |, 12.41%

2020 — 13.76%
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Operating Profit (%)

2024 ]— 11.45%
2023 ‘— 11.50%
2022 1— 11.36%
2021 N o550

2020 — 15.62%

EBITDA Margin (Earnings
before
interest, tax, depreciation &
amortisation)

2024 21.99%
2023 24.84%
2022 23.61%
2021 26.52%
2020 ] 29.74%

Return on Assets

2024 — 6.68%

2023 I G.3oY%
2022 I .00
2021 N 7.03%

2020 — 7.94%

SAnnuat Report 2024



Pt 5

Composition of Shareholding

No. of Shares

(Category of Shareholders. g —
Director and sponsor shareholders (3.01) 25,520,000 24,000,000
Institute 7.873.029 5,853,743
Foreign 14,444 10,000
General public 10,592,527 10,136,257
Grand Total 44,000,000 40,000,000

H Sponsors

B Institutions

H Foreign

1 General Public

Composition of Shareholding
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D5
Dividend Distribution Policy

Introduction

This Dividend Distribution Policy of Crystal Insurance PLC is framed by the compliance of Bangladesh Securities and
Exchange Commission’s Directive No. BSEC/CMRRCD/2021-386/3- dated, 14 January 2021, The Policy is aimed to
set out the criteria and parameters, which are the Board of Directors of the Company, shall take into consideration
at the time of recommendation for dividend.

Factors to be considered before declaration of Dividend
The Board of Directors of the Company will consider the following internal or external parameters while
recommending dividend:

Stock
of Earnings of Dividend Flow Position Market Reaction

Declaration/recommendation of Dividend

1. Interim Dividend

The Company shall notify the Exchange and the Commission in advance the date and time of its board of directars’
meeting specially called for consideration/adoption of its quarterly financial statements and for declaration of any
entitlement (interim dividend) for the shareholders.

2. Annual Dividend

The Company shall notify the Exchange and the Commission in advance the date and time of its Board of Directors’
meeting specially called for consideration/adoption of its annual audited financial statements and for declaration of
any entittement for the shareholders befare 7 (seven) days of holding such meeting.

Entitlement of Dividend:
Shareholders whose names shall appear in the Members Register of the Company or in the Depository Register of
CDBL on the ‘Record Date’ of the respective year's AGM will receive the entitled dividend.

Process of Distribution of Cash Dividend:

The cash dividend shall be paid directly to the bank account within 15 days and not more than 20 (thirty) days of the
date of approval by the shareholders in the AGM and the date of Board approval in the case of an interim dividend,
subject to compliance with BSEC or Bangladesh Bank or other regulatory authority circulars/directives from time to
time.
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Procedure of stock dividend distribution:
The stock dividend will be credited within 30 (thirty) days of approval, subject to regulatory clearance.

Process for settling unpaid dividends:

Unpaid or unclaimed cash dividends for less than three years from the declaration date shall be paid to
shareholders upon application and disbursed within the time period specified. In case of the cash and stock
dividend for more than three years of the declaration date shall be settled as per the instructions of the BSEC or
other regulatory authority from time to time.

Companies must
publish dividend
policy

Report disbursement
and unclaimed
dividends

Pt 5

Communicate

' R disbursement process
G7 with shareholders

Unclaimed cash

and stock dividends
to be kept in separate
account

2

Dividends unclaimed
for 3 years will go
to the market

After 3 years,
unclaimed dividends
will go to regulated

special fund for market

stabilisation

Tax matters:

Tax will be deducted at source as per applicable tax laws.
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B2 5
Summary Of Unpaid And
Unclaimed Dividends

Continued Dividend Unclaimed dividends are kept in a separate bank account and paid to the shareholder
after a successful claim. In accordance with the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission's
directive on "Dividend Distribution and management of Unpaid and Unclaimed Dividend", notification no.
BSEC/CMMRRCD/2021-386/03, dated January 14, 2021, the CIPLC continuing to maintain a Separate Bank
Account to hold an unclaimed Dividend for a period of 3 (three) years from the date of approval in AGM.
After the aforementioned time period has passed, any dividend that has not been claimed will be
transferred to the Capital Market Stabilization Fund (CMSF) established by the Bangladesh Securities
Exchange Commission. If a claim is made in the future, GDIC will lock into it and arrange to collect any
unpaid dividends and distribute them to the appropriate shareholders.

Unpaid and Unclaimed Dividend:

Dividend Redlaretion Unpaid Stock Unpaid Cash Number of
Year Dividend Dividend Shareholders
2021 10% Cash - 272,150.85 795
2022 10% Cash - 159,594.10 433
2023 10% Stock & 7% Cash - 34,517.68 75

**Our official website www.ciplcbd.com, has information on eligible shareholders for defail
unpaid/undistributed dividends.
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Going Concern Disclosure

Financial Statements are normally prepared on the assumption that an enterprise is a going concern and
will continue in operation for the foreseeable future. Hence, it is assumed that the enterprise has neither
the intention nor the need to liguidate or curtail materially the scale of its operations; if such an intention
or need exits, the financial statement may have to be prepared on a different basis and, if so, the basis
used is disclosed. On the other hand Listed Companies are required by BSEC to report on its ability to
continue as going concern. The Board of Directors of Crystal Insurance PLC has made annual assessment
about whether there exist material uncertainties which may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s
ability to continue as going concern, The director's assessment of whether the company is a going concern
involves making appropriate inquiries including review of budget, forecast, assumptions and future
outcome of inherent uncertainties in existence. The Directors are convinced from the following
indications, which give reasonable assurance as to company’s ability to continue as a going concern for the
foreseeable future.

Financial

Indications

» Positive net current assets

* Fixed term debt with realistic
renewal or repayment

= | ess reliance on short term
borrowing

« Continuous financial support
by lenders

» Positive operating cash
flows

* Positive key financial ratios

* Consistent payment of
dividends

* Credibility in payment of
obligations

* Performance growth

» Positive underwriting results
and trends
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Operating

Indications

* Mo key management
turnover

* Good business expansion

= Spread of business across
diverse clientele

» Good market reputation and
clients satisfaction

« Good Corporate
environment and employee
satisfaction

Other
Indications

* Maintenance of sufficient
capital base as required by
law

= Strong equity base

» Strang claim Paying Ability
(CPA)

= Anticipates no significant
change in legislation or
government polic
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Value Added Statement

A Value Added Statement is a financial statement that depicts wealth created by an organization and how
that wealth is distributed among various stakeholders, Value added to the company stood at BDT 505.96
million as on December 31, 2024 as against BDT 397.46 million in December 31, 2023.
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4.23%
9.43% 10.06%

m To Employees as remuneration

m To Government as Tax

» To shareholders as dividend

® Depreciation

m As Capital and revenue reserve

7.18%

® To Employees as remuneration

13.44%

E To Government as Tax

#= To shareholders as dividend

B Depreciation

Particulars 2023 % 2024 %

Gross Premium 710.74 813.04
Less: Re-Insurance Premium (234.37) (251.26)
Net Premium 476.36 561.79
Other Income 64.26 94.60
Total Income 540.63 B56.39
Less: Operating expenses excluding staff costs 143.16 150.42
and depreciation
Value Added 357.46 505.56
Distribution of Value Addition
To Employees as remuneration 140.26 35.29% 155.35 30.70%
To Government as Tax 16.80 4.23% 26.18 5.18%
To shareholders as dividend 40.00 10.06% 68.00 13.44%
Depreciation 37.49 9.43% 36.31 7.18%
As Capital and revenue reserve 162.91 40.99% 220.11 43.50%

397.46 | 100.00% 505.96 | 100.00%

2023 2024
35.29%
40.99% 43.50% 30.70%
5.18%

m As Capital and revenue reserve
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Market Value Added Statement

A company’s MVA is an indication of its capacity to increase shareholder value over time. A high MVA is
evidence of effective management and strong operational capabilities. A low MVA can mean the value of
management’s actions and investments is less than the value of the capital contributed by shareholders.
A negative MVA means the management's actions and investments have diminished and reversed the
value of capital contributed by shareholders.

Particulars Number of Share Value Per L EIRETERELER T

{in Million) IEEIELE)) Million)
Market Value 44 56.70 2,495
Book Value 44 10.00 440

Market Value Added Statement

M Book Value
M Market Value

Book Value Market Value
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Economic Value-Added Statement

In the context of Crystal Insurance PLC, the Economic Value Added (EVA) statement plays a
crucial role in evaluating the company's financial health and efficiency. To begin, the calculation
involves determining the Net Profit After Taxes (NPAT), providing a clear picture of the profitability
derived from core operations after adjusting for taxes. This step is vital in understanding the
operational success of Crystal Insurance PLC.

The next key aspect is the consideration of the Cost of Capital, a comprehensive measure that
includes both debt and equity components. The cost of debt encompasses the interest paid on
borrowings, currently, the company has no interest expenses, on the other hand, the cost of
equity represents the expected retum demanded by shareholders. By incorporating these
elements, the EVA formula (EVA = NPAT - (Capital * Cost of Capital)) assesses the economic
value generated by the company about the capital invested.

Interpreting the EVA for Crystal Insurance is significant for stakeholders. A positive EVA indicates
that the company is not only profitable but is also creating economic value that surpasses the cost
of its capital. This reflects efficient resource utilization and strategic operations, showcasing
financial strength. On the contrary, a negative EVA raises concerns as it suggests the company
may not be covering its cost of capital, necessitating a closer examination of its financial
strategies and operational efficiency.

In summary, for Crystal Insurance PLC, the EVA statement provides a detailed and
comprehensive analysis of financial performance. A positive EVA signifies operational success
and value creation, while a negative EVA prompts a reevaluation of financial strategies.
Stakeholders can leverage this metric to assess the company's ability to maximize shareholder
wealth through effective operations and prudent financial management.

BDT in Million
Particulars
A Shareholders' equity at the yeaend 1,129,497,628 1,034,611,106
B Cost of equity (%) 3.90% 3.87%
€ Net Profit After Taxes 137,642,942 121,874,371
D Capital Charge or Cost of Equity (AxB) 44,000,000 40,000,000
E Economic Value Added (C -D) 93,642,942 81,874,371

Economic Value -Added by CI PLC
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Readdressal of Investors' Complains

Crystal Insurance PLC is committed to maintaining highest standard of conduct and professional behavior
in dealing with its shareholders.

Secretariat Department officials are always ready to help shareholders whenever in need of share related
services like share transfer, transmission, dividend warrant issue, dividend warrant re-validation etc.
Shareholders of the company are also free to raise their claim, if any, throughout the year. Shareholders
get opportunity to speak on various issues relating to the operation of the Company at the Annual
General Meeting which is held once a year, in which the Chairman/Chief Executive Officer of the Company
with the help of CFO and Company Secretary respond to all queries raised by the shareholders
instantaneously.

Generally, shareholders raise issues relating to utilization of Company’s resources, yearly and quarterly
accounts, business turnover and profitability, declaration of entitlements, issuance of share certificates,
share transfer and transmission, changes of shareholders address, non-receipt of Annual Report, date and
time of AGM, minutes of meetings of all AGM/EGM, implementation of decision of the AGM & EGM and
so on. It is the responsibility of the Company Secretary to oversee that necessary actions are taken
expeditiously so that these issues are resolved to the satisfaction of shareholders. And to do these Crystal
Insurance PLC follows the below principles:

» Complaints raised by investors are dealt with courtesy and on time.
# Investors are treated fairly at all times.

» Complete transparency is maintained with the complainants.

» Complaints are treated efficiently and fairly;

# To ensure all complaints are logged in defined manner and system.

SHARE DEPARTMENT

Crystal Insurance PLC

DR Tower (14th Floor), 65/2/2,

Purana Paltan, Box Culvert Road, Dhaka-1000.
Cell No. 01329-757951

Email: sharedept@ciplchd.com
www.ciplchd.com
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Redressal Of Clients’ Complaints

Insurance being a service industry, clients’ satisfaction is of paramount importance in maintaining existing
clientele base and tapping new business, thereby to achieve satisfactory business growth in the long run.
Being fully aware of this, Crystal always attends to its clients complaints — whether related to its services
or claim settlement. Crystal encourages its clients to come forward with any complaint they may have and
the top management is completely accessible to all of them. Complaints can be lodged with the
management in writing, over telephone, by e-mail or through the web site. During regular meetings with
its clients of various types, the management actively solicits the clients’ views on the Company's services,
shortcomings, if any, and their suggestions. Clients views and complaints are discussed at the
management committee meeting held at Corporate Office and also during meetings with Branch
Managers. This aspect also features prominently at the Annual Conference of the Company. The following
departments are dedicated exclusively to carry out and monitoring the investors complaints.

CLIENT SERVICE

Crystal Insurance PLC.

DR Tower (14th Floor), 65/2/2,

Purana Paltan, Box Culvert Road, Dhaka-1000.
Cell No. 01329-757951

Email: info@ciplcbd.com

www.ciplcbd.com

Hotline/Call Centre: +8802-55112733-38
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Directors' Report to the shareholders

Bismillahir Rahmanir Rahim

Dear Shareholders,
Assalamu Alaikum,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of Crystal Insurance PLC, it is with great pleasure that we welcome
you to the 25" Annual General Meeting (AGM). We would like to extend our heartfelt thanks for your
continued support since the company’s inception in 1999. This milestone marks 25 years of unwavering
commitment and fostering trust with our valued stakeholders. Together, we have built a legacy of
resilience, innovation and excellence that will guide us into the future.

We are very pleased to present before you the annual report along with the audited financial statements
for the year ended December 31, 2024. The report includes relevant disclosures and explanations
pertaining to the issues to ensure compliance, transparency and good corporate governance practices
along with the details of the business performance, operations and achievements of the Company.

Industry Outlook and Possible Future Development

The insurance sector in Bangladesh is highly competitive, with several key factors influencing its
performance during the review period. These include unhealthy competition within the non-life segment,
the growing market share of private insurance companies, and an increasing level of risk retained by
insurers. Despite these challenges, Bangladesh has the potential to develop a reliable and balanced
insurance market. In particular, reforms in insurance regulations, as introduced by the Insurance Development
and Regulatory Authority (IDRA) could vield significant positive outcomes for the country's economy.

Over the past decade, the industry has seen rapid growth. In 2024, the general insurance sector in
Bangladesh experienced a notable growth rate, and this upward trend is expected to continue over the
next five years. This growth is driven by favorable regulatory changes designed to improve market
practices, build customer confidence, and increase insurance penetration.

Segment/Product Wise Performance

During the year, 2024 Crystal Insurance PLC earned total Direct Premium of Tk.680.53 million in the different

segments. Segment wise total performance reports are shown at Page No-166-167 of Annual Report
2024,

Risk and Concern

Both life and non-life Insurance Business involves assumption of risk many types-Physical as well as moral.
Physical risks are identified as those caused by natural disaster, accidental losses and man-made disasters.
The key to proper management of insurance business risks is to make sure proper selection of the client
through a inspection process known as underwriting. Non-life insurance business also closely follows the
country's economic development and any slowdown in the economic activities also has adverse impact
on the insurance industry’s growth. Crystal, being aware of these business risks practices the following to
protect its interests; (a) selection of risks which have the potential of making underwriting profit. (b)
Diversification into many segments of business-product wise, as well as client wise so that the company is
not over reliant on any particular segment (c) the company arranges adequate reinsurance back up of
risks assumed by it with good quality securities. (d) The company maintains a conservative reserving
policy and its wvarious technical reserves have been created to adequately cater to unforeseen
developments in the future,
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Cost of Goods Sold, Gross Profit Margin & Net Profit Margin

Crystal Insurance PLC is not a manufacturing company. It is a Non-Banking Financial Institutions dealing
with non-life insurance in Bangladesh. Cost of Goods Sold, Gross Profit Margin & Net Profit Margin is not
considering preparing Financial Statement.

Extra Ordinary Activities & their Implications

The activities of Crystal Insurance PLC has a steadily growth from the beginning. No extra ordinary
activities occurred during the year and have no implications in the financial statements.

Disclosure Related party transactions

The company routinely conducts transactions with entities classified as related parties under IFRS
"Related Party Disclosures." Details of these transactions are provided in item No. 40 of the notes to the
Financial Statements. The Audit Committee regularly reviews and analyzes these transactions in detail.

Utilization of Proceeds Raised through Public Issues

The Company's |IPO was made in 2020. No further raised through public issues, right issues and or any
other instruments were proceeds during the year.

Deterioration of financial results after IPO and Rights issues

There is no financial results deteriorate after the company goes for initial public offering (IPO), Repeat
public Offering (RPQ), Rights offer etc.

Variance between Quarterly and Annual Financial Statements

Crystal Insurance PLC has released its financial statements for the first, second, and third quarters of
2024. The results for these guarters show no significant variations when compared to the year-end
operational performance.

Directors Remuneration

Directors are not eligible for any remuneration other than attendance fee for the Board Meeting. As per
IDRA Reference letter No. 53.03.0000.009.18.014.18.123 dated 31st May 2018 directors are eligible for
remuneration of BDT 8,000 for attending each meeting. Details of Directors Remuneration are provided
in Page No. 207 & Note No 40.03 of notes to the financial Statements.

Financial Statements

The financial statements prepared by the management of the company present fairly its state of affairs,
the result of its operatians, cash flows and changes in equity. Audited Financial Statements are shown at
page no-175 to 211 of Annual Report 2024.

Maintaining Proper Books of Accounts

The Director’s responsibilities also include overseeing whether adequate accounting records are being
maintained with vouchers relevant to any entry in good order. The books of accounts kept at the
registered office of the Crystal Insurance PLC.

Appropriate Accounting Policy

The Financial Statements are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud and error; selecting
and applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.
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Followed IAS and IFRS

International Accounting Standards (IAS) or International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as
applicable in Bangladesh, have been followed in preparation of the financial statements and any
departure there from has been adequately disclosed.

Effective Internal Control System

An effective internal control system also requires that an appropriate control structure is set up with
control activities defined at every business level. Board of directors has the responsibility for approving
the review of overall business strategies and significant policies of the internal control system.

Redressal of Minority Shareholders Effective

No situation arisen with minority shareholders who protected from abusive actions by, or in the interest
of, controlling shareholders acting either directly or indirectly and no effective means of redress.

Going Concern

Financial statements are generally prepared under the assumption that the business will remain a “going
concern.” It is the responsibility of the management of a Company to determine whether the going
concern assumption is appropriate in the preparation of financial statements. The report on going
concern is disclosed in the Page No. 187 of Annual Report 2024,

Deviations from the Last Year Operating Results

Previous Year's EPS, NAV and NOCFPS has been restated during the year due to issuance of Bonus Shares,
NOCFPS increased by 26.42% from the previous year due to increase of premium income during the year.

Five Years Operating and Financial Data
The Key operating and financial data for the last five years have been shown at below:

BDT in Million

Particulars 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Gross Premium 813.04 710.74 684.85 617.44 598.42
Met Premium 561.79 476.36 479.1%9 390.50 388.11
Gross Claim 236.92 214.04 62.03 61.10 59.64
Underwriting Profit 154.21 142.16 137.44 118.07 144.00
Net Profit Before Tax 187.72 146.01 130.24 134.70 149.92
Net Profit After Tax 146.58 128.83 115.16 119.59 122.59
Total Asset 2,059.61 1,907.42 1,838.05 1,598.50 1,454.30
Total Liability 702.75 680.31 672.74 528.07 458.57
Balance of Fund 227.36 192.50 192.87 158.54 156.67
Shareholders' Equity 1,129.50 1,0234.61 972.43 511.89 839.07
No. of shares 44.00 40,00 40.00 40.00 40.00
Face Value 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
NAV per share 25.67 25.87 24.31 22.8 20.98
Earnings per share 3.13 3.05 2.72 2.83 4.58
Dividend {;fi:::;'] ;E';ﬁ;é‘;‘;ﬁ 10% Cash 10% Cash | 10% Cash

* Net Asset Value (NAV) and Earning Per Share (EPS) has been presented on the above table as per the previous
years’ actual NAV and EPS.

82 Srnat Report 2024



% B %@L

Dividend Declaration Policy

In the year under review as per the instruction of the Board of Directors of the Company, the
management is following a policy regarding dividends to be paid to the shareholders in a manner that
shall be in the line with and in consistent to the actual income as well as the practices of the insurance
industry. The Board of Directors Meeting held on Sth February 2025 has recommended a Cash dividend
at 12% for the year 2024.

Disclosure on Dividend Distribution

Crystal Insurance PLC plan to pay the dividend to the securities holder within 20{thirty) days of declaration
or approval and submit a compliance report to the Exchange and to the Commission in respect of dividend
payment within 7 {seven) working days.

Interim Dividend

No bonus share or stock dividend has been declared by the Board as interim dividend and there was no
effect of the company’s financial position.

Board Meetings and Attendance

During the year, the Board of Directors Meeting and their attendance records are shown at below:
The Board of Directors’ meetings held regularly and with due manner. A total of six (06) Board of
Directors’ meeting was held during the year 2024.

S.L Name of Directors Position Attendance
01 Mr. Abdullah Al-Mahmud Chairman 6
02 Mr. Abdullah Hasan Director 5
03 Mr.A.H.M. Mozammel Hoque Director 6
04 Mr. Md. Tajul Islam Director 6
05 Mrs. Farhana Danesh Director 5
06 Ms. Soera Zahir Director 5
07 Mr. Arafat Rashid Director 5
08 Mrs. Nusrat Mahmud Director 5
09 Ms. Mabila Mahmud Director B
10 Mr. Md. Abdul Latif Mia Independent Director 2
11 Mr. Md. Rashedur Rahman Independent Director 5
12 Dr. M. Waliuzzaman Independent Director (Retired) 2
13 Mr. Kazi Nasim Uddin Independent Director (Retired) 2

M.B: CEO (Chief Executive Officer); C5 (Company Secretary), CFO {Chief Financial Officer) and Head of Internal Audit
& Compliance (HIAC) were also present in all Board of Directors mesting during the year 2024,
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Pattern of Shareholding

A report on the pattern of shareholding disclosing the aggregate number of shares along with name-wise
details as on 31st December 2024 are stated at below:

Shareholding pattern of the Company as on 31st December 2024,

Directors and Sponsors Position Sha;::: :I"E Shar:i::;ings
Mr. Abdullah Al-Mahmud Chairman 44,00,000 10.00%
Mr. Abdullah Hasan Director 44,000,000 10.00%
Mr. A.H.M. Mozammel Hogue Director 8,880,000 2.00%
Mr. Md. Tajul Islam Director 9,90,000 2.25%
Mrs. Farhana Danesh Director 10,50,500 2.39%
Mrs. Soera Zahir Director 22,00,000 5.00%
Mr. Arafat Rashid Director 8,80,000 2.00%
Mrs. Nusrat Mahmud Director 44,00,000 10.00%
Mrs. Nabila Mahmud Director 22,00,000 5.00%
Mr. Ashoke Ranjan Kapuria Sponsor Shareholder 13,20,000 3.00%
Mr. lgbal Hasan Mahmood Sponsor Shareholder 4,12,500 0.94%
Mrs. Sarah Hasein Mahmood Sponsor Shareholder 3,30,000 0.75%
Mr. Rubayat Tanveer Huda Sponsor Shareholder 2,97,000 0.68%
Mrs. Suraya Akter Tondra Sponsor Shareholder 4,40,000 1.00%
Mr. Khalid Al Mamun Sponsor Shareholder 2,20,000 0.50%
Mr. Zarif Al Mamun Sponsor Shareholder 2,20,000 0.50%
Mr. Syed Salman Habib Sponsor Shareholder 5,86,666 1.33%
Mrs. Syeda Samina Mirza Sponsor Shareholder 2,93,334 0.67%
Public & Others 18,480,000 42.00%
Total 44,000,000 100.00%

Increases Paid-Up Capital

Crystal Insurance PLC was issued 10% bonus share in 2024 on the performance of the fiscal year 2023,
effectively increasing its share capital by distributing additional shares to existing shareholders. Now the
paid up capital of the Company is Tk.440 million.

Retirement and Re-election of Directors

As per Companies Act, 1994, each year one-third of the Directors (except Independent Director) retire
from office at the Annual General Meeting (AGM) and if eligible, may offer themselves for re-election by
share-holders at the Annual General Meeting. In line with the requirement of Company Act, 1994, the
following Directors will retire at the 25thAGM with seniority basis:
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1. Mr. A.H.M. Mozammel Hoque
2. Ms. Soera Zahir
3. Ms. Nabila Mahmud

The above directors are eligible for re-election for their next term.

Management's Discussion and Analysis of the Company’s Position

Management's Discussion and Analysis signed by CED presenting detailed analysis of the company’s
position and operations along with a brief discussion of changes in the financial statements are stated at
page no(00-000) in this Annual Report.

Bangladesh Economy

According to the provisional estimates of Bangladesh Bureau of Statistics (BBS), GDP growth rate for FY
2023-24 stood at 5.82 percent as against 5.78 percent in the final estimates for FY 2022-23. As per the
provisional estimate for FY 2023-24, the size of GDP in current market prices is Tk.50,48,027 crore or USD
459 billion, which was Tk.44,90,842 crore or USD 452 billion in the previous fiscal year.

Bangladesh Economy Review 2024

Global Economy:

In the World Economic Outlook Update, July 2024, International Monetary Fund (IMF), growth is expected
to remain stable at 3.2 percent in 2024 and 3.3 percent in 2025. The forecast for global economic growth
is broadly unchanged from that in the April 2024 Outlook. Growth in advanced economies is expected to
remain stable at 1.7 percent in 2024 and 1.8 percent in 2025. Growth of the United States is projected to
rise at 2.6 percent in 2024 but slow down to 1.9 percent in 2025, partly due to moderate consumption. In
emerging market and developing economies, however, growth is expected to remain stable at 4.3 percent
during 2024 and 2025.

Bangladesh Economy Review 2024

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy

Annual CSR programs in terms of board approved CSR policies of Crystal Insurance PLC will be drawn up
and implemented by the dedicated CSR unit. Report on CSR shown at page no. 156 & 157 of Annual Report.

Earnings per Share (EPS)

Net profit before tax of the Company stands at Tk. 187.72. million during the year 2024, Earning per share
after tax of Tk. 3.13 compared to Tk. 2.77 (previous year EPS 3.05 has been restated during the year due
to issuance of bonus share) per share in the previous year. The calculation of EPS are Shown at Note No.
34.00 of Financial Statement in the Annual Report.

Claims and Client Service

The gross claim for the year 2024 was for Tk.236.92 million as against Tk.214.04 million in 2023. This has
been increased by Tk.22.88 million over the previous year. The company received on (Re-insurance
ceded) total for the year 2024 was Tk.100.02 million whereas the amount was Tk.59.29 million in the
previous year which is Tk.40.73 million less than that of the previous year. However, we always keep
ourselves ready to meet our valued client’s satisfaction.
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Solvency Analysis and Credit Rating

Both short term and long term solvency of the company has reached to such a level that is needed for
meeting the requirement of new Insurance Act-2010 as well as for getting satisfaction of the financial
analysts and the rating agencies. The equity base of the company paid up capital Tk. 440 million. Crystal
Insurance PLC has been earn a Credit Rating of AAA (Triple A) based on 2024 financial strength and
performance by National Credit Ratings Limited (NCR) on 24th February, 2025 which defines strongest
credit quality. The above short term entity rating defines strongest ability to meet short term financial
commitments.

Loans or Advances to Directors

In the year 2024, CIPLC has not allowed any loans or advances or any debit balances (including guarantee
or security in connection with a loan) to any Director of the company with refer to the Commissions
Notification no. SEC/CMMRR/CD/2006-159/Admin/02-10 dated 10 September 2006.

Shareholders’ Value

Crystal Insurance PLC remains fully committed to delivery of higher standard of shareholders’ value, The
higher profitability underpins the value of the shareholders derived from investing in the shares of Crystal
Insurance PLC.

Annual General Meeting

25" Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the company will be held on 23" March at 11.30 a.m. in the Holiday
Inn Dhaka City Center, 23, Shahid Tajuddin Ahmed Sharani, Tejgaon, Dhaka and through Digital Platform.
In this connection, financial statements were adopted in the 110" Board Meeting held on 9% February,
2025 and the financial statements will be approved in the 25" AGM.

Corporate Governance

Good Corporate Governance is the system through which the company is directed, guided and controlled
by the Board, keeping in view its accountability to the Shareholders. The Board has complied with the
requirements set out by BSEC.

Appointment of Auditors and fixation of their Remuneration

Statutory Auditors:

M/S. Mahfel Hug & Co, Chartered Accountants was appointed as the Statutory Auditor of the Company
at the 24" AGM held on March 31, 2024. Which will expire in the 25" AGM and they are eligible for
re-appointment for the year 2025.

In this connection, M/S. Mahfel Huq & Co, Chartered Accountants are interested to conduct the audit for
2025. They are eligible for appointment as Statutory Auditors for the year 2025.

Compliance Auditors:

Appointment of auditors/practicing professional for issuing certificate on compliance of conditions of
corporate governance code and fixation of their remuneration.
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M/S. Jobair Satter & Co, Chartered Accountants was appointed as the Compliance Auditor of the
Company at the 24™ AGM held on March 31, 2024. They are eligible for re-appointment for the year 2025.
In this connection, M/S. Jobair Satter & Co, Chartered Accountants are interested to conduct the
Compliance audit for 2025.

Transparency and Accountability

Crystal Insurance PLC always maintains transparency and accountability at all levels in doing business. To
provide sustainable profitability, minimizing risks and establishing good governance in all spheres of
Company's operation, the Company ensures the segregation of duties and responsibilities between the
Board & Management.

Acknowledgement

The members of the Board of Director of Crystal Insurance PLC like to express gratitude to all honorable
shareholders, valued clients for their patronage and support. The Directors also express their thanks and
profound appreciation for the immense support and co-operation received from office of the Chairman,
Insurance Development & Regulatory Authority (IDRA), all concerned Government Offices including
Ministry of Finance, Ministry of Commerce, Sadharan Bima Corporation, Bangladesh Bank, all
Nationalized Bank, Commercial Bank and Financial Institution, Registrar of loint Stock Companies & Firms
(RISC), Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission (BSEC), Dhaka Stock Exchange Ltd. (DSE),
Chittagong Stock Exchange Ltd. (CSE), Central Depository Bangladesh Limited (CDBL), National Board of
Revenue (NBR), Bangladesh Insurance Association, and Bangladesh Association of Publicly listed
companies (BAPLC). The Board Members also pleased to put on record their appreciation for the
commitment and dedication extended by the management of the Company.

On behalf of the Board of Directors

Abdullah Al Mahmud
Chairman
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Report of the Audit Committee

Audit Committee Report
For the year 2024

In accordance with the best practices of corporate governance issued by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission and Insurance Development and Regulatory Authority, Crystal Insurance PLC established an Audit
Committee to perform in coherence and consistency and ensures compliance,

Audit committee is the sub-committee of the Board. The Committee assists the Board of Directors in ensuring that
the financial statements reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and in ensuring a good
monitoring system within the business.

Composition of Audit Committee

Position in the Audit

Name of the Members Position in Board Cmiites
Mr. Md. Rashedur Rahman Independent Director Chairman
Mr. A. H. M. Mozammel Hoque Director Member
Mr. Md. Tajul Islam Director Member
Ms. Farhana Danesh Director Member
Ms. Soera Zahir Director Member
Ms. Mabila Mahmud Director Member
Mr. M. Mahfuzur Rahman FCA Company Secretary Secretary

Role of Audit Committee:

The Audit Committee has been playing an essential role in ensuring that the Crystal Insurance PLC. is
following laws and regulations from all authorities. The Committee takes quite a few measures for
compliance which are as follows:

Review the findings of any auditor observations, and any examinations by regulatory authorities.

Review the effectiveness of the control system for monitoring compliance with laws and regulations and
the results of management’s investigation and follow-up (including disciplinary action} of any instances
of non-compliance.

Launch measures for:

1. The receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by the organization regarding
accounting, internal controls, or auditing matters; and

Review the process for communicating the code of conduct to the employees and monitoring
compliance therewith.

Obtain regular updates from management and legal advice regarding Company’s compliance matters.

The Audit Committee administers and assures the Board that the company adheres to all the applicable
laws, rules and regulations of various regulatory authorities.
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The Scope of Audit Committee was defined as under

i. Oversee the financial reporting process;

ii. Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles;

iii. Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors;

iv. Hold meeting with the external or statutory auditors for review of the annual financial
statements before submission to the Board for approval or adoption;

v. Review along with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval;

vi. Review along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial statements before
submission to the Board for approval;

vii. Review the adequacy of internal audit function;

viii. Review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the management;

ix. Review Management Letters or Letter of Internal Control weakness issued by statutory auditors;

¥. Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, level of expertise
deployed and time required for effective audit and evaluate the performance of external
auditors; and

Meetings & Attendance Status

The Committee held four (4) meetings during the year 2024. The proceedings of the Audit Committee
meetings are regularly reported to the Board of Directors. The Board Audit Committee members’
attendance for the Year 2024 is as follows:

Total Meeting Number of
Name of the Members Status Held during Meetings Attend

their Periodv

Mr. Md. Rashedur Rahman Chairmen 4 3

Dr. M. Waliuzzaman Chairman (Retired) 4 1

Mr. Kazi Nasim Uddin Member(Retired) 4 1

Mr. A. H. M. Mozammel Hogue Member 4 4

Mr. Md. Tajul Islam Member 4 4

Ms. Farhana Danesh Member 4 =

Ms, Soera Zahir Member 4 3

Ms. Nabila Mahmud Member 4 2

Mr. M. Mahfuzur Rahman FCA Secretary < A

Review of external Audit Function.

The Committee also focuses on the financial management and reporting of the company. The Committee
provides a high level of specific expertise in this important area of Crystal Insurance PLC. Financial
management and reporting determine the credit worthiness to outsiders and growth targets and
successes to insiders. They are the key determinants in establishing the market value of Crystal Insurance
PLC.
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The Committee has taken up the following responsibilities regarding the evaluation of external audit
function.

a) Evaluate the external auditor’s proposed audit scope and approach, including coordination of
audit effort with internal auditing.

b) Evaluate the performance of the external auditors, and exercise final approval on the
appointment or discharge of the auditors. In performing this evaluation, the committee will:

|. At least annually, obtain and review a report by the independent auditor describing the firm’s
internal quality-control procedures; any material issues raised by the most recent internal
guality-contral review.

Il. Consider the opinions of management and internal audit.
IIl. Review and evaluate the findings and recommendations of the independent auditor.
V. Present its conclusions with respect to the external auditor to the Board.

c) Present its conclusions with respect to the independent auditor to the Board.

d) Meet separately, on a regular basis, with the external auditors to discuss any matters that the
committee or auditors believe should be discussed privately.

Throughout the year, the Audit Committee has competently fulfilled its roles towards the Crystal
Insurance PLC. The Committee has been extensively involved in the evaluation of the external audit
function, and carried out its role competently.

Review of the Annual and Interim Financial reports

The annual and interim financial release of the Company contains sensitive financial information, which
needs to be addressed cautiously. The Audit Committee always is actively involved in reviewing these
releases and always has recommendations to management on ways to improve these financials. The
Committee reviews and discusses with management all significant correcting adjustments (whether or
not made) to ensure that all material adjustments are properly reflected in the financial reports.

The Audit Committee assumes the following responsibilities with regards to annual and interim financial
statements:

+ Understand management's responsibilities and representations with regards to annual and
interim financial statements.

+ Understand and assess the appropriateness of management’s selection of accounting principles
and the most critical accounting policies.

+ lnderstand the management’s judgments and accounting estimates applied in financial reporting.
+ Confer with both management and the external auditors about the financial statements.

+ Assess whether financial statement are complete and fairly presented, in all material aspect, the
financial position of the company and that disclosures are clear and transparent.

+ Review earnings releases, financial statements and other information presented within the
financial statements prior to release.
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The Audit Committee assures itself that the external auditors are satisfied that the accounting estimates
and judgments made by management, and that management’s selection of accounting principles reflect
an appropriate application of |AS and IFRS.

The Audit Committee of Crystal Insurance PLC has always been substantially involved in the review of the
financial statements and has provided recommendations whenever needed. The committee has duly
carried out its responsibilities throughout the year 2024,

Reporting to the Board of Directors

A,
B.

No conflict of interest arisen during the year;

No suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity or material defect identified in the internal audit
and compliance process or in the financial statements;

No suspected infringement of laws, regulatory compliances including securities related laws, rules
and regulations; and

Mot any other matter which the Audit Committee deems necessary shall be disclosed to the Board
immediately.

On behalf of the Audit Committee

Mr. Md. Rashedur Rahman
Chairman of the Audit Committee
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Report of the NRC Committee

The Board of Directors of Crystal Insurance PLC. has duly constituted a nomination and Remuneration
Committee (NRC), as per the requirements of the Corporate Governance Code of Bangladesh Securities
and Exchange Commission (BSEC)

The NRC assists the Board in formulating the nomination criteria or policy for determining qualifications,
positive attributes, experience and independence of Directors and other top-level executives. The NRC
also assists the Board to formulate policy for formal and continued process of considering
remuneration/honorarium of Directors and top-level executives.

Nomination and Remuneration policies/Criteria

The nomination and remuneration policies and the benchmark of which pursuing the business code of
conduct and standards perceptible in the market context and appropriate to meet the present and future
needs of the Company, is followed by the Company. The broad criteria in this respect for the Directors and
Top-Level Executives of the Company are as follows:

a) The Nomination Criteria
i. The Company policies as well as guidelines and applicable laws/regulations for the Company;
il. A prescribed selection process that is transparent in all respect;
iii. Following a process which is compatible to the recognized standards and the best practices.

iv. Distinguishing the core competencies of the respective personnel for the different level of
management and employees of the Company.

v. Follow diversity in age, maturity, gender, experience, qualification, educational background,
expertise, ethnicity and nationality

b) Recruitment and Selection Standards

The Recruitment and selection of Directors and Top-Level Executives of the Company are made according
to the following core guiding principles;

Directors and Top-Level Executives

i. At first, identifying the company’s needs for directors and top level executives at different levels
and determine their selection, transfer or replacement and promotion criteria.

ii. Then, identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in top
level executive position in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend their
appointment and removal to the Board as well;

iii. The Board of Directors appoints Directors and Top Level Executive, upon nomination and
recommendation of the NRC.

Independent Director

i. The Independent Director shall be a knowledgeable individual with integrity who is able to ensure
compliance with financial laws, regulatory requirements and corporate laws that can make
meaningful contribution to the businesses.
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ii. The Independent Director should have competence of the relevant sector in which Company
operates and necessarily should have the gualifications as required by the Code of BSEC.

ili, The Board of Directors appoints Independent Directors upon nomination and recommendation of
the NRC, which is then approved by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting of the Company.

c) Remuneration Criteria
The key features of the Remuneration Criteria recommended by the NRC are as follows:

a) The structure, scale and composition of remuneration/honorarium are reasonably considered
based on the Company’s policies and Guidelines set by the Board of Directors to attract, retain and
motivate the top level executives to run the Company efficiently and successfully.

b) The context of packages, including remuneration /benefits is categorically laid down which meets
the appropriate performance benchmarks as per the Company Policies and Guidelines ratified by
the Board as and when required;

c) The remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a balance between fixed and incentive
pay reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the
company and its goals.

d) The NRC will recommend the Board meeting attendance fees, honorarium including incidental
expenses. if any; and

e] No member of the NRC will be allowed to receive, either directly or indirectly, any remuneration
for any advisory or consultancy role or otherwise, other than Board meeting and Board's
sub-committee meetings attendance fees from the Company.

d) Evaluation Criteria
Board of Directors/Top level Executives

The respective line authority of the Directors and Top-level Executives sets the performance measurement
criteria based on the respective role profile and responsibilities through the Company's annual appraisal
policy/process at a certain time of each calendar year.

Independent Director

The evaluation of performance of the Independent Directors (IDs) is to be carried out according to the
criteria of attendance and participation at the Board meetings and committee meetings; participation in
the Board meetings and committee meetings and contribution to the improvement of the corporate
governance practices of the Company.

e} Activity of Nomination and Remuneration Committee during the year.

Mr. M. Mahfuzur Rahman FCA acts as the Secretary of NRC. In 2024, two NRC meeting held. The NRC
noted the nomination and remuneration governance ensuring the standards and compliance accordingly.

Acknowledgement

The NRC expresses their sincere thanks to the members of the Board of Directors and the management of
the Company for their outstanding support and co-operation.

Md. Rashedur Rahman
Chairman
Momination and Remuneration Committee
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Report on the corporate governance

Crystal Insurance PLC comprises carefully at corporate governance considered rules and practices by
which the Board of Directors and the Management ensures accountability, fairness and transparency in
the company’s relationship with all its stakeholders. The aim of the Board to ensure the interest of
shareholder either he/she is minority or majority with attaining the businesses sustainability.

Board’s Size

The number of the Board Members of Crystal Insurance PLC consisted on eleven including two
Independent Directors,

Policy on appointment of Directors

BSEC notification regarding Code of Corporate Governance and Company Act are strictly followed to
appoint the Board of Directors of CIPLC. In order to be a member of the Board, a Director other than a
nominated, independent and alternate Director, must maintain at least two percent shares of the
company. According to the provision of Companies Act, 1994, at least one-third of the Directors retired by
rotation in every AGM. The term of an Independent Director is three years and may be lengthened by
another three years. With regards to nomination, removal and casual vacancy of the directors, CIPLC
follows all relevant rules and regulations. The Managing Director & CED is appointed for a minimum
period of three years subject to approval of IDRA. The office of the Managing Director & CEO is not subject
to retirement and may be extend for further three years with evaluating performance.

Composition of the Board of Directors; Non-executive Directors and Independent Directors

All the directors of the Board are non-executive directors and at least one-fifth is Independent. Currently,
there are two independent directors appointed by the Board subject to the approval of the shareholders
in the Annual General Meeting.

Independent Director

As per the BSEC guidelines on Corporate Governance at least one fifth of the total Directors should be
independent Directors. Therefore, in compliance with BSEC Notification, Board of Directors of CIPLC
nominated two independent directors so that the Board contains core skills considered appropriate in the
framework of the Company.

Criteria for Appointment/Independency of Independent Directors

The purpose of true independence, the Board decided that its Independent Director do not hold any share
of the Company; not associated with the Company's Promoters or Directors or Shareholders who
maintains one percent or more of the total paid-up share of the Company; not related with the existing
Directors or families; does not have any other relationship, not a member, Director or officer of any Stock
Exchange and who is not a shareholder, Director or officer of any stock exchange or an intermediary of the
Capital market.

Role and Responsibilities of the Board

The Board’s responsibilities are to reviewing and approving the strategies and business plans for the
various operating divisions against their respective business targets; prescribing the minimum standards
and establishing policies on the management of insurance risks and other key areas of the operations’
ensuring that the operating infrastructure, systems of control, systems for risk identification and management,
financial and operational controls, are in place and properly implemented; reviewing the adequacy and
integrity of the Company’s internal control systems, But not limited the above mentioned the subject matter.
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Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors

Code of Conduct for all the members of the Board of Directors are:-

= |ssue Policy and guideline to the management within the company policy-framewaork.
= Board will not interfere in the day to day functions.

= Respect conflict of internet

= Compliant to all relevant laws and rules

= Respect to the confidentiality principle.

= Maintain fair dealing and avoid insider trading

= Recognize & reward real performance.

= |phold greater interest of the company.

= Encourage CSR activities.

Rights of Directors

Directors have the right of access to relevant information and confidentiality according to Board's Code of
Conduct.

Chairman of the Board

Abdullah Al Mahmud was elected as the Chairman of the Company by the Board of Directors at 100™
Board Meeting held on 17" April; 2023. The Chairman of the Company is a non-executive Director.

Role and Responsibilities of the Chairman

As the Chairman of the Board of Directors (or Chairman of any Committee formed by the Board of
Directors) does not personally possess the Jurisdiction to apply policy making or executive authority, he
shall not participate in or interfere into the administration or operational and routine affairs of the
company. The Chairman may conduct on-site inspection of any branch or insurance activities under the
purview of the oversight responsibilities of the Board. He may call for any information relating to CIPLC's
operation or ask for investigation into any such affairs; he may submit such information or investigation
report to the meeting of the Board or the Sub-Committee of the Board and if deemed necessary, with the
approval of the Board, he shall take necessary action thereon in accordance with the set rules through the
CEO. Besides this, the Chairman may/shall assume any other responsibility if the Board assigns within the
purview of the Rules. Regulations, Acts and Articles of the Company.

Non-executive Director’s Independence

All the Directors except the Managing Director & CEO are non-executive Directors in the Board. None of
the Directors takes part in the day to day affairs of the Company. They attend only the Board Meeting,
Audit Committee meeting and Nomination & Remuneration Committee Meeting to discuss the agenda
reserved for the Board and Committees.

Training Policy of Board of Directors

The Board encouraged the training on the Corporate Governance and other Rules, Regulations and
Circular of IDRA and BSEC. To organize the training of Directors as a part of accessing the Board
performance. Crystal Insurance is fully committed to maintain highest standards of Corporate
Governance & professionalism in driving the progress on the principles of transparency and
accountability.

Evaluation/Appraisal of the Board'’s performance & Effectiveness

At AGM shareholders critically appraise the performance of the Board and evaluate financial position and
performance of the Company, its adequacy and effectiveness of internal control system and overall
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governance mechanism. The shareholders also ask questions and make queries to the BOD during AGM
and the Chairman of BOD gives a patient hearing and responds to all their queries. The performance of the
Board is appraised based on certain parameters such as shareholder return, share price, return on capital
employed, earnings per share etc. of the company. The attendance of Directors and their active
participation in the meeting on various agenda is ensured in every Board meeting. In a short form, Crystal
Insurance appraised the Board's performance & effectiveness by analyzing the execution of the business
and proposals sanctioned by it.

Evaluation of the Managing Director and CEO by the Board

The Managing Director and CEO is evaluated on an annual basis and is also given KPI's for the certain
period and the Board has the capability to evaluate the CEO whenever it wishes so. All CEOs are evaluated
after their term, and on the basis of their evaluation, reappointment for another term is considered by the
Board. A few mentionable KPls for the CEQ are to meet the annual budgetary targets of the company
which was approved by the Board, maximize shareholders value through desired ROA, ROI, ROE and EPS
as per expectation of the Board, sustainable growth on investment and revenue for the company,
gradually reducing the claim settlement and improvement in the score for credit rating.

Roles and responsibilities of the CEO

In terms of the financial, business and administrative authorities vested upon him by the board, the CEO
shall discharge his own responsibilities. He shall remain accountable for achievement of financial and
other business targets by means of business plans, efficient implementation thereof and prudent
administrative and financial management. The CEO shall ensure compliance of the Insurance Act, 2010,
and other relevant laws and regulations in discharge of routine functions of the company.

Governance of Board of Directors of Subsidiary Company

Crystal Insurance PLC has no Subsidiary Company and also it is not the holding company of any other
business.

Top Executives

Chief Executive Officer, Company Secretary, Chief Financial Officer and Head of Internal Audit &
Compliance is appointed by the Board who are different individuals and don't hold any executive
positions in any other company at the same time. They are not removed from their position without
approval of the Board. The Board clearly defined respective roles, responsibilities and duties of the CFQ,
CS, ClO, CRO and HIAC.

Duties and responsibilities of Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

v" To develop and implement standard financial reporting practices.

¥ To supervise and ensure proper record keeping and reporting, smooth functioning of finance and
accounts department,

¥" He /She shall remain responsible for the efficient and effective fund management of the company
and shall take appropriate steps to prohibit minimize and probable misuse of fund.

¥" To ensure maintenance of proper books of accounts and timely submission of financial

administrative and other information to the IDRA and other regulatory authorities.

Synchronization of management reporting system and to bring harmonization of

intra-departmental functions.

To authorize all receipts & payment.

To present realistic budget including the fixation of half-yearly and/or yearly business target.

He/She shall have to oversee the external audit reports before finalization.

To ensure departmental co-ordination and functioning.
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¥ He/She shall remain responsible for preparation and presentation of all periodical and annual
financial statements of the company applying latest developments of international accounting
standard and practices as incorporated in Bangladesh.

¥ The CFO shall oversee the income tax; value added tax and related matters of the company.

¥ He/She will serve the company with integrity, sincerity and professional competence at a high level
and will remain respectful to the confidentiality of information.

Roles & Responsibilities of the Head of Internal Audit & Compliance

» The HIAC will be appointed by the Board of Directors.

# The HIAC team shall be directly under the supervision of Audit Committee and shall act and discharge
his duties and responsibilities under the direction of Audit Committee and report directly to the
Committee.

# The Audit team will function as per guidelines mentioned in the Audit Manual which may be changed,
modified, amended, extended as and when required.

% The HIAC shall ensure timely completion of audits, finalization of reports and prompt submission of
the same to the Audit Committee.

» Audit Committee/Board may change the members of this Audit Team including the HIAC as and when
they think it necessary to the changing circumstances and in the greater interest of the company.

Roles & Responsibilities of the Company Secretary
The Company Secretary Shall-

Look after all the affairs related to the Board of Directors.

Ensure supply of all papers, documents to the Board as required.

Ensure supply of information, reports, dates, etc in the way Board wants and decides.

Call meetings of the Board and its Committees; shall also finalize the agenda of the meeting in

consultation with the Chairman and Managing Director & CEQ.

++ Prepare report(s) to the Board and its Committee meetings, the status report of implementation of the
decision of the Board by the management.

<+ Entitle to a copy of the progress report, monthly statement and any other reports, statement, circular

received in the Head office from various sources, including the Branches of the company or given by

the Head Office to the Branches and other organization.

Organize and follow the procedure of AGM/EGM as per decision of the Board.

Communicated with to BSEC, DSE, CSE, RISC and IDRA as per rules.

Follow and maintain required compliance of BSEC and other regulatory agencies.

Have the power to request for any papers, statement and documents from all departments and Branch

Managers, which may be required in connection with any agenda for discussion on it and or taking

decision on any matter by the Board.
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Roles & Responsibilities of the Chief Investment Officer
# Develop and implement investment strategies that align with the company’s financial objectives.
» Oversee the management of investment portfolios, ensuring diversification and risk mitigation.
# Monitor and evaluate market trends, economic conditions, and financial risks to optimize investment
decisions.
# Ensure that investment policies comply with regulatory guidelines and corporate governance standards.

Roles & Responsibilities of the Chief Risk Officer

% Risk ldentification and Assessment.
%+ Creating and enforcing risk management policies and protocols that align with the company's business
strategies.
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++ Risk Mitigation

%+ Collaborating with other departments to identify and manage company-wide risks, ensuring a
cohesive approach to risk management

++ Regularly evaluating the effectiveness of risk management processes and implementing necessary
improvements to adapt to evolving risks.

Meetings of the Board of Directors

The Board meets as required to discuss business strategy, financial performance, matters pertaining to
compliance and governance as the Board reviews, amongst others, the financial performance of the
company. In addition, Special Board meetings are held when necessary, to deliberate on major
transactions and ad-hoc matters that require the Board’s urgent attention and decisions. Meeting papers
on the proposals and reports are delivered to the Directors prior to the meetings, giving them sufficient
time to evaluate the proposals. There are six (06) Board Meetings were held during the year 2024.

Attendance of CFO, HIAC and CS in Board Meeting

Chief Financial Officer (CFQO), Head of Internal Audit & Compliance (HIAC) and the Company Secretary (CS)
of the Company attend the meetings of the Board of Directors. Provided that the Chief Financial Officer,
Head of Internal Audit & Compliance and the Company Secretary do not attend such part of a meeting
which involves consideration of an agenda item relating to their personal matters.

Bangladesh Secretarial Standard (BSS)
The Company has conducted its Board meetings and record the minutes of the meeting as well as keep
required books and records in line with the provisions of the Bangladesh Secretarial standard (BSS)

Audit Committee

The committee is empowered, among other things, to examine any matter relating to the financial affairs
of the Company and to review all audit and inspection reports, internal control systems and procedures,
accounting policies and adherence to compliance requirements, among there's.

Chairman is an independent Non-Executive Director

Mr. Md. Rashedur Rahman, the Chairman of the Audit Committee is an independent non-executive,
Director, who is not involved in the day to day operations of the Company. He is an experienced individual
and qualified to be the Chairman of the Audit Committee. He was present in the 24th Annual General
Meeting.

Appointment of members and composition of the Audit Committee.

CIPLC's Audit Committee is a sub-committee of the Board. Composition of the Audit Committee consisting
of an Independent Director and Non-Executive Directors in compliance with the Corporate Governance
Guidelines of BSEC, the Committee consists of 6 (six) non-executive members of the Board including one
Independent Director and one of them who is the Chairman of the Committee.

Qualification of members including the Chairman

Mr. Md. Rashedur Rahman, Independent Directors, is the Chairman of the Audit Committee, Possessing
of vast experience. Among others seven members, also possessing significant experience in finance,
accounting and audit. All the members of the committee are financially literate as defined by the revised
corporate governance guidelines.

Head of Internal Audit and Compliance’s access in the Audit Committee.
The Head of Internal Audit and Compliance always has access to the Audit committee and can raise his
concern whenever required.
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Terms of reference of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee shall assist the Board in ensuring that the financial statements reflect true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the company and in ensuring a good monitoring system within the business.

The Audit Committee Shall-

i.  Oversee the financial reporting process;

ii. Monitor choice of accounting policies and principles;

iii. Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance process to ensure that it is adequately resourced,
including approval of the internal Audit and Compliance plan and review of the Internal Audit
and Compliance Report;

iv. Oversee hiring and performance of external auditors;

v. Hold meeting with the external of statutory auditors for review of the annual financial
statements before submission to the Board for approval or adoption.

vi. Review along with the management, the annual financial statements before submission to the
Board for approval.

vii. Review along with the management, the quarterly and half yearly financial statements before
submission to the Board for approval.

vili. Review the adequacy of internal audit function;

ix. Review the Management's Discussion and Analysis before disclosing in the Annual Report;

%. Review statement of all related party transactions submitted by the management;

xi. Review Management letters or letter of internal Control weakness issued by statutory auditors and

¥ii. Oversee the determination of audit fees based on scope and magnitude, level of expertise
deployed and time required for effective audit and evaluate the performance of external
auditors.

Immediate reporting to the Board of Directors
Mo such issues arose at the Company during the year 2024 to report the Board of Directors immediately.

Immediate reporting to the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission.
No such circumstances arose during the year 2024 to report the BSEC immediately.

Quorum of the Audit Committee Meetings

The number of Directors required to constitute a quorum is determined by the Board including one
Independent Director. The Quorum of the Meeting must be filled until and unless the Independent
Director attends the meeting. The Company Secretary, M. Mahfuzur Rahman FCA act as the secretary of
the Committee.

Holding of the Audit Committee Meeting During 2024
As per the terms of Reference, the Audit Committee is required to hold at least four (4) meetings in a year.
During the year ended 31st December 2024, the Committee held four (4) meetings.

Audit Department

The audit department of the Company is independent from the internal control process in order to avoid
any conflict of interest and it is given appropriate standing within the company to carry out its assignments.
The management of CIPLC ensures that the internal audit staff performs their duties with objectivity and
impartiality.

Nomination & Remuneration Committee
The Company has formed a Nomination & Remuneration Committee as a sub-committee of the Board. It
has been constituted by 5 (five) members including an independent director, Mr. Md. Rashedur Rahman
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who is the Chairperson of the Committee. All members of the Committee are non-executive directors M.
Mahfuzur Rahman FCA acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

Terms of Reference of NRC

1. Formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a
director and recommend a policy to the Board, relating to the remuneration of the directors, top
level executive, considering the following:

a) the level and compositions of remuneration is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain and
motivate suitable directors to run the company successfully-;

b) the relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance
benchmarks; and

c) Remuneration to directors, top level executive involves a balance between fixed and incentive pay
reflecting short and long-term performance objectives appropriate to the working of the company
and Its goals.

2. Devising a policy on Board's diversity taking into consideration age, gender, experience, ethnicity,
educational background and nationality.

3. Identifying persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in top level
executive position in accordance with the criteria laid down, and recommend their appointment and
removal to the Board.

4. Formulating the criteria for evaluation of performance of independent directors and the Board.

5. identifying the company’s needs for employees at different levels and determine their selection
transfer or replacement and promotion criteria; and

6. Developing, recommending and reviewing annually the company’s human resources and training policies.

Quorum of the NRC Meeting
The number of Directors required to constitute quorum is determined by the Board in presences of either
two members or two third of the members of the committee whichever is higher, where presence of an
Independent Director is must.

Holding of the NRC Meeting During 2024
As per the terms of Reference, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee is required to hold at least
one (1) meeting in a year. During the year ended 2024, the Committee held two (2} meeting.

External or Statutory Auditors

Crystal Insurance PLC was not engaged or received any services mentioned in section (7) of CG from
external auditors, M/S. Mahfel Hug & Co, other than statutory audit No partner or employees of the
external audit firms was possess any share of the company during the tenure of their audit assignment.
Existing auditors M/S. Mahfel Huq & Co, have conducted the audit works for the year 2024. They are
eligible for re-appointment for the year 2025.

Reporting and Compliance of Corporate Governance
The company obtained a certificate from a practicing Professional Chartered Accountants, M/S. Jobair
Satter & Co, regarding compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance Code of the Commission. M/S.
Jobair Satter & Co, Chartered Accountants was appointed as the Compliance Auditor of the Company at
the 24th AGM held on 31st March, 2024, which will expire in the 25th AGM and they are eligible for
appointment as Statutory Auditors for the year 2025.

Maintaining a Website
The company has an official website linked with the website of the exchanges www.ciplcbd.com The
company made available the detailed disclosures on its website as required under the listing regulations
of the stock exchanges.
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Management's Discussion and
Detailed analysis

In compliance with regulatory reguirements under 1(5) (xxv) of BSEC Corporate Governance Code, 2018
this document provides a detailed analysis of the position, operations, and financial outcomes of Crystal
Insurance PLC. The discussion also includes an overview of business strategy, accounting policies, changes
in accounting policies and estimation, analysis of financial performance, financial and economic scenario
of domestic & global, risk assessment and mitigation plan, future business plan and human capital.

Crystal Insurance Progress

The Company achieved a reasonable progress in 2024 despite challenges in the Insurance sector continued
to experience prolonged slowdown in growth. Congealing our position as one of the leading Insurance
Company in Bangladesh.

Business Strategy

Our strategy of diversifying the business conglomerate and sustained focus on collection our low-cost
premium, has helped us deliver steady performance during the year 2024. We made great steps to focus
on impraving our capabilities across the businesses and enhancing our core business and services for our
valuable clients.

Financial and Economic Scenario

Domestic

According to the provisional estimation of Bangladesh Bureau of Statistics (BBS), GDP growth rate for FY
2023-24 stood at 5.82 percent as against 5.78 percent in the final estimates for FY 2022-23, As per the
provisional estimate for FY 2023-24, the size of GDP in current market prices is Tk.50,48,027 crore or USD
459 billion, which was Tk.44,90,842 crore or USD 452 billion in the previous fiscal year.

Global

In the World Economic Outlook Update, July 2024, International Monetary Fund (IMF), growth is expected
to remain stable at 3.2 percent in 2024 and 3.3 percent in 2025, The forecast for global economic growth
is broadly unchanged from that in the April 2024 Outlook. Growth in advanced economies is expected to
remain stable at 1.7 percent in 2024 and 1.8 percent in 2025. Growth of the United States is projected to
rise at 2.6 percent in 2024 but slow down to 1.9 percent in 2025, partly due to moderate consumption. In
emerging market and developing economies, however, growth is expected to remain stable at 4.3 percent
during 2024 and 2025.

Accounting Policies and Estimation for Preparation of Financial Statements

Annual Financial Statements comprising with the Financial Position as at 31st, December 2024 and the
Statement of Profit or loss and other Comprehensive income, Profit or Loss Appropriation, Consolidated &
specific class of business revenue accounts, statement of cash flows, statement of changes in equity for the
year along with the notes to the financial statements including a summary.
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Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimation

For the reporting year, there was no change in accounting policies and estimation in financial statements
for the year ended 31st December, 2024.

Comparative Analysis of Financial Performance

The key operating and financial data for the last five years have been shown at below-

BDT in Million

Particulars 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
Gross Premium 813.04 710.74 684.85 617.44 598.42
Net Premium 561.79 476.36 479.19 390.50 388.11
Gross Claim 236.92 214.04 62.03 61.10 59.64
Underwriting Profit 154.21 142.16 137.44 118.07 144.00
Net Profit Before Tax 187.72 146.01 130.24 134.70 149.92
Net Profit After Tax 146.58 128.83 115.16 11559 122.55
Total Asset 2,059.61 | 1,907.42 | 1,838.05 | 1,598.50 | 1,454.30
Total Liability 702.75 680.31 672.74 528.07 458.57
Balance of Fund 227.36 192.50 192.87 158.54 156.67
Shareholders' Equity 1,129.50 | 1,034.61 972.43 911.89 839.07
No. of shares 44,00 40.00 40.00 40.00 40.00
Face Value 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00
NAV per share 25.67 25.87 2431 22.8 20.98
Earnings per share 3.12 3.05 2,72 2.83 4.58

Risk Assessment and mitigation plan

The vital factors ensuring sound health of an insurance industry are identifying, measuring, monitoring
and controlling various types of risks. In addition to the traditional risks faced by the Insurance Company
in financial and market risks, various operational risks are created due to increasing use of automated
technology; necessity of reducing earnings volatility and achieving cost efficiencies; increasing focus by
regulators on legal, fraud, and compliance issues; Knowledge gap and lack of supervision etc.

In order to face the ongoing challenges of increased competition and expansion of diversified business of
CIPLC, it has undertaken some principles on risk management. The risk mitigation areas are liquidity risk,
Market risk, operational risk, Strategic risk, Anti money Laundering (AML) risk, Environmental risk etc. For
Mitigation all risk, the Company maximizes the wealth at financial statement, risk identification and
mitigation process are elaborately discussed in note no.2.32 of notes to the financial statements.

Future business plan

Crystal Insurance PLC perform a wide range of activities such as service designing, preparing contract and
policy, marketing and selling, underwriting, rating, reinsurance and other services and claim settlement. To
intensify the business, CIPLC is developing new Insurance products; Service diversification pricing policy;
monitoring; legal reforms; effective reinsurance management etc.
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Human Capital

Human Resource Department has the responsibility of energizing, developing, retaining and attracting
talented and ensures the right persons in right place. Human capital mission in Crystal Insurance aims to
be a leader in providing quality and value added Insurance services. The Company is leaves in certain core
values as practiced by all employees to meet the mission and the broader vision of the organization. We
continued to invest in people to enhance and upgrade their skill sets through various training programs at
different institutions.
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[As per condition Na. 1(5) Go)]
Declaration on Corporate Governance
by CEO and CFO

The Board of Directors

Crystal Insurance PLC

DR Tower (14th floor), Purana Paltan
Box Culvert Road, Dhaka-1000.

Subject: Declaration on Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st December 2024.

Dear Sirs,

Pursuant to the condition No. 1{5} (xxvi}] imposed vide the Commission’s Notification
MNo.SEC/CMRRCD/2006/158/207/Admin,/80 Dated 3rd June, 2018 under section 2CC of the Securities and Exchange
Ordinance, 1969, we do hereby declare that:

1. The Financial Statements of Crystal Insurance PLC for the year ended on 31st December 2024 have been
prepared in compliance with International Accounting Standards (IAS) ar International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS), as applicable in the Bangladesh and any departure there from has been adequately
disclosed;

2. The estimates and judgments related to the financial statements were made on a prudent and reasonable
basis, in order for the financial statements to reveal a true and fair view;

3. The form and substance of transactions and the Company's state of affairs have been reasonably and fairly
presented in its financial statements;

4. Toensure above, the Company has taken proper and adequate care in installing a system of internal control
and maintenance of accounting records;

5. Our internal auditors have conducted periodic audits to provide reasonable assurance that the established
policies and procedures of the Company were consistently followed; and

6. The management's use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparing the financial statements is
appropriate and there exists no material uncertainty related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

In this regard, we also certify that:

(i) We have reviewed the financial statements for the year ended on 31st December 2024 and that to the best
of our knowledge and belief:

{a) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

{b) these statements collectively present true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance
with existing accounting standards and applicable laws.

{ii} There are, to the best of knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the
year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code of conduct for the Company’'s Board of
Directors or its members.

Sincerely Yours.

A,

. J
5 M Shahidullah Md. Saydul Islam
Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Office
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Auditor's Report on Corporate Governance Guidelines

[Certificate as per condition no. 1(5) (xoovii)]

lobair Satter & Cao.

Jobair Sarter & Cao. Chartered Accountants

Charmred  Acccursant Corporate address

Rupsha Tower (8% flacr), Flat 84,
Road 17, Banani CfA, Dhaka-1z13

T: +28 ogba3 Frooyy
E: ask{ijobalrsatier.cam

Report to the Shareholders of bt b L

Crystal Insurance PLC
On

Compliance on the Corporate Governance Code

We have examined the compliance status to the Corporate Governance Code by Crystal Insurance PLC
{“the Company”) for the year ended 32 December 2024. This Code relates to the notification no.
BSEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 03 June 2018 of the Bangladesh Securities and Exchange
Commission and its subsequent amendments as on the reporting date.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance Code is the responsibility of the Company. Our
examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the Management
in ensuring compliance to the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code.

This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of the
Corporate Governance Code as well as the provisions of relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards (BSS)
as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh (ICSB) In so far as those standards are
not inconsistent with any condition of this Corporate Governance Code.

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required, and after
due scrutiny and verification thereof, we report that, in our opinion:

{a) The Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Code as stipulated in
the above-mentioned Corporate Governance Code issued by the Commission;

(b} The Company has complied with the provisions of the relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards
{BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Secretaries of Bangladesh {IC5B) as required by this
Code;

{c) Proper books and records have been kept by the Company as required under the Companies Act,
13954, the securities laws and other relevant laws; and

{d) The Governance of the Company is satisfactory

For Jobair Satter & Co.
Chartered Accountants

]
|

Mohammad Jobair Rahman Khan FCA
Dhala, 23 February 2025 Managing Partner
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[As per condition Mo. 1(5) sooi)]

BSEC Corporate Governance Code

Status of compliance with the conditions imposed by the Commission’s Motification No.
SEC/CMRRCD/2006-158/207/Admin/80 dated 3 June 2018 issued under section 2CC of the Securities and
Exchange Ordinance, 1969:

(Report under Condition No. 9)

Condition Title Compliance Status Remarks
No. (PutV in the (if any)
appropriate column)
- Complied Not
Complied |
3  Board of Directors | il |
1(1) Size of the Board of Directors: v

The total number of members of a
Company's Board of Directors (hereinafter
referred to as “Board”) shall not be less than
5 (five) and more than 20 (twenty). |
L12) | Independent Directors
12)a) At least one-fifth (1/5) of the total number of v
directors in the Company's Board shall be
Independent Directors; any fraction shall be
considered to the next integer or whole
number for calculating number of
e | Independent Director(s); : — :
2B Who either does not hold any share in the | v
Company ar holds less than one percent (1%)
shares of the total paid-up shares of the
Company; .
1(2)(b)(ii) Who is not a sponsor of the Company or is ' W
not connected with the Company’s any
sponsar ar director or nominated director or
shareholder of the Company or any of its
associates, sister concerns, subsidiaries and
parents or holding entities who holds one
percent (1%) or more shares of the total paid-
up shares of the Company on the basis of
family relationship and his or her family also
shall not hold above mentioned shares in the
Company. 5
L(2) (b)) Who has not been an executive of the | W
Company in immediately preceding 2 (two)
financial years;

o
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1{2)(b)(iv)

1{2)(bl{v)

Who does not have any other relationship,
whether pecuniary or otherwise, with the
Company or its subsidiary or associated
Companies;

Wheo is not a member or TREC (Trading Right
Entitlement Certificate) holder, director or
officer of any stock Exchange.

1{2)(b){vi)

Who is not a shareholder, director excepting
independent director or officer of any
member or TREC holder of Stock Exchange or
an intermediary of the capital market;

1{2)(b)(vii)

Wheo is not a partner or an executive or was
not a partner or an executive during the
preceding 3(three) years of the concerned
company’s statutory audit firm or audit firm
engaged in internal audit services or audit
firm conducting special audit or professional
certifying compliance of this Code;

1(2)(b){viii)

Who is not independent director in more
than 5(five} listed companies;

1{2){b)(ix)

Who has not been convicted by a court of
competent jurisdiction as a defaulter in
payment of any loan or any advance to a
bank or a MNon- Bank financial Institution
(NBFI}; and

1{2}(b)(x)

1{2)(c)

Who has not been convicted for a criminal
offence involving moral turpitude;

The Independent director (s) shall be
appointed by the Board and approved by the
sharehaolders in the Annual General Meeting
(AGM);

1{2)(d)

The post of independent director(s} cannot
remain vacant for more than 30 [(ninety)
days; and

1{2)(e)

O

The tenure of office of an independent
director shall be for a period of 3 (three)
years, which may be extended for 1l{one)
tenureonly: _

Qualification of Independent Director

1(3)(a)

Independent  director shall be a
knowledgeable individual with integrity who
is able to ensure compliance with financial
laws, regularity requirements and corporate
laws and can make meaningful contribution
to the business;
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1(3)(b)(i) Business Leader who is or was a promoter or v
director of an unlisted company having
minimum paid-up-capital of Tk. 100.00
million or any listed company or a member of
any national or international chamber of
commerce or business association; or

1{3) (b)) Corparate Leader who is or was a top level v
executive not lower than Chief Executive
Officer or Managing Director or Deputy
Managing Director or Chief Financial Officer
or Head of Finance or Accounts or Company
Secretary or Head of Internal Audit and
Compliance or Head of Legal Service or a
candidate with equivalent position of an
unlisted company having minimum paid-up-
capital of Tk. 100.00 million or of a listed
company,or i
Former official of government or statutory or v
autonomous or regulatory body in the
position not below 5 Grade of the national
pay scale, who has at least educational
background of bachelor degree in economics
or commerce or business or Law: or

{3 b){iv) University Teacher who has educational v
background in Economics or Commerce or
Business Studies or Law; or

1(3){b){v) Professional who is or was an advocate v
practicing at least in the High Court Division
of Bangladesh Supreme Court or a Chartered
Accountant or Cost and Management
Accountant or Chartered Financial Analyst or
Chartered Certified Accountant or Certified
Public Accountant or Chartered Management
Accountant or Chartered Secretary or
equivalent gualification;

1(3){c) The independent director shall have at least v
10 (ten) years of experiences in any field
mentioned in clause (b);

1(3)(d) In special cases, the above gualifications or N/A
experiences may be relaxed subject to prior
approval of the Commission.

13)(b)(i)

1(4) Duality of Chairpersons of the Board of
Directors and Managing Director or Chief
Executive Officer:

1(4}(a) The positions of the Chairpersons of the W

Board and the Managing Director (MD) and
for Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) of the
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1(4)(b)

The Managing Director (MD) and / or Chief
Executive Officer [CEQ) of a listed company
shall not hold the same position in another
listed company;

1{4)(e)

The Chairperson of the Board shall be elected
from among the non-executive directors of
the company;

1{4)(d)

The Board shall clearly define respective roles
and responsibilities of the Chairperson and
the Managing Director and [ or Chief
Executive Officer;

1{4)(e)

In the absence of the Chairperson of the
Board, the remaining members may elect one
of themselves from non-executive directors
as Chairperson for that particular Board's
meeting; the reason of absence of the regular
Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the
minutes.

1(5)

The Directors’ Report to Shareholders

1{5)(1)

An industry outlook and possible future
developments in the industry;

1(5)(ii)

The  segment-wise or  product-wise
performance;

1{5){iii)

Risks and concerns including internal and
external risk factors, threat to sustainability
and negative impact on environment, if any;

1(5){iv)

A discussion on Cost of Goods Sold, Gross
Profit Margin and Met Profit Margin, where
applicable;

N/A

" A discussion on continuity of any
extraordinary activities and their implications
lgain or loss);

MN/A

The
Company
has no such
gain/loss;

1{5) (wi}

A detailed discussion on related party
transactions along with a statement showing
amount, nature of related party, nature of
transactions and basis of transactions of all
related party transactions;

1(5) vii)

- 1(5)(viii)

A statement of utilization of proceeds raised
through public issues, rights issues and / or
any other instruments;

An explanation if the financial results
deteriorate after the company goes for initial
Public Offering (IPO), Repeat Public Offering
(RPO), Rights Share Offer, Direct Listing, etc;

N/A

N/A

1{5){ix}

An explanation on any significant variance
that occurs between Quarterly Financial
performances and Annual Financial
Statements;

N/A
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1{5){x)

A statement of remuneration paid to the
directors including independent directors;

1{5){xi)

A statement that the financial statements
prepared by the management of the issuer
company present fairly its state of affairs, the
result of its operations, cash flows and
changes in equity;

1(5)(xii)

A statement that proper books of account of
the issuer company have been maintained;

1{5)(xiii)

A statement that appropriate accounting
policies have been consistently applied in
preparation of the financial statements and
that the accounting estimates are based on
reasonable and prudent judgment;

1(5)(xiv)

A statement that International Accounting
Standards (1AS) or International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS), as applicable in
Bangladesh, have been followed in
preparation of the financial statements and
any departure there from has been
adequately disclosed;

1{5){xv)

A statement that the system of internal
control is sound in design and has been
effectively implemented and monitored;

1{5){xvi)

1(5){xvii)

A statement that minority shareholders have
been protected from abusive actions by, or in
the interest of, controlling shareholders
acting either directly or indirectly and have
effective means of redress;

N/A

A staterment that there is no significant doubt
upon the issuer company’s ability to continue
as a going concern, if the issuer company is
not considered to be a going concern, the
fact along with reasons there of shall be
disclosed;

No doubt
regarding
going
CONCEFT
issue.

145) {evii)

An explanation that significant deviations
from the last year's operating results of the
issuer company shall be highlighted and the
reasons thereof shall be explained;

1(5){xix)

A statement where key operating and
financial data of at least preceding 5 (five}
years shall be summarized;

1{5)(xx)

An explanation on the reasons if the issuer
company has not declared dividend (cash or
stock) for the year;

1{5) (i)

Board's statement to the effect that no bonus
share or stock dividend has been or shall be
declared as interim dividend:
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1{5) {xxii)

The total number of Board meeting held
during the year and attendance by each
director;

1(5) (i)

A report on the pattern of shareholding
disclosing the aggregate number of shares
{along with name-wise details where stated
below) held by:_ I

1(5)(xxiii)(a)

Farent or Subsidiary or Associated Companies
and other related parties (name-wise details);

N/A

1{5) (xxiii)(b)

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, Company
Secretary, Chief Financial Officer, Head of
Internal Audit and Compliance and their
spouses and minor children (name-wise
details);

N/A

1{5)(odii)(c)

Executives; and

N/A

1{5) (exiii){d)

Shareholders holding ten percent (10%) or
more voting interest in the company (name-
wise details);

1(5)(xxiv)

In case of the appointment or reappointment
of a director, a disclosure on the following
information to the shareholders:

1{5) {xxiv)(a)

A brief resume of the director;

=t

1{5)(xexiv)(b)

| 1(5){xxiv)ic)

_functional areas; and

Mature of his her expertise in specific

Names of companies in which the person also
holds the directorship and the membership
of committees of the Board;

1{5) [oev)

A Management's Discussion and Analysis
signed by CEQ or MD presenting detailed
analysis of the company's position and
operations along with a brief discussion of
changes in the financial statements, among
others, focusing on:

1{5){xxv){a)

Accounting  policies and estimation for

_preparation of financial statements;

1{5){xxv)(b)

Changes in accounting policies and
estimation, if any, clearly describing the
effect on financial performance or results and
financial position as well as cash flows in
absolute figure for such changes;

1{5)bouv)(c)

Comparative analysis (including effects of
inflation) of financial performance or results
and financial position as well as cash flows for
current financlal vyear with immediate
preceding five years explaining reasons
thereof;

Svnaal Report 2024

111



gD B

1(5) pocv) (d)

Compare such financial perﬁ:ﬁﬂance or
results and financial position as well as cash
flows with the peer industry scenario;

1{5)(xxv)(e)

Briefly explain the financial and economic
scenario of the country and the globe;

1{5)poev)if)

Risks and concerns issues related to the
financial statements, explaining such risk and
concerns mitigation plan of the company;
and

1{5)puevle)

Future plan or projection or forecast for
company's operation, performance and
financial position, with justification thereof,
i.e., actual position shall be explained to the
shareholders in the next AGM;

1(5) [xoxwi)

| US)poevi)

Declaration or certification by the CEO and
the CFO to the Board as required under

condition Mo. 3 (3) shall be disclosed as per
Annexure-A; and

The report as well as certificate regarding
compliance of conditions of this Code as
required under condition MNo. 9 shall be
disclosed as per Annexure-B and Annexure-C,

| ue)

‘Meetings of the Board of Directors

The company shall econduct its Board
Meetings and record the minutes of the
meetings as well as keep required books and
records in line with the provisions of the
relevant Bangladesh Secretarial Standards
{BSS) as adopted by the Institute of Chartered
Secretaries of Bangladesh {ICSB) in so far as
those standards are not inconsistent with any
condition of this Code.

1(7)

Code of Conduct for the Chairperson, other
Board members and Chief Executive Officer

“1(7)(a)

The Board shall lay down a code of conduct,
based on the recommendation of the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee
{NRC) at condition No. 6, for the Chairperson
of the Board, other Board members and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company;

17)(b)

The code of conduct as determined by the
NRC shall be posted on the website of the
company including, among others, prudent
conduct and behavior; confidentially; conflict
of interest, compliance with laws, rules and
regulations; prohibition of insider trading;
relationship with environment, employees,
customers and suppliers; and independency.
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| Governance of Board of Directors of

Subsidiary Company:

Pt 5

Provisions relating to the composition of the
Board of the holding company shall be made
applicable to the composition of the Board of
the subsidiary company;

N/A

| ciCLhas no

Subsidiary
Company

At least 1 (one) independent director on the
Board of the holding company shall be a
director on the Board of the subsidiary

COMpany;

The minutes of the Board meeting of the
subsidiary company shall be placed for
review at the following Board meeting of the
holding company;

N/A

N/A

CICL has no
Subsidiary
Company

| cicL has no

Subsidiary
Company

2(d)

The minutes of the respective Board meeting
of the holding company shall state that they
have reviewed the affairs of the subsidiary
company also;

N/A

CICL has no
Subsidiary
Company

2(e)

The Audit Committee of the holding company
shall also review the financial statements, in
particular the investments made by the
subsidiary company.
Managing Director (MD) or Chief Executive
Officer (CEO), Chief Financial Officer ({CFO),
Head of Internal Audit and Compliance
(HIAC) and Company Secretary.-

N/A

CICL has no
Subsidiary
Company

3(1)
3(1)(a)

3(1)(b) |

Appointment

The Board shall appoint a Managing Director
{MD) or Chief Executive Officer (CEO), a
Company Secretary (CS), a Chief Financial
Officer (CFO), and a Head of Internal Audit

and Compliance [HIAG);

The position of the managing Director (MD)

or Chief Executive Officer (CEQ), Company
Secretary (CS), Chief Financial Officer (CFQ),
and Head of Internal Audit and Compliance
(HIAC) shall be filed by different individuals;

3(1)(c)

The MD or CEQ, C5, CFO and HIAC of a listed
company shall not hold any executive
position in any other company at the same
time;

3(1)(d)

The Board shall clearly define respective
roles, responsibilities and dufies of the CFO,

the HIAC and the C5;
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3(1)(e)

3(2)

The MD or CEQ, C5, CFO and HIAC shall not
be removed from their position without
approval of the Board as well as immediate
dissemination to the Commission and stock
exchange(s).

Requirement to attend Board of Directors’

Meetings

3(3)

Duties of Managing Directors (MD) or Chief
Executive Officer (CEQ) and Chief Finandial
Officer(CFO):

3(3)(a)(i)

343)(a)lii)

These statement do not contain any
miaterially untrue statement or omit any
material fact or contain statements that
might be misleading; and

These statements together present a true
and fair view of the company’s affairs and are
in compliance with existing accounting
standards and applicable laws;

3(3)(b}

The MD or CEO and CFO shall also certify that
there are, to the best of knowledge and
belief, no transactions entered into by the
company during the vyear which are
fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the code
of conduct for the company’s Board or its
members:

3(3)(c)

The certification of the MD or CEQ and CFO

| shall be disclosed In the Annual Report.

Board of Directors’ Committee:

For ensuring good governance in the
company, The Board shall have at least
following sub — committees:

Afi)

Audit Committee; and

=,

Aii)
5

Nunjinatian and Remuneration Committee.

Audit Committee:

=

5(1)

Responsibility to the Board of Directors

5{1)(a)

The company shall have an Audit Committee
as a sub-committee of the Board;

5{1)(b)

5(1)(c)

The Audit committee shall assist the Board in
ensuring that the financial statements reflect
true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company and in ensuring a good monitoring

| system within the business; :
The Audit Committee shall be responsible to

the Board; the duties of the Audit Committee
shall be clearly set forth in writing.

5(2)

Constitution of the Audit Committee

5(2)(a)

The Audit Committee shall be composed of at
least 3 {three) members;
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5(2)(b}

The Board shall appoint members of the
Audit Committee who shall be non-executive
directors of the company excepting
Chairpersons of the Board and shall include
at least 1{one) independent director;

5(2)(c)

All members of the audit committee should
be "financially literate” and at least 1l{one)
member shall have accounting or related
financial management background and 10
{ten) years of such experience;

5(2)(d)

When the term of service of any Committee
member expires or there is any circumstance
causing any committee member to be unable
to hold office before expiration of the term of
service, thus making the number of the
committee members to be lower than the
prescribed number of 2 {three} persons, the
Board shall appoint the new Committee
member to fill up the vacancy immediately or
not later than 1 (one) month from the date of
vacancy in the Committee fo ensure
continuity of the performance of work of the
Audit Committee;

5(2)(e)

The company secretary shall act as the
secretary of the Committee;

5{2)(f)

s

independent director.

The guorum of the Audit Committee meeting
shall not constitute without at least 1 (one)

Chairperson of Audit Committee

5(3)(a)

5(3)(b}

The Board shall select 1{one) member of the
Audit Committee to be Chairperson of the
Audit Committee, who shall be an
independent director;

In the absence of the Chairperson of the
Audit Committee, the remaining members
may elect one of themselvas as Chairperson
for that particular meeting, in that case there
shall be no problem of constituting a quorum
as required under condition No. 5(4){b) and
the reasson of absence of the regular
Chairperson shall be duly recorded in the
minutes,

5(3)(c)

Chairperson of the Audit Committee shall
remain present in the Annual General
Meeting (AGM);

5(4)

Meeting of the Audit Committee

5{4)(a)

The Audit Committee shall conduct at least
its four meetings in a financial year;
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5(4)(b)

5(5)

_director is a must.

The quorum of the meetmg of the Audit
Committee shall be constituted in presence
of either two members or two-third of the
members of the Audit Committee, whichever
is higher, where presence of an independent

Role of Audit Committee

The Audit Committee shall:

5(5)(a)

Oversee the financial reporting process;

5(5){b}

Monitor choice of accounting policies and
principles;

5(5)(c)

Monitor Internal Audit and Compliance
process to ensure that it is adeguately
resourced, Including approval of the Internal
Audit and Compliance Plan and review of the
Internal Audit and Compliance Report;

5{5)(d)

5(5)(e)

Oversee hiring and performance of external

auditors; _
Hold meeting with the external or statutnn.r

auditors for review of the annual financial
statements before submission to the Board
for approval or adoption;

5(5)(f)

Review along with the management, the
annual financial statements before
submission to the Board for approval;

5(5)(g)

5{5){h}

Review along with the management, the
quarterly and half yearly financial statements
before submission to the Board for approval;

Review the adequacy of internal audit
function;

5(5)(i)

Review the Management’s Discussion and
Analysis before disclosing in the Annual
Report; o

' 5(5)(j)

Review statement of all related party
transactions submitted by the management;

5(5)(k)

Review Management Letters or Letter of
Internal Control weakness issued by the
statutory auditors;

5(5)(0)

5{5){m)

Oversee the determination of audit fees
based on scope and magnitude, level of
expertise deployed and time required for
effective audit and evaluate the performance

_of external auditors; and _
Oversee whether the proceeds raised

through Internal Public Offering (IPO) or
Repeat Public Offering (RPO) or Rights Share
Offer have been utilized as per the purpose
stated in relevant offer document or
prospectus approved by the Cammission.

N/A
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5(6)

Reporting of the Audit Committee

: i LE

5{6)(a)(i)

5(6){al(in){a)

The Audit Committee shall report on its
achwtles 1o the Board.
Hepnrt on conflicts of interests;

[

N/A

5{6)(a)(iil{b)

5(6)(a)ii)(c)

Suspected or presumed fraud or irregularity
or material defect identified in the internal
audit and compliance process or in the
financial statements;

Suspected mfnngement of Faws regulatory
compliances including securities related laws,
rules and regulations; and

N/A

N/A

5(6)(a)lii)(d)

Any other matter which the Audit Committee
deems necessary shall be disclosed to the
Board immediately;

5(6)(b)

Reporting to the Authorities

T R

If the Audit Committee has reported to the
Board about anything which has material
impact on the financial condition and results
of operation and has discussed with the
Board and the management that any
rectification is necessary and if the Audit
Committee finds that such rectification has
been unreasonable ignored, the Audit
Committee shall report such finding to the
Commission, upon reporting of such matters
to the Board for three times or completion of
a period 6isix) months from the date of first

| reporting to the Board, whichever is earlier. |
Reporting to the Shareholders and General

Investors

N/A

Report on activities carried out by the Audit
Committee, including any report made to the
Board under condition MNo. 5(6)(a){ii} above
during the vyear, shall be signed by the
Chairperson of the Audit Committee and
diselosed in the annual report of the issuer
company.

N/A

6

-

(NRC):

Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Hespnnsihll_lty to the Board of Directors

6(1)(a)

The company shall have a Nomination and
Remuneration Committee (NRC) as a sub-
committee of the Board;
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6(1)(b)

The MRC shall assist the Board in formulation
of the nomination criteria or policy for
determining gualifications, positive
attributes, experiences and independence of
directors and top level executive as well as a
policy for formal process of considering
remuneration of directors, top level
executive;

6(1)(c)

The Terms of Reference (TOR) of the NRC
shall be clearly set forth in writing covering
the areas stated at the condition No. 6(5) (b).

6(2)

Constitution of NRC

6(2)(a)

The Committee shall comprise of at least
three members including an independent
director;

6(2)(b)

All members of the Committee shall be non-
executive directors;

6(2)(c)

Members of the Committee shall be
nominated and appointed by the Board;

6(2)(d)

6(2)(e)

The Board shall have authority to remove and
appoint any member of the Committes;

In case of death, resignation, disqualification,

or removal of any member of the Committee
or in any other cases of vacancies, the board
shall fill the vacancy within 180 (one hundred
eighty) days of occurring such vacancy in the
Committee;

6(2)(f)

6(2)(g)

The Chairperson of the Committee may
appoint or co-opt any external expert and/ or
member{s) of staff to the Committee as
advisor who shall be non-voting member, If
the Chairperson feels that advice or
suggestion from such external expert and [ or
member(s) of staff shall be required or

| valuable for the Commitiee;

The c;:h{ﬁény secreta-rir shall act as the

secretary of the Committee;

6(2)(h)

6(2)10)

The guorum of the NRC meeting shall not
constitute without attendance of at least an
independent director; -
No member of the NRC shall receive, either
directly or indirectly, any remuneration for
any advisory or consultancy role or
otherwise, other than Director's fees or
honorarium from the company.

| 613)
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6(3)(a)

The Board shall select 1 (one) member of the
MRC to be Chairperson of the Committes,
who shall be an independent director;

6(3){b}

In the absence of the Chairperson of the NRC,
the remaining members may elect one of
themselves as Chairperson for that particular
meeting, the reason of absence of the regular
Chairpersan shall be duly recorded in the
minutes;

6{3){c)

The Chairperson of the NRC shall attend the
annual general meeting {AGM) to answer the
queries of the shareholders;

6(4)

Meeting of NRC

6(4)(a)

The NRC shall conduct at least one meefing in
a financial year;

6(4)(b)

The Chairperson of the NRC may convey any
emergency meeting upon reguest by any
member of the NRC;

6(4)(c)

The guorum of the meeting of the NRC shall
be constituted in presence of either two
members or two third of the members of the
Committee, whichever is higher, where
presence of an independent director is must
as required under condition No. 6(2) (h);

6(4)(d)

The proceedings of each meeting of the NRC
shall duly be recorded in the minutes and
such minutes shall be confirmed in the next
meeting of the NRC.

6(5)

Role of the NRC

6(5)(a)

6{5){b)

MRC shall be independent and responsible or
accountable to the Board and to the
shareholders;

MRC shall oversee, among others, the
following matters and make report with
recommendation to the Board:

6(5)(b){i)

Formulating the criteria for determining
qualifications, positive  attributes and
independence of a director and recommend a
policy to the Board, relating to the
remuneration of the directors, top level
executive, considering the following:

6(5)(bl(i)(a)

6(5)(b){i)(b)

The level and composition of remuneration is
reasonable and sufficient to attract, retain
and motivate suitable directors to run the

company successfully;

The relationship of remuneration to
performance is clear and meets appropriate
performance benchmarks; and

Svnaal Report 2024

119



gD B

6(5)(b)(i){c)

Remuneration to directors, top level
executive involves a balance between fixed
and incentive pay reflection short and long-
term performance objectives appropriate to
the working of the company and its goal;

6(5)(b)(ii)

Devising a policy on Board’s diversity taking
into consideration age, gender, experience,
ethnicity, educational background and
nationality;

615)(b)(iii)

6(5){b}{iv)

6(5)(b}{v)

Identification persons who are qualified to
become directors and who may be appointed
in top level executive position in accordance
with the criteria laid down, and
recommended their appointment and
removal to the Board,

Formulating the criteria for evaluation of
performance of independent directors and
the Board;

|dentification the company's needs for
employees at different levels and determine
their selection, transfer or replacement and
promotion criteria; and

6(5){b){vi)

Developing, recormnmending and reviewing
annually the company's human resource and
training policies:

6{5)(c)

The company shall disclose the nomination
and remuneration pelice and the evaluation
criteria and activities of NRC during the year
at a glance in its annual report.

7

External or Statutory Auditors:

7(1)

The issuer company shall not engage its
external or statutory auditors to perform the
following services of the company, namely;

7(1)(0)

Appraisal or valuation service or fairness
opinions;

7(1){ii)

Financial information systems design and
implementation;

F{L) i)

Book-keeping or other services related to the
accounting records or financial statements;

7(1)(iv)

Broker-dealer services:

L

(1))
7(1){vi)

Actuarial services; 1.
Internal audit services or special audit

services;

=

Z{L){vii)

Any services that the Audit Committee
determines;

7{1){viii)

Audit or certification services on compliance
of corporate governance as reguired under
condition Mo. 9(1); and

120

Srnat Report 2024



.%; 5

F{L)(ix)

Any other service that creates conflicts of
interest.

7{2)

Mo parther or employees of the external
audit firms shall possess any share of the
company they audit at least during the
tenure of their audit assignment of that
company; his or her family members also
shall not hold any shares in the said
company;

7(3)

Representative of external or statutory
auditors shall remain present in the
Shareholders” Meeting (Annual general
Meeting or Extraordinary General Meeting)
to ensure the gueries of the shareholders.

[ 8(1)

| Maintaining a website by the Company: :
The company shall have an official website

linked with the website of the stock
exchange.

8(2)

e

The company shall keep the website
functional from the date of listing.

detailed disclosures on  its  website as
required under the listing regulations of the
concerned stock exchange (s).

The company shall make available the |

Reporting and Compliance of Corporation
Govermnance:

9(1)

The company shall obtain a certificate from a
practicing Professional Accountant or
Secretary | Chartered Accountant or Cost and
Management Accountant or Chartered
Secretary) other than its statutory auditors
or audit firm on yearly basis regarding
compliance of conditions of Corporate
Governance Code of the Commission and
shall such certificate shall be disclosed in the
Annual Report.

92)

9(3)

The professional who will provide the
certificate on compliance of this Corporate
Governance Code shall be appointed by the
shareholders in the annual general meeting.

The directors of the company shall state, in
accordance with the Annexure-C attached, in
the directors’ report whether the company

has complied with these condition or not.
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IDRA Corporate Governance Certificate and Code

Jobair Satter & Co.
(harvered Acccononm hartered Accountants
Corparate address

Rupsha Tawer (6% floor), Flat 64
Road 17, Banani CfA, Dhaka-1213

T: +88 og6a3 Froomy
E: askifljobalrsatter com
W e jobalrsatter.com

Report to the Shareholders of
Crystal Insurance Company Limited
on

Compliance on the Corporate Governance Code issued by IRDA

As per the corporate governance guidelines issued by Insurance Development and Regulatory
Authority (IDRA), we have examined the compliance status to the guideline by Crystal Insurance
PLC ("the Company”} for the year ended 31 December 2024. This guideline relates to the
notification no. 53.03.0000.075.22.025.2020.230 dated 19 October 2023 of IDRA (“the
authority”).

The authority has developed the guideline based on Insurance Act, 2010; Insurance
Development and Regulatory Authority Act, 2010 (section 15 of the act) as well as National
Insurance Policy, 2014 [clause 2.5(47)] to ensure good governance in the company.

Such compliance with the Corporate Governance guideline is the respansibility of the Company.
Our examination was limited to the procedures and implementation thereof as adopted by the
Management in ensuring compliance to the conditions of the corporate governance guidelines.
This is a scrutiny and verification and an independent audit on compliance of the conditions of
the guideline,

We state that we have obtained all the information and explanations, which we have required,
and after due scrutiny and verification thereof, we report that, in our opinion:

a) the Company has complied with the conditions of the Corporate Governance Guidelines as
stipulated in the above-mentioned guideline issued by the authority as per Annexure- A;
and

b) The Governance of the Company is satisfactory.

For Jobair Satter & Co.
Chartered Accountants

e
M@M

Mohammad Jobai Rahman iKhan FCA
Dhalka, 23 February 2025 Managing Partner

Enclosure: Annexure A isthe integral part of this certificate.
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Crystal Insurance PLC

Compliance status of Corporate Governance Guidelines issued by IDRA

Compliance status

Mot
complied

Clause Particulars

No. Complied

5 Governance framework

Governance frame work should have a system
which ensure the rights of the shareholders, v
stakeholders and policyholders through designing
appropriate policy.

6 The Board and its Directors
6.1. Composition of the Board The Board of the campany
The Board shall consist of at best 20 (twenty) comprise of 12 (Twelve)
members with minimum 2 (two) independent v directors including 2 (Two)
directors. Independent Directors as

per latest Form X1,

6.2. The Board and its directors fitness

The company should have a policy of appointing
and reappointing of directors emphasizing on the
Insurance Act, 2010.

The policy should include the disgualification for v
selecting directors, section of chairman and
vica-chairman.

Reasons for absence of chairman and
vice-chairman in the meeting shall be recorded in
the minutes.

6.3. Independent director

A. the there should prerequisites for selecting
independent director.

B. i. The Board shall appoint the independent
director and shareholder in the general meeting
shall ratify the appointment.

ii. Post of the independent

director shall not remain vacant for more than 90 v
days.

iii. Tenure of the independent director shall be for
3{three) years which can be extended for 1{one)
term only. After a cooling period of 1(one) term, he
can be eligible for reappointment.

C. Qualification of independent director-

There are some gqualification and experience shall
be construed as qualification of independent
director.
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Compliance status

Clause Particulars Not Remarks

complied

No. Complied

6.4. Role of the Board
The core respansibility of the Board is to guide the =
company for efficient and effective management
far attaining long term goal of the company. In this
regard, the Board shall formulate the policies and
governance guidelines.

| 6.5. Code of Conduct of the Board
The Board shall farmulate a code of Conduct for all
employees including the chairman, directors and v
Chief Executive Officer.

7 | Committees of the Board

7.1. To ensure good governance in the company,
the Board should have the following committees- i
(1) Audit Committee;

(2) Nomination & Remuneration Committee;

(3} Investment Committes;

(4) Risk Management Committee; and

(5) Policyholder Protection8 Compliance Committee.

7.2. Audit Committee

A. The committee shall review the financial v
statements as well as oversea the functions of
internal and external auditors.

B. Formation of Audit Committee

(1) The committee shall consist of 3 (three) members; v

(2) It comprises of 1{one)} non-executive director
other than the Chairman of the Board and
1{one) independent director.

(2) All members should have the literacy about
accounting and at least 19one) member should
have 10(ten) year relevant experience.

(4) Member vacancy shall be filled within 1{one)
manth;

(5) The Campany Secretary shall perform the
Investment Committee;

(4) Risk Management Committee; and

(5) Policyhalder Protection®& Compliance Committee.
role of secretary.

124 Anmaat Report 2024



% B %@L

Compliance status

Clause Particulars N Remarks

complied

No. Complied

C. The Chairman of the Audit Committee

1) Independent Director shall be the chairman of
the committee;

(2) Other member can act as the Chairman of the

meeting but an independent director shall be The chairman of the Audit

present t_he re; : : v Committee was present in
(3) The Chairman of the Audit Committee shall the last AGM.

attend the AGM;

(4) In the absence of the chairman, other members
of the committee can attend the AGM, but the
reason of absence of the chairman shall be
minute in the AGM minutes.

D. Meeting of the committee

I1) At least 4{four) meeting shall be conducted.
Meeting can be held with the requisition of any
members in case of any emergency; v

(2) the quorum of the meeting shall be minimum of
2 and 2/3rd members including 1(one)
independent director.

E. Role of the Audit Committee
The Board shall form a Terms of Reference (ToR) of v
the committee as per this guideline.

F. Rights of the committee
The committee shall have the access to the v
information related to its function,

G. Report of the committee

1) The committee shall report to the Board of its
regular activities;

(2] 1t shall also report the board for any sensitive
issued as defined in the guidelines; W

(3] 1t shall report to the authority in appropriate
case as defined in the guidaline;

(4) It shall also report the shareholders and publish
in the annual report.

There was no unusual
matter to be reported.

] Nomination & Remuneration Committee

A. Nomination & Remuneration Committee (MRC)
shall assist the board in evaluating and determining
the role and remuneration of employees including
the senior management.
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Particulars

B. Formation of NRC

(1) Committee members shall be appointed by the
Board;

(2) Al least there shall be 4&{four)] members
including 1(one) independent director;

(3) Chairman of the board ean be included in the
committee but he shall not be appointed as the
chairman of the committee;

{4) Board can appoint, remove any members and
reasons for removal shall be minuted;

(5) Vacancy of any member shall be filled within
180 (one hundred and eighty) days;

(6) Company Secretary shall act as the secretary;

Compliance status

Remarks
Not

Complied complied

C. Chairperson of NRC

{1) The board shall appoint 1{one) director as the
chairperson of the committee;

{2) Members can select a chairman in the absence
of the chairperson of the committee, but
reasons for absence of regular chairman shall
be minuted;

(2) Chairperson shall attend the AGM for responding
any gueries of the shareholders.

D. Meeting of NRC

(1} Atlest 2{two) meeting shall be conducted;

(2) Chairperson can hold any meeting on
emeargency basis;

{3} The quorum of the meeting shall be minimum
of 2 and 2/3rd members including 1({one)
independent director.

E. Role of NRC
The Board shall form a Terms of Reference (ToR) of
the committee as per this guideline.

Investment Committee

A&, The committee as the sub-committee of the board
shall oversea the investment portfolio the company.

B. Composition of the committee and its meeting

(1) The board shall nominate at least 5(five)
members in the committee including on
chairman;

(2) The gquorum of the meeting shall be 3(three).
CEO shall be the member of the committee as
ex-officio. CFO, Chief Investment Officer (CIO)
and Chief Risk Officer (CRO) can be invited in
the meeting.
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Particulars

C. Role of the committee The Board shall form a
Terms of Reference (ToR) of the committee as per
this guideline.

10

: Sk % —

Remarks

Compliance status

Not

Complied complied

Risk Management Committee

The committee shall act as sub-committee of the
board to assist the board in minimizing the risk.

B. Composition of the committee and its meeting

(1) The committee shall consist of at least 3{three)
members including 1{one) independent director.
One shall be the chairman of the committee.
Moreover, 1{one) from Audit Committee;

(2) The quorum of the meeting shall be 2{two). CEQ
shall be the member of the commitiee as
ex-officio. CFO, Chief Investment Officer (CIO)
and Chief Risk Officer (CRO) can be invited in
the meeting; (3) Company Secretary shall act as
the secretary of the committee.

No meeting minute has
v been shared with us.

C. Role of the committee
The Board shall form a Terms of Reference (ToR) of
the committee as per this guideline.

11

Policyholder Protection & Compliance Committee

A. The committee shall act as sub-committee of
the board to assist the board in minimizing the
grievance of the policyholders,

B. Composition of the committee and its meeting

(1) The committee shall consist of at least 3{thres)
members including 1ione) ndependent director.
One shall be the chairman of the committee,

(2) The quorum of the meeting shall be 2(twao).
Members can select a chairman in the absence
of the chairperson of the committee, but
reasons for absence of regular chairman shall
be minuted;

(3) Company Secretary shall act as the secretary of
the committee.

The committee  was
formed duly as per the
board meeting minutes.

No meeting minutes have
been shared with us.

C. Role of the committee The Board shall form a
Terms of Reference (ToR) of the committee as per
this guideline,

Snmaaf Report 2024

127



Eth

Particulars

Compliance status

Complied

Not
complied

Remarks

12 Senior Management & Key Personnel
(1) The company shall appoint CEQ, CFO, CS, CIO, The board appainted CIO
CRO and HIAC; and CRO at its 110" meeting
{2) they should be qualified persons; held on 09 February 2025,
(3) Board shall determine role and responsibilities v HioNieder| Boste ananoyed
of them: R
T o ‘B s o role and responsibilities of
(4) They shall no ﬂe appcrl;in BE DL crant ClO0 and CRO were not
company as executive position. eacad L G
12.3. Appointment of Actuaries Mot applicable for the
company as the company
operates non-life business.
i3 Other committees
The company may form other committees like
Corporate Social Responsibility {CSR), (Environment, No such information relating
Social and Governance (ESG), Integrity & Ethics v to these commitiees have
Committee, Reinsurance & Restoration Committee, been shared with us.
Asset Liability Management Committee.
14 Disclosable information of the Board and
its committees
{1) Company shall keep record of the proceeding of 1. Record of the board
the board meeting and shall disclose in meeting held during 2024
appropriate case; b} reflected in the Director's
{2} Code of Conduct of all employees including the Report 2024. But board's
chairman of the board, its members and CEOQ sub-committees’ meeting
shall be published; Infarmation was not found.
(3} Shall dlSd-DSIE among ::rthers—. . 5 pads  af  Coadic
a. MNo.of meeting of board and its committee held’ .
! published at the company
b. Name of the mandatory committees; —
c. Details of remuneration paid to directors .
including independent directors; 3. Director's remuneration
d. relevant other information. reflected in the Directors
Report, 2024,
15 Related Party transactions
The company should have a paolicy to identify the
related arty transactions and conducting the v
transactions.
16 Corporate Social Responsibility
The company must have some CSR activities and CSR activities of the
these shall be published in annual report. v company during 2024 have
been reflected in the
Annual Report 2024,
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MNo.

Particulars

Compliance status

Complied

Not
complied

% B %@L

Remarks

17 Policies of the company
In addition to the above policies, the following
policies will help to establish good governance
better-
17.1. Whistle Blowing Policy W
17.2. other policies such as-
Asset Liability Management Policy; Underwriting Code of Conduct and
Policy; Reinsurance Policy; Insurnance claim Human Resources . Policy
settlement Policy; Code of Conduct of empoluyees; have been shared with us,
CSR Policy; Sudhachar Policy: Gender equality v
Policy; Howewer, management has
Human Resource Management Policy; Monitory assured us tha? they will
Policy; Anti-Corruption Policy; develop and_ implement
Disparity Prevention Policy; rest of the polices.
ICT Palicy;
18 Disclosure initiatives
1) The company should have a website;
{2) Relevant information shall be updated in
: The company has
website, such as- s :
a. Annual Report along with audited financials; Akt
: : https://ciplcbd. ind
b. Feature of the various insurance policy; v Apkieiplcd conm,Ra
Cun_tact mfurmatmn_uf' all key persunsml:ll..lldlng A e
chairman, all chairman of sub-committee, : : .
: ; in compliance with the
directors, CEQ, advisor; Authority Guideline
d. Any other information as advised by the '
authority.
19 Corporate governance compliance
statement on annually
The annual compliance
The Company shall submit a annual compliance ctatement 2004 bas been
staternent with the authority by 31 January of the J forwarded to IDRA vide

following year.

email dated 29 lanuary
2025,
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Ethics and Compliance

Crystal Insurance PLC is always committed to establishing and maintaining the highest ethical standards

and business compliance. We have an “Employee Code of Conduct”- a code of ethical behavior for all
organization employees.

Managers of CIPLC are required to illustrate the highest standards of conduct and ethical behavior,
leaders/managers are expected to:

f [ ) ]
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Be diligent in Lead according to Create and maintain Contract the Human
enforcing the ethical the standards of an environment Resources Department
standards and taking ethical conduet, in where employees when assistance is
appropriate action if both words and feel comfortable needed.
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The employees” Cade of Conduct also specifies the grounds of punishment to prevent employees from
any unwanted behavior. For instance, an employee shall be liable to disciplinary actions, if he/she:

Is in corruption or may
reasonably be considered to be
corrupt etc.

Is convicted of any aoffence
invalving moral turpitude

Assumes a style of living beyond -

hisfher ostensible means
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The Code of Conduct gives focus on the following

Protecting the
privacy of Clients Avoiding
as well as the DrugfSubstance/Al

© b

Company's cohol Abuse and
Confidential illegal activities in Auoiding any
Information the waorkplace conflict of interest

Preventing Money
Laundering and
Jor Fraud

Protecting the
company’s assets 9
Professional Ethics

To develop the Crystal Insurance business, compliance should be seen as the highest priority, but rather
as a positive approach that is in all of our interests. Employees of all levels are committed to serving and
reflecting our shared values, Crystal Insurance is going to prepare its own Charter of Professional Ethics
that reflects our ambitions, commitments and principles of excellence. It sets out our fundamental ethical
principles and serves to guide our professional conduct.

Respect for rules and others

One of the key parts of our business is to comply with the applicable rules on professional conduct. These
rules go beyond simply applying the legal provisions and regulations currently in force. The conduct of
each individual should be guided by the principles of good faith and honesty. All of us are responsible to
comply with the law and regulations, particularly those that relate specifically to the insurance sector to
save the interests of all stakeholders.

Customer insight

To identify and gain a better understanding of the clients, CIPLC has put in place a series of procedures and
tools. The processes for Cover Notes, Certifications, and documentations for new clients and for creating
and updating claims and coverage files are governed by strict rules.

Respect for others
The notions of good faith, honesty, moral integrity, precision and professionalism govern the conduct of
every individual. Employees are expected to serve clients with loyalty, care, and discretion.

Respect for professional secrecy

The Employees of CIPLC are prohibited from using any confidential information of which they may
become aware in the course of their work to perform transactions, whether directly or indirectly, for their
profit or that of others.

Hnnuaf Report 2024 131



Bdbn %'@;

Transparency

To reduce the conflict in the future, the terms and conditions that will apply to the insurer and services
are communicated to the clients. Our employees have given clear information about the services,
insurance coverage, and settlement before engagement to the clients.

Meeting our commitments

Clients-oriented employees must be aware of the level of service that can be delivered to the client and
take care not to enter into commitments that cannot reasonably be met.

Collective disclosure requirements

If any anomalies are noticed by the employees, particularly about ethics, without fear of reprisals or
sanctions, they can directly alert the departmental head or senior management.

Combating money laundering and the financing of terrorism

CIPLC has introduced an internal Checklist an ways of combating money laundering and the financing of
terrorism. All employees are expected to remain vigilant in this regard. This vigilance is based upon
knowing their clients well. We do not engage in transactions or financial deals with individuals or
companies whose identity and/or activities it is not.

Integrity

Employees of CIPLC have judged any matter with their integrity as well as in terms of competencies. The
reputation and continued success of CIPLC largely depend on a shared commitment to the core value of
integrity. Respecting this value is the responsibility of each member of the company.

Conflict of interest
Employees are advised to take particular care when they are responsible for dealing with clients’
surveyors, agents on behalf of Crystal Insurance. Any failure to disclose a conflict of interest leads to a
disciplinary action.

Preventing conflicts of interest

To prevent conflicts of interest from arising, in particular by separating its premium, commission, claims,
etc., and adopting a collective approach to lending decisions by head office or branches, Crystal Insurance
has put in place decision-making systems.

Compliance with the laws and regulations

Crystal Insurance complies with all the prevailing laws and regulations of the country and maintains
reputation as a law-abiding organization and good corporate governance. Employees have been trained
and guided to conduct business in a compliant manner. The policy and procedures regarding business
process are prepared in adherence to the laws and regulations.

Communication of the statement of ethics & business practices.

All employees’ property is inducted to comply with the code of conduct and conform to the relevant laws
and regulations. HR continuously raises awareness on a regular interval among employees to ensure that
business decisions and actions undertaken by employees are completely in compliance with the prevalent
rules and regulations. HR Department makes sure that during the joining, employees read, understand
the Code of Conduct and acknowledge the same. The |leaders/managers of Crystal Insurance PLC are
mandatorily required to communicate and help their team members to understand how ethics apply to
their positions and everyday behavior.
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Whistle blowing

Whistle blowing is increasingly recognized as an important tool in the prevention and detection of
corruption and other malpractice. The clandestine nature of corrupt behavior means that it may never
come to light unless cases are reported by people who discover them in the course of their work.
Employees are encouraged to report any wrongdoing within the organization. The Head of Internal Audit
& Compliance and the Human Resources Divisions are the primary channels to report any incident. The
Reporting channels offer the employees the opportunity to report while maintaining their identity
confidential,

Crystal Insurance PLC's whistle-blowing procedures encourage employees to disclose concerns using
appropriate channels before these concerns become a serious problem, which might jeopardize our
reputation through negative publicity, regulatory investigation, fines, and for compensation.

However, from experience, Crystal Insurance PLC understands that an effective whistle-blowing policy

demands a shift in the culture. We have a department named Internal Audit & Compliance Department,
which is dedicatedly working to ensure effective controls mechanism in the entire business entity.
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Human Capital

Human Resource department has the responsibility of energizing, developing, retaining and attracting talented and
ensures the right persons in right place. Human capital mission in Crystal Insurance aims to be a leader in providing
quality and value added Insurance services. The Company Is leaves in certain core values as practiced by all
employees to meet the mission and the broader vision of the organization. We continued to invest in people to
enhance and upgrade their skill sets through various training programs at different institutions.

Category No. of Employee % of Total Employee
Male 257 82.90%
Female 53 17.10%
Total 310 100.00%
Employees

B Male [ Female
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Communication To Shareholders
And Stakeholders

Crystal Insurance PLC successfully conducted its 24" Annual General Meeting (AGM) using a hybrid
approach. The meeting combined physical atiendance at Trust Milonayaton, Old Airport Road,
Cantonment, Dhaka-1216 with participation through a digital platform.

Crystal Insurance PLC extended invitations to shareholders for both in-person and online participation.
Those attending physically experienced the traditional setling of the AGM, while others connected through
dedicated online links, ensuring widespread accessibility. This inclusive approach not only fostered
greater engagement but also demonstrated the company’s adaptability to evolving corporate governance
practices,

To facilitate active engagement, shareholders were granted access to the AGM platfarm 24 hours prior to
the start of the event. This allowed them to submit questions, queries, suggestions, and feedback in
advance, The company ensured that all submissions were addressed during the meeting by the relevant
authorities.

Representatives of the company, including the CEO, CFO and Exiernal Auditors, responded to the
shareholders' inputs, providing comprehensive answers to their concemns, clarifying queries and
acknowledging suggestions to ensure a transparent and productive discussion,
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Evaluation of Querterly Reports

BDT in Million
Particulars Qurtenly. Ferfosmance 2024 2023
Qi a2 a3
Gross premium income 199,17 | 134.69 193.60 | 235.59 | 813.04 | 710.74
Net premium income 131.54 134,54 142.59 153.12 561.79 476.36
Re-insurance commission earned 1100 | 2218 | 985 | 1432 | 5735 | 4815
Investment & others income 37.22 27.82 11.53 18.04 94.60 64.26
Total Income 179.75 184,54 163.96 185,49 713.73 588.78
 Operating Management expenses 123.88 | 13374 | 98.86 | 14825 | 504.74 | 40355 |
Non-operating Management expenses | 0.69 | 059 | 0.54 0.54 237 | 4959
Total expenses 12457 | 13434 | 118531 | 14880 | 526.02 | 44276
Net profit before tax 55.18 5020 45.65 36.69 187.72 146.01
Current year tax 15.27 8.96 11.12 4.79 41.14 17.19
Net profit after tax 39.92 A0.24 34,53 51.88 146,58 128 83
EPS 0.83 0.86 0.76 069 | 313 3.05

Investor Friendly Information

Dividend

12% cash dividend
proposed for 2024

Return on equity

For 2024 return on
equity was 12.19%

Gross premium

Gross Premium income of
2024 was BDT, 813.04 million

Net Claim

BDT. 149.07 million
net claim paid in 2024

Met Profit Margin
Net profit margin
for 2024 was
16.93%

Net Profit Margin: We are always thirsty to make money, if we are not able to do this, our efforts are
worthless, investors are also interested in the same. They contrast our margins with those of our competi-
tors and with the other investment opportunities they can afford. Generally, investor returns are better
when margins are high.

Dividend: The number of factors contribute to the company’s dividend payment policy. Dividends are
expected by the shareholders as a reward for their investment in a company, the management of CIPLC
always strives to uphold this sentiment by maintaining a strong track record of dividend payments.
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Return on Equity: The return on equity ratio, also known as the ROE, is a profitability metric that assesses
CIPLC 's capacity to make money from the investments of its shareholders. The CIPLC management's
success in using equity financing to support operations and expand the business is also indicated by ROE.
CIPLC made 12.19% return on equity for 2024.

Gross premium: Indicate total premiums collected for the entire period of coverage provided by contracts
entered into during the accounting period, make up gross general insurance premiums. They are acknow!-
edged in the year that the policy was issued, which is BDT. 813.04 million.

Net Claims: Claim payment is the benefit as specified by the policy made by the insured or the insured's
beneficiary. The company paid BDT. 149.07 net claim during the year 2024.

Stock Performance in DSE
The following chart presents Crystal Insurance Company Limited’s shares trading price during 2024 on the
Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited

Stock Performnace in DSE during 2024

116.70
1()?_..‘{:‘0 10535 94.90 98.90

86.50

83.00

64.40

it 1450 | 46,09 | 2620 | 56.70

Jan-24 Feb-24 Mar-24 Apr-24 May-24 Jun-24 Jul-24 Aug-24 Sep-24 Oct-24 Nov-24 Dec-24

Credit Rating of CIPLC

Crystal Insurance PLC maintains consistently high credit rating, which is very crucial for a non-life
insurance company. It reflects financial stability, enabling the company to secure favorable terms for
borrowing (although the company has no borrowings from banks and non-banking financial institutions)
and build trust with policyholders. A robust credit rating also signals reliability to regulatory bodies and
facilitates smooth business operations, reinforcing the company's position in the competitive insurance
market. Currently the company has the highest credit rating, i.e. AAA for Long term and ST-1 means
Strongest Ability to Meet Short Term Financial Commitments.

I
Credit Rating Declaration Date : 24 February 2025
________________________________ e
Long Term Entity Rating I AAA
Short Term Entity Rating { ST -1
________________________________ .—:_.____ U g
Outlook I Stable
________________________________ e e e
Expiry Date | 23 February 2026
________________________________ e L il e e L el ST R e R
Rated by i National Credit Ratings Ltd.
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Management review and Resposibility

Managing a non-life insurance company involves a multifaceted approach with various responsibilities
distributed across different departments and levels of management. At the strategic level, top
management formulates and executes plans, defining goals and ensuring the company's long-term
viability. Risk management is paramount, with the assessment and mitigation of risks handled by
management to maintain a balanced and resilient portfolio. Underwriting policies, guided by
management, strike a balance between risk and profitability, ensuring alignment with the company's risk
appetite. Claims processing, financial management, and regulatory compliance fall under the purview of
different departments overseen by management. Customer service, market research, technology
integration, and employee training also require managerial oversight, Regular performance evaluations,
effective communication with stakeholders, and crisis management planning contribute to the overall
success of the non-life insurance company. In essence, management plays a pivotal role in orchestrating
the company's strategic vision, operational efficiency, and adherence to industry standards in a dynamic
and regulated environment.

Furthermore, management is responsible for the following:

Management Responsibility

Consistent application of
reporting standards
Management is responsible for
consistent application of all relevant
financial reportingstandards

Fair Presentation of the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the
preparation and Tair presentation of the
finanecial statements under the financial
reporting  framework applicable in
Bangladesh. Without prejudice to formal
aspects of minor importance, the
accounting records were kept following

Keeping proper booksand
records

Management 12 responsible for
keeping proper books and records
and recording &l transactons
properly and, where applicable,
disclosed In the notes to the
financial statements

Managementis responsible for
risk  assessment at the
financial statements level,
which may lead to fraud.

138

the laws and regulations applicable in
Bangiadesh and the financial statements
have been duly drawn up by the board of
directors
Internal Control
Management is responsible for the
design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control to
prepare reliable financial statements,
including the fact that this internal
contral aims  at preventing and
detectingfraud and error
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Our Risk Management Framework

In the insurance industry, risk lurks around every corner, threatening to disrupt operations and challenge
profitability. CIPLC are entrusted with safeguarding the financial well-being of our clients, offering protection
against uncertainties and mitigate all risks through our risk management framework.

Unlike most other industries, risk management is already a core function of insurance companies. Business success
is inherently connected with risks. Since all the variables that influence and affect the business environment cannot
be controlled, you cannot avoid. CIPLC mitigate all risks by identifying, assessing, evaluating, and monitoring a
situation. Such systems are put in place to manage the risk, or its impact is called risk mitigation.

Risk Management Framework: step by step
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Prepare
The preparation stage of the RMF focuses on getting the organization ready to adopt a formalized risk management
strategy. This might include identifying organizational risks and determining key risk-management roles.

Categorize
The categorize stage is where organizations begin assessing the risks that have been identified. This may mean
assessing the impact of the various risks and prioritizing the risks that need to be addressed.

Select

The select stage involves choosing the controls that will be used to protect affected systems to minimize or mitigate
the risks that have been identified. These controls will vary widely from one system to the next. They may include
anything from adopting monitoring solutions to shaping policies that will help to alleviate concerns.

Implement
Once an organization has selected the solutions it will be adopting as part of its risk mitigation strategy, the next
stage is implementation. This is where the selected controls are put into place in an effort to head off risks that
might exist.

Assess

The assess stage comes after implementation of any selected solutions. It seeks to determine whether the selected
controls were implemented correctly and if those controls are delivering the desired result. This means making sure
any mechanisms that have been implemented are reducing risks in a guantifiable way without accidentally
introducing new risks in the process,

Authorize

In some instances, the authorize stage is tied to executive approval of the risk mitigation mechanisms that have
been put into place. More often, however, the authorize phase is more of an overview by senior members of the
organization who are looking to make sure that risk mitigation strategies are working and that those strategies
adhere to any applicable laws and policies that may exist within the organization.

Monitor
The monitor phase Is designed to provide sltuational awareness on an ongoing basis. Organizations should
continuously evaluate their risk mitigation strategies to ensure they continue to work as intended.
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Risk Mitigation Methods And Methodology

Risks cannot be eliminated completely but pay off when mitigated and managed properly.

Risk exposures arise from internal sources, such as employees, as well as external sources, such as computer
hackers. Risk assessment consists of identifying relevant risks, analyzing the extent of exposure to those risks, and
managing risks by proposing effective control procedures.

A risk can never be eliminated in full; it can merely be minimized to a certain reasonable extent. Appropriate risk
mitigation involves first identifying potential risks to a project and then planning for appropriate actions for
mitigating the potential risks. There remain a few broad strategies that are used in risk mitigation planning and
maonitoring, which are: Assume and accept risk, Avoidance of risk, Risk Mitigation, Controlling risk, Transference of
risk.

Mon-Life insurance risk refers to the potential events or circumstances that may result in financial losses for the
insurance company or policyholders. There are several remedies or strategies that can be employed to mitigate life
insurance risk.

Undsnariting
Procedure

Mitigation and
Wsthaodelomy

Persisiancy
Reviow

The Board of CIPLC, regularly receives risk reports and risk updates in an effort to promote risk transparency. In
order to ensure that its strategic goals are achieved, CIPLC analyzes, evaluates, manages, monitors, and reports on
the risks.

Crystal Insurance PLC, in particular, places a high priarity on the compliance with all applicable regulatory
requirements related to risk management. This includes reporting reguirements, capital adequacy requirements,
and status of its risk management framework to regulators including shareholders, investors and policyholders.

The first line of defense has a very strong risk detection procedure that we have in place across all of our branches.
A second-line function, our independent risk management function, then supports this. To reduce current and
future risks, we keep enhancing our control environment.

The company also has a centralized repository of risk controls across the organization to the implementation of all
reguired risk measures and controls. As a result Crystal Insurance PLC can manage its risks effectively and remains
financially stable over the long term.
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Disclosure of Risk Reporting

Disclosure of risk reporting: An accountability mechanism

Disclosure requirements for obligatory financial reports are typically set out in country legislation, stock exchange
listing rules, Generally Accepted Accounting Principles and the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).
The objectives of financial reporting are to provide authentic and latest financial information.

Apart from this CIPLC discloses Corporate Governance Compliance, Risk Management policies and internal control
practices. These disclosures are designed to ensure accurate and transparent information about the financial
conditions and operations. Following are some key risks that CIPLC believes that are emerging

Economic and credit Inceaning Credit, market, investment Product redesign, investment
eycle inflation & = and liquidity risks diversification

Develop our capabilities to
Increasing Operational risk provide customers better
experience

i y N =l To undertake and invest in more

Review our product pricing, put in
Non-Life insurance (mortality, place operational safeguards to
morbidity, longevity) reduce absentesism, travel
restrictions etc.

| Stable

CIPLC, through its team operating in the field, news, data collected and reviewed imparts awareness to the product
development team and management towards achieving the objectives of how to analyze the risk factors associated
with different activities, explain how risks can affect decision making process, and how operational risks can be

managed properly.

Transparency is the key to the existing risk management system zlong with disclosure that CIPLC uses to inform its
investors and shareholders the risks the company is facing and the steps it has taken to mitigate those.
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Statement of Internal Control

Internal controls are crucial for insurance companies to ensure the accuracy of financial reporting,
compliance with regulations, safeguarding of assets, and overall operational efficiency. Here are some key
internal controls that CIPLC board is responsible for promoting the long-term success for the benefit of
shareholders, as well as taking account of other stakeholders including employees and customer.

Segregation of Duties: Assign different responsibilities to different individuals to prevent any single
person from having control over an entire process. For example, separate individuals should handle
underwriting, claims processing, and accounting functions.

Underwriting Controls: Implement controls to ensure that policies are issued in accordance with
established underwriting guidelines. This may include automated underwriting systems, review
processes, and approval mechanisms.

Claims Processing Controls: Establish controls to verify the wvalidity of claims and ensure accurate
processing. This may involve documentation requirements, authorization procedures, and review
processes to detect potential fraud or errors.

Reinsurance Controls: If the company participates in reinsurance arrangements, implement controls to
ensure accurate recording and reporting of reinsurance transactions. This includes verifying the financial
strength of reinsurers and monitoring reinsurance recoverable.

Seqgregation of
Duties

Ethical
Standards and
Code of
Conduct

Claims
Frocessing
Confrols

INTERNAL

CONTROL

: ;. Financial
{_.q!-r:_p I|E_|;1|:E- Reparting
Controls Controls

Assat
Safeguarding
Conftrols

Hnmuaf Report 2024 143



Bdbn %5;;

Financial Reporting Controls: Implement controls to ensure the accuracy and completeness of financial
statements. This may involve reconciliation procedures, review of journal entries, and regular financial
statement audits.

Asset Safeguarding Controls: Implement controls to safeguard physical and electronic assets, such as
policy documents, customer data, and financial records. This may include access controls, security
measures, and disaster recovery plans.

Compliance Controls: Ensure compliance with regulatory requirements, industry standards, and internal
policies. This may involve regular compliance reviews, training programs, and oversight by a compliance
officer or committee.

Internal Audit: Establish an internal audit function to independently evaluate the effectiveness of internal
controls, identify weaknesses or deficiencies, and recommend improvements.

IT Controls: Implement controls over information technology systems to ensure data integrity,
confidentiality, and availability. This may include access controls, data encryption, and regular system

audits.

Ethical Standards and Code of Conduct: Promote a culture of ethics and integrity within the organization
through the establishment of a code of conduct, whistleblower policies, and ethics training programs.

By implementing robust internal controls across these areas, CIPLC can mitigate risks, enhance
operational efficiency, and maintain trust with policyholders, regulators, and other stakeholders.

144 Anmaat Report 2024



d Integrated
. Reporting

Chapter-06



2 5
How we Created Values over the Years

Crystal Insurance PLC as a non-life insurance company with a rich history and a burning ambition, founded
more than two decades ago, had weathered economic storms and market shifts, but felt the winds of change
blowing once more, The digital age demanded agility, competition was fierce, and customer expectations
soared. The company knew it had to adapt or risk fading into the background. The company creates value by
providing financial protection against various risks. It assesses and manages risks related to properties,
liabilities, and more. Value is generated through policy premiums, and in return, the insured receives coverage
for unexpected events, minimizing financial losses. The company's expertise in risk analysis and efficient claims
processing enhances customer trust and satisfaction, contributing to long-term value creation. Additionally,
investments made with collected premiums can generate returns, further adding to the company's overall value.

Our tale of value creation began with a spark of innovation. Recognizing the growing need for personalized
insurance solutions, we assessed individual risk profiles and offered tailored policies. This not only attracted
new customers seeking relevant coverage, but also reduced premiums for low-risk individuals, fostering trust
and loyalty.

But innovation alone wasn't enough. We understood that customer experience was the most vital thing. Qur
customer-centric approach not only reduced churn but also generated positive word-of-mouth, attracting
even more clients.

»o+ 8 Customer Experience
L N

i cPLc

el L

- @ Social Responsibility

Facing challenges

The company didn't stop there. Recognizing the growing interconnectedness of risks, we collaborated with
other non-life insurers, This not only expanded our offerings but also mitigated risks through shared expertise
and resources,

Our commitment to social responsibility further solidified our value proposition. This not only earned goodwill
and brand recognition but also attracted socially conscious customers and investors.

Our journey wasn't without facing challenges. Regulatory changes, economic fluctuations, and evolving
customer demands meant constant adaptation. However, by embracing innovation, prioritizing customer
experience, fostering collaboration, and upholding social responsibility, we navigated these hurdles and
emerged stronger.

Today, we stand high, a beacen of stability and progress in the ever-evolving nan-life insurance landscape. Our
tale is a testament to the power of value creation not just through financial metrics, but also through
innovation, customer centricity, collaboration, and social responsibility.
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Financial Capital

The financial capital of the company is a multifaceted composition crucial for its stability and resilience.
Shareholders' equity forms the foundation, representing the ownership stake and providing a financial
cushion against potential losses. Profit and loss appropriation account (i.e. Retained earnings), general
reserve and reserve for exceptional losses contribute to this strength, embodying profits held within the
company to support operational needs and cover unforeseen liabilities. Reserve for exceptional losses
and Balance of funds and accounts designated for anticipated claims acts as a vital buffer, absorbing
unexpected shocks, fostering solvency, and serve as a key component, ensuring the company can meet its
obligations to policyholders. The intricate interplay of these elements establishes a robust financial
framework, safeguarding our ability to navigate uncertainties and fulfill the commitments effectively.

_Reserve for
Exceptional Losses
BDT. 672.24 Million

Paid Up Capital
BDT. 440 million

Financial
Capital of
CIPLC

Balance of Funds and
accounts

BDT. 227.36 Million

General Reserve ——
BDT. 1.1 Million

Earning Per Share — -~ % Net Assets Value
BDT. 3.05 BDT. 25.67
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Manufactured Capital

At the core of Crystal Insurance PLC's manufactured capital is its physical infrastructure. This includes
office buildings, which serve as central hubs for various functions such as administration, underwriting,
claims processing, and customer service. These buildings not only provide a workspace for employees but
also project an image of stability and reliability to clients and stakeholders.

In addition to office spaces, we invested in regional branches. These physical locations play a crucial role
in reaching and servicing clients locally. They serve as points of contact for policyholders, offering
assistance, processing claims, and facilitating in-person interactions when needed.

Our ability to thrive and adapt depends significantly on the continuous investment and evolution of these
tangible assets. As technology continues to reshape the insurance landscape, we navigate challenges,
embrace innovation, and strategically manage our manufactured capital to stay competitive in an
ever-changing market,

Rental Expenses
il Al
BDT. 13.33 Million 208

Office Space
Owned 22,264 sfi. office
space.

Branches

42 branches across all HHE
over the country
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Social and Relationship Capital

We rely on social and relationship capital to thrive in the competitive insurance landscape. We cultivate a
positive public image through community engagement, philanthropy, and transparent communication.,
Build rapport with policyholders is crucial, emphasizing customer service, claims processing efficiency,
and personalized interactions.

Establish strong ties with regulatory authorities to comply and navigate the evolving regulatory
landscape. Our collaborative efforts with reinsurers and other industry players enhance risk management
capabilities, allowing the company to provide a broader range of coverage and remain financially resilient.
Additionally, we foster a positive internal culture contributes to social capital by enhancing employee
satisfaction, which, in turn, influences the quality of customer interactions. These collective relationships

form a robust foundation of our company, influence its reputation, market standing, and ability to adapt

to industry changes.
Scholarship Awareness

«BDT 2.16 lacs paid as *BDT 3.06 lacs spent for

scholarship insurance awareness program
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Sutainability Overview

Our business is the acceptance and diversification of risks in primary insurance and reinsurance. We find
leverage for sustainable action by combining economic success with added value for society. In our
insurance business, we principally achieve this through having a strong client focus, by offering
respansible products and services, and through the integration of relevant ESG aspects into our insurance

and reinsurance products and services.

The sustainability of an insurance company refers to its built-in strength to carry on its operations in a
manner that is economically, socially and environmentally sound and smooth ever a long term and

provides a strong index of growth.

Engagement of Sustainable Activities to SDGs

Sustainable Development Goals
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SDGs where Insurance has a Significant Impact
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Climate Action (SDG 13)
Financial and human losses from natural disasters have increased significantly in recent years. Natural disasters can
have a sizeable fiscal impact on the most vulnerable economies, often holding back economic growth and poverty
alleviation. CIPLC plays a role in mitigating the after-effects of natural disasters on economic growth, and even
providing an economic stimulus for a few years after the event. In addition to paying claims, CIPLC help promote
higher standards of construction by having minimum requirements in order to be able to access insurance and for
build back better clauses

1l
| Safe Cities and Communities (SDG 11)

Much of the discussion about climate is also relevant to the role insurers can play as underwriters and investors in
relation to cities and communities, In addition, Crystal Insurance PLC have an important role to play in supporting
infrastructure projects as both underwriters and investors. Additionally, insurers, reinsurers and brokers have
considerable risk management expertise and can partner with technelogy companies who can apply Al to aerial
photography and satellite images to help risk assessment and mitigation and Internet of things {loT) data to make
cities safer. Insurance so far has focused more on compensating for loss after the event.

J -

—/\o\/\v
Good Health and Well Being (5DG 3)
The role of insurance in the area of health depends very much on the organization of healthcare provision which
differs greatly by country. The Covid-13 pandemic has shed light on the vulnerability of health systems worldwide.
Even when medical services are available, people sometimes incur a heavy financial burden to use them and often
must forgo using health care altogether due to high costs. Research also shows that heaith micro-insurance helps to
reduce out-of-pocket health expenditure and increase the use of healthcare services.

I i
LS T

s

L
18 Reduce Inequality (SDG 10)
Crystal Insurance helps reduce inequality within countries by helping businesses and families withstand economic
losses due to property damage. CIPLC contributes to by being an "equal opportunities employer” in addition to
reducing inequalities by offering affordable and accessible insurance products to individuals across different income
groups. This helps bridge the gap in financial protection and ensures that insurance benefits are available to all,
regardless of their socio-economic status.
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SDGs where Insurance has a Strong Impact

No Poverty (SDG 1)
This is such a broad goal that it requires the cooperation of government, private sector and individual action across
a wide range of policies and industries. CIPLC ensure business continuity of companies after a loss, preserving
employment. CIPLC paying a fair wage and providing benefits to their staff, as well as ensuring that pay equity
among employees by gender, race, religion etc.. CIPLC targeted at women can have a particularly strong impact, The
development of an insurance sector serving women has other benefits,

Decent Work and Economic Growth (SDG 8)

The insurance industry can improve economic growth, not only in increasing a country’s GDP, but also by improving
financial stability and capability. CIPLC playing an important role to play in capital markets due to the large amount
of assets they can invest from their balance sheets, CIPLC mobilize long-term savings across the economy and help
to provide ligquidity through various technigues and tools. This can help develop broader and deeper capital
markets. Insurers themselves have strict capital and liguidity requirements.

w00 Zero Hunger and Food Security (SDG2)

Insurance has an important role here, which has arguably not vet reached its full potential. As an underwriter
insurance can support agriculture, especially with products that cover weather events or crop failure. The support
of the agricultural sector to ensure food security is a key element in eradicating hunger.
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Environmental Related initiatives

Human activity can have harmful effects on ecological systems, climate and public health. Recognizing
this, Crystal Insurance PLC fully supports the principles of its commitment to promoting good
environmental practice and sustainability of its activities. CIPLC committed to providing quality service in
a manner that ensures a safe & healthy workplace for our employees protecting the environment,
conserving energy and natural resources. With these policies in place, we believe that we can achieve a
healthy and safe environment. We are committed to do and will:

Integrate the consideration of environmental concerns and impacts
into our decision making and activities.

Develop and improve operations and technologies to minimize waste
and other pollution, minimize health and safety risks, and dispose of
waste safely and responsibly.

Minimize energy and water use within our premises and processes in
order to conserve supplies and minimize the consumption of natural
resources,

As far as possible, we will try to identify and purchase preferable

products, supplies and services for all our daily operational needs
that do the least damage to the environment.

Comply with all applicable environmental regulations.

Establish procedures to ensure that all employees are knowledgeable
of, understand and comply with all applicable environmental laws
and regulations. Train all our employees on our environmental
program and empower them to contribute and participate.

Communicate our environmental commitment to our clients,
contractors, suppliers and the community.

Hnmuaf Report 2024 155



2 B
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR)

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is the practice of integrating social and environmental goals into
business operations. CSR aim to embrace responsibility for the company’s actions and encourage a
positive impact through its activities on the environment, consumers, employees, communities,
stakeholders and all other members of the public sphere who may also be considered as stakeholders.

As important as CSR is for the community, it is equally valuable for a company. CSR activities can help forge
a stronger bond between employees and corporations; boost morale; and help both employees and
employers feel more connected with the world around them.

A strategic approach to Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) can bring benefits in terms of building
reputation, brand value, customer relationships, operational risk management, driving up efficiency,
access to new markets and better human resource management through employee motivational and
retention.

Administrative Setup & Budgetary Allocation

Annual CSR programs in terms of board approved CSR policies of Crystal Insurance Company Limited
drawn up and implemented by the dedicated CSR unit. The dedicated CSR unit propose budgetary
allocations for CSR programs annually for approval. The proposals for board approval must be
scrupulously avoided any allocation in favor of any entity directly or indirectly connected with directors,
senior management members of CIPLC.

Obligations of CSR activities and Financing

Hawve to pay
salary-
allowances of
their employee
staffs regularly.

Must pay

Must comply i income tax,
with all VAT, duty and

regulations of repay
Bangladesh ' institutional
labor Act, 2006. debt/obligations
regularhy.

Can donate to
the institutions

under C5R only
approved by
Government.
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Applicable Fields/Sectors of CSR Activities

» Aid through any government body for reducing mass crisis in natural disaster (Hurricane,
Tremor, Cyclone and Flood) affected area.

# Aid to organizations establishing and operating old home.

Aid to any social organization pursuing welfare activities for mentally and physically challenged

persons.

» Aid to education institutions operating for teaching rootless children.

Aid to social organizations pursuing subsistence and rehabilitation or orphan and rootless

children and pursuing wamen empowerment and anti dowry campaign and pursuing housing

projects for slam dwellers.

# Aid to organizations involved in independence war related research, recovery and expanding of
independence war spirit and honorable living of freedom fighter.

» Aid to organizations involved in healthy sanitation activities hilly Chittagong, Char region and
river eroded regions.

A

A

» Aid to institutions providing medical treatment to cleft lip, cataract and cancer.
» Aid to people and organization involved in medical treatment activities of acid victims.
> Aid to hospitals providing free medical services to poor patients and specialized hospital

improving medical treatment like cancer, liver and kidney diseases, thalassemia,
ophthalmology. cardiology etc.

# Ald to public universities.

» Aid to Government affiliated educational institutions in order to provide scholarship or financial
aid to children of poor freedom fighter including poor brilliant students for technical or
vocational education.

» Aid to government or MPO listed non-government educational institutions to set up laboratory
for computer or IT Training or English language training.

# Ald to institute providing technical or vocational training to unskilled or semi-skilled labars for
manpower export and providing sports training or development service at national level.

#  Aid to museum (built or under construction) for preserving memory of independence war.

# Aid to any institutions at national level involved in preserving memory of the father of the
nation.

# Aid to the fund formed under Prime Minister's Educational Assistance Trust Act, 2012.

# Ald to non profitable and non government voluntary social welfare organization working for
operational rehabilitation center for recovered children & women from trafficking and medical
treatment and awareness building on HIV, AIDS and Narcotics.

End use monitoring of CSR expenditure allocations

Crystal Insurance Campany Limited monitors the proper utilizations of the CSR support assistances for the
interned purpose. In case of CSR assistances to institutions/organizations, it was be advisable for the
concerned dedicated CSR units to get into Memorandums of Understanding (MOUs) with the assistance
recipients stipulating phased disbursements commensurate with progress in proper endues.
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Environment and
Social Obligation

Insurance policies are intended to help private individuals and companies to reduce their risk-taking and
to protect against unexpected financial losses. Whether it is a matter of building a house or running a
company, insurance policies provide increased security to the individual person, the company and the
community in general. Insurance policies contribute to increased freedom of action and are therefore an
important cornerstone of a community that is functional well.

In our role as a leading insurance company, we fulfill an important function in the everyday lives of our
large no of our clients. We are mindful of the communities around us and our obligations and abilities to
mmake a positive contribution to society and the environment that is sustainable in the long run.

We are actively involved in community issues that have a natural link to its business. By working with the
right organizations we aim to bring about positive changes for the communities in which we operate, We
strive for supporting safety initiatives in the broad meaning of the term in the communities within which
we operate. The objective is, in the long term, to counteract negative social phenomena such as traffic
accidents, segregation and exclusion. We also waork actively to assist our clients personally to prevent
accidents and incidences of damage.

Our strategy is to reduce the environmental impact the company has through constant improvements.
Environmental responsibility is an integral part of our everyday business and all of our employees’
responsibilities include working to promote a sustainable environment on a daily basis. Our suppliers are
also included in this work since, when procuring their services and products, we specify as far as possible
requirements for well-functioning environmental work.

We firmly believe that we have a shared responsibility to address the key environmental, social and
governance issues relevant to our business and stakeholders.
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STRENGTH

Crystal Insurance PLC is the third Generation
Insurance Companies in Bangladesh. It has great
reputation and well known to insurance industry.
It provides excellent and consistent quality
service in each and every sector of its operations
to the clients and makes the client satisfied.

The top management of Crystal Insurance is very
experienced and well-known in the Insurance
sector of Bangladesh. They are contributing
heavily towards the growth and development of
the company. The higher management formed by
the experienced corporate personnel and
professional staffs with sufficient employee.

The company has its own floor at Box Culvert
Road Purana Paltan, Dhaka, Bangladesh, which
contribute a lot in company’s profit margin.

It has a good number of branch offices in
commercial place in the district level.

Employee turnover ratio is very low than other
company.

WEAKNESS

Lack of implementation of the Company's
diversified products and services,

The financial benefit of Crystal Insurance is not
high enough related with other Financial
Institutions operating in Bangladesh.

Insurance awareness is poor and agents are not
skilled enough.
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INSURANCE

OPPORTUNITIES

Demand for insurance protection against crop
loans, livestock loan, fisheries loans and
equipment loans are increasing day by day.
Various agricultural Insurance services are
becoming common these days.

Bangladesh is a Medium Income generation
country and its economy is expanding rapidly, so
the need of Insurance sector is growing up.

THREATS

In a small economy, there are 49 existing general
Insurance coempany in Bangladesh which are
moderate day by day. In the past few years, a
number of new general Insurance companies
have entered into an already competitive market.
As a result, the threat of new entrants is
reasonably high, with so many new companies
entering the market.

Some insurance companies create harassment on
the policyholders and the people of our country
are not much motivated by the company to take
insurance policy for safeguarding themselves
against any kind of business risk.
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Events and Highlights

Celebrating 25 Years of Excellence, Crystal Insurance PLC marks a milestone of trust, growth and
commitment on November 11, 2024,

arysea
24" ANNUAL CONFTERENCE-2024

NN iRl I\ll’.ltu‘n |1ﬂ.m1|.
ARATE T N e

Crystal Insurance PLC hosts its 24th Annual Conference 2024 at Hotel Inter Continental, Dhaka, on February
27, bringing together key executives and stakeholders
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A team from Crystal Insurance PLC, led by the Chief Executive Officer, visited Mr. Md. Kabir Hossain,
proprietor of Keya Enterprise, to offer their condolences following the devastating fire that destroyed his
shop at Nabinaggar Bazaar, Brahmanbaria. As a gesture of support, they handed him a check for Tk. 5 lakh
as a token payment for his insurance claim.
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"Crystal Insurance PLC proudly awards scholarships to students of Monoronjon Kapuria Degree College,
empowering the next generation through education and opportunity.
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Comprehensive Segment on
Revenue and Claims

Gross Premium

Classes of Business 2024 | 2023 | 2022 | 2021 | 2020

Fire Insurance 375.58 316.09 291.74 231.38 ‘212,86
Marine cargo insurance 303.87 262.92 28117 256.17 267.62
Marine Hull insurance 10.78 14.19 7.06 13.54 8.19
Motor Insurance 33.09 28.24 3293 45,38 53.17
Miscellaneous Insurance 89.73 8930 71.85 J0.97 56.58
Total 213.04 710,74 684.85 617.44 598.42
2024 2023

= Fire Insurance = Marine cargo insurance
= Fire Insurance ® Marine Cargo Insurance s Marre il insurarics W e inal s
o Marine Hull Insurance ® Motor Insurance = (iscalaneous Insurance
» Misrellanaous Insurance
Claims
Classes of Business 2024 | 2023 2022 2021 | 2020 |
Fire Insurance 177.98 125.63 ~  21.63 32.58 33.64
Marine cargo insurance 24.33 51.60 27.35 16.94 4,87
Marine Hull insurance 5.34 27.08 44.00 -
Mator Insurance 6.24 574 12.22 9.76 6.48
Miscellaneous Insurance 2293 398 0.83 1.80 14.64
Total 236.92 214.04 106.03 61.10 59.64
2024 2023
# Fire Insurance # Marine cargo insurance ® Fira Insurance # Marine cargo insurance
® Marine Hull insurance ® Motor Insurance = Maring Hull Insurance = Maotor Insurance
& Mizcellanecus Insurance ® Miscellaneous Insuranca
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Segment-wise Underwriting Profit

Underwriting Profit

Particulars 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
Fire Insurance 17.08 19.94 54,92 14.04 61.81
Marine Cargo Insurance 98.68 100.47 61.47 80.95 67.36
Marine Hull Insurance 2.4 (2.10) 2.43 [(2.29) (0.63)
‘Motor Insurance 13.76 12.83 9.37 17.44 9.96
Miscellanecus Insurance 22.27 12.01 9.24 8.03 5.50
TOTAL 154.21 14216 137.44 118.07

2024 2023

o

® Fire Insurance
® Marine Hull Insurance
B Miscellaneous |nsurance

m Motor Insurancea
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® Marine Cargo Insurance

B Fire Insurance
= Marine Hull Insurance
H Miscellaneous Insurance

# Marine Cargo Insurance
| Motor Insurance
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Mahfel Huq & Co. BGIC Tower 4th Floor)

34, Topkhana Road

Chartered Accountants Dhaka 1000, Bangladesh
The first feglstarad accaunting firm in independant Bangladesh Tel: +B8-02-223351948, 133383143
Fay: +88-02-9571005
A E-mall:mhi@ mahfelhug,com
mn:__ Anindependent member firm of AGH International Wik www, malifelbug. com

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Shareholders of Crystal Insurance PLC

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Crystal Insurance PLC (the “Company”), which comprises the Balance Sheet
(Staterment of Financial Position) as at 31 Dacember 2024, Profit and Loss Account (Statement of Profit or Loss and other
Comprehensive Income), Statement of Profit and Loss Appropriation Account, Consolidated Revenue Account, Related
Revenue Accounts, Statement of Chanzes in Equity and Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial staterments, including a surmnmary af significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the finandal positien of the
company as at 31 Decembear 2024, and its financial performance and Its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance
Rules 1858, the Securities and Exchange Rules 2020 and other applicable laws and regulations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (15As). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described In the Auditors” Responsibllifies for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code
af Ethics for Profossional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements in Bangladesh, and we have fulfilled our other ethical respansibilities in accordance with the [ESBA
Code. We balieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated and separate financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the financial statements as a whale, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion
on these matters.

Risks [ Our response to the risks

Premium Income

Gross general.insurance pra-ml'TJms comprise the total premium | With respect to Premium income in respeﬁt of various

received for the whole period of cover provided by contracts ] types of insurance we carried out the following

entered into during the accounting period. | procedures:

The design and operating effectiveness of key controls

around premium income recognition proceass,

Carried out analytical procedures and recalculated

premium income for the period.

At end of the year 2024, the total gross premium income of BOT | On a8 sample basis reviewed policy to ensure

813,044,804 (2023: BDT 710,737,342, | appropriate policy stamp was affixed to the contract
and the same has becn reflected in the premium

| register.

Given the impertant nature, connections to other items to the
financial statements and sensitivity of the itern we believe this
area pose high level of risk.

Mahfel Hug & Co. i3 an independent member firm of AGN Intermational, UK., UK, AGH International is @ worldwide association of separate and
independent accounting and consulting firms. Each member of AGN operates under iis own local or national name and remains autonomous
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Risks

Our response to the risks

Ensured on a sample basis that the premium income was
being deposited in the designated bank account.

Tested on a sample basis to se= that appropriate VAT was
being collected and deposited to bank through Treasury
Challan.

Finally assessed the appropriateness and presentation of
against standards,
Insurance Act 1238 (as amended in 2010}, Insurance
Rules, 1958 and other applicable rules and regulations and
regulatory guidelines.

disclosures relevant accounting

See Note No, 2.21 to the financial statements and FORM-XL

Property, plant and equipments

This represents a significant amount in the company’s Balance
sheet (statement of financial position). There is a risk of
determining which costs meet the critera for capitalization,
determining the date on which the assets is recognized to property,
plant and equipments and depreciation commences, estimation of
economic useful lives and residual value assigned to fixed asset.

We identified the carrying value of property, plant and equipments
as a key audit matter because of the high level of management
| judgment invelved and its significance to the financial statements,

At end of the year 2024, the company reported the carrying value
of property, plant and equipments amounts BDT 251,215,745
(2023: BOT 257,556,665).

Our audit proceduras to assess the carrying value of
property, plant and eguipments, include the following
controls testing and substantive procedures:

Assessing the design, implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls over the
completeness, existence and accuracy of property, plant
and equipments including the key internal controls over
the estimation of useful economic lives and residual
values;

Assessing, on a sample basis, costs capitalized during the
year by comparing the costs capitalized with the relevant
underlying documentation, which included purchase
agreements and invoices, and assessing whether the costs
capitalized met the relevant criteria for capitalization.

Testing the key controls over the management’s judgment
in relation to the accounting estimates of the depreciable
lives

and residual wvalues of property, plant and

equipment.

Reconcile on a sample basis the additional capitalizad
costs for the year to the underlying inwoices and
supporting documents,

We reviewed company's capitalizations policy for
compliance with |AS 16 and tested the expanditure
capitalized against the capitalization policy.

‘We traced payments to supporting documents.

We assessed the adequacy of the disclosures of the

financial statemeants

Snmaaf Report 2024
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Risks l Our response to the risks
See note no 2.10, 14.00 to the financial statements and Annexure-A -
Estimated liability in respect of outstanding claims whether due or intimated

This account represents the claim due or Intimated from the | We tested the design and operating effectiveness of controls
insured and involves significant management judgment and risk of | around the due and intimated claim recording process.
understatement. In extreme scenario this item may have going

We additionally carried out the following substantive
concern implications for the company.

testing's around this iwem:

of Estimated liability in respect of outstanding claims whether due | ©f cl2ims recorded in the register on a sample basis.
orintimated of BDT 131,379,168 (2023: BDT 119,813 521). Obtained a sample of claimed policy copy and cross check
it with claim.

Obtained a sample of survey reports cross checked those
against respective register balances and in case of
discrepancy carried out further investigation.

Obtained and discussed with management about their
basis for estimation and challengad their assumptions
where appropriate.

Reviewed the claim committee meeting minutes about
decision about impending claims.

Tested a sample of claims payments with intimation letter,
survey report, bank statement, claim payment register
and general ledger,

Finally assessed the appropriatensss and presentation of
disclosures against

relevant accounting standards, Insurance Act 2010,
Insurance Rules 1958 and

other applicable rules and regulations and regulatory
guidalines,

See note no, 9.00 to the financial statements

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information commprises all of the information in the Annual
report ather than the financial statements and cur auditors' report thereon. The annual report is expected to be made
available to us after the date of this auditor's report,

Qur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the aother information and we do not express any form of assurance
canclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
cansider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge cbtained
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. When we read the annual report, if we conclude that there isa
material misstaternent therein, we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance of the
COmpany.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements and Internal Cantrols

Management is respensible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRSs,
the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 1958, the Securities and Exchange Rules 2020 and
other applicable laws and regulations and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
managemaent either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Owur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinien, Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 158s will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arize from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasanably be expected to influence the econoriic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

45 part of an audit in accordance with [SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit, We also;

* |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
daesign and performn audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
iz higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgary, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of Internal control relevant to the audit In erder to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances.

* Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue a5 a going concarn, If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statemeants
or, if such disclosures are inadeguate, to madify our epinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidenca
obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. Howewver, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

»  Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financizl statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial statements represent the underying transactions and events in & manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We cormmunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and fiming of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Hnnuaf Report 2024 173



Bdbn %'@;

Mahfel Huq & Co. 3
Chartered Accountants agn

Tha first raglsterad accounting flem In indepandent Bangladash TESEETAL

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters, We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless [aw or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremnely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing 50 would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

Report on aother Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Companies Act 1994, the Insurance Act 2010, the Insurance Rules 1958, the Securities and Exchange
Rules 2020 and relevant notifications issues by Bangladesh Securities and Exchange Commission, we also report that:

al] We have cbtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief wera
necessary for the purpose of our audit and made due verification thereof;

b) In our opinion, proper books of accounts, records and other statutory books as required by law have been kept by
the Company so far as it appeared from our examinations of those books;

¢l The Company management has followed relevant provisions of laws and rules In managing the affairs of the
Company and proper books of accounts, records and other statutory books have been properly maintained and
{where applicable} proper returns adequate for the purposes of our audit have been recejved from branches not
visited by us;

d) As persection 63(2) of the Insurance Act 2010, in our opinion to the best of our knowledge and belief an according
to the information and explanation given to us, all expenses of management wherever incurred and whether
incurred directly or indirectly, in respect of insurance business of the company transacted in Bangladesh during the
year under report have been duly debited to the related Revenue Accounts and the Statement of Comprehensive
Income of the Company;

e} We report that to the best of our information and as shown by its books, the company during the year under report
has not paid any person any commission in any form, outside Bangladesh in respect of any its business re-insured
abroad;

f)  The Statement of Financial Position, Profit and Loss Account (Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive
Income), Profit and Loss Appropriation Account, related Revenue Accounts, Statement of Changes in Equity and
Staternent of Cash Flows of the Campany together with the annexed notes deatt with by the report are In agreement
with the books of account and returns; and

gl The expenditure was incurred for the purpose of the Company's business.

. o

Wasequl Hug Reagan, FCA
ICAB Enrolment No, 1517
Partner

Mahfel Hug & Co.
Chartered Accountants

DVC: 2502091517A5247199
Dhaka, 09th February, 2025
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Crystal Insurance PLC

Balance sheet (Statement of financial position)
As at December 31, 2024

Shareholders' equity
Authorized capital

100,000,000 ordinary shares of the. 10 each

Tssned, subscribed and paid np capital
44,000,000 ordinary shares of th. 10 each

Reserve and surplus

Reserve for exceptional losses

Profit and loss appropriation aceount
Investment fluctuation fund

General reserve

Total sharcholders equity

Liabilitics and provisions

Balance of fonds and accounts (A)
Fire insurance revenue account

Marine cargo insurance revenue account
Marine hull insurange revenue account
Molos iInsurance revenue account

Mizcellaneous insurance revenue account

Liabilities {B)

Lease liability

Deposit premiwm

Deferred tax liability

Estimated liability in respect of ouistanding claims whether due ar
intimated

Amounts due to other persons or bodies carrying on insurance business

Sundry creditors
UnpaidUnclaimed dividend
Provision for workers profit participation fund (WTPPF)

Total liabilities and provisions (A+B)

Total Shareholders' equity, liabilities and provisions

Snmaaf Report 2024

3.00

3.00

4.00
4.01

4.02
4.03

5.00

6.00
7.00

8.00
9.00

10.00

11.00
12.00
13.00

ot B

Amount inTaka
2023
1,000, 000,000 1,000,000,000
440,000,000 $00.000,000
689.497.628 634.611,106
672.264,178 580,959,097
47.230.6461 50802199
{40,997,.210) (26,240,791}
11,000,000 10000000
1,120,497 628 1.034.611,106
227,361,974 192,502,593
106, 718452 84,806,684
01,875,955 78,041,061
4.411,589 3,261,923
15.236,977 10.755.017
11,119,001 [5.547.904
702,747,244 680,307,992
20,658 500 18.610.673
06,443,228 117,830,397
354.519 1,803,315
131,979 [68 119.813.521
260604418 275.661.294
174.299.220 136682000
468,825 2953 778
8,038,073 6,953,013
930,109,218 872,810,586
2,059,606,847 1,907,421,691
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Crystal Insurance PLC

Balance sheet (Statement of financial position)

As at December 31, 2024

Particulars Notes At tnkika
‘ i 2023
Properties and assets 974,418,698 870,365,569
Property, plant and equipments 14.00 251.215.745 257.556.665
Advance against land and office space 15.00 75,156,000 23,450,000
Invesiments 16.040 286,659.267 309,092,874
Investment property 1704 26,639,856 28,794 B64
Right of use (Rol) assels 158.00 22, 783117 20,653,392
Insurance stamps 19.00 927,538 1.584.825
Amount due from other persons or bodies carrying on insurance business 20,00 151527207 138,203,082
Accrued inferest 21.00 56,126,003 14,765,215
Sundry debtors (including advances, deposiis and prepayments) 22.00 103.413.955 76,264,651
Cash and cash equivalents 1,085.178,150 1,037,056,122
Cash in hand 23.00 T6.,586 148,625
B/O account balance 23.00 153,393 102217
Cash at banks on STD accounts 23.00 27 966265 28,049,079
Cash ai banks on CD accounis 23.00 10,634,280 2.908,583
Fixed deposit receipt (FDR) with banks and other financial institutions 24.00 1046347 617 1.005.847.617
Total assets 2,059.606,847 1,907.421,691
Net asset value (NAV) per share 33.0:00 1 25.67 | | 23.51

The accotpanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

@/:

Md. Saydul Islam
Chief Financial Officer

M. Mahfuzor Rahman FCA
Company Secretary

- ez
‘/Farhuna Danesh ANM. Mozammel Hogue
Director Director

Signed as per our annexed report of even date

Dhaka, 09 February, 2023
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S M Shahiduollah
Chief Executive Officer

Abdullah-Al-Mahmod
Chainman

1046

Wasequl Hug Reagan, FCA
ICAB Enrolineal No. 1517

Partner

Mahfel Huq & Co.,
Chartered Accountants
DV 250209151 7AS247199
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Crystal Insurance PLC

% 5 %%;L

Profit and loss account (Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income)

Particolars

Expenses of management

For the year ended December 31, 2024

(Mot applicable to any particnlar fund or account)

Advertisermant and poblicity
Adnortization on lease

Aundit fees

Bank charges

Bima mela

Branch opening fees

Bangladesh Insurance Association
Excisa duty

Depreciation

Director’s meeting attendance {ees
Dronation and subscription

Fees and charges

Busingss devalopment expenses (SBC)

Eepair and maintenance

Renewal. registration and other charges

Interest against leases

Profit transferred to profit and loss appropriation account

Total

Profit/{Lass) transferred from
Fire insurance revenue account

Marine cargo insurance revenue account
Marine hull insurance revenue account

Motor insurance revenue account

Miscellancous insurance revenue account

Interast tncome

Criher incorme

Total

Other comprehensive income

Changes m fair valug of the shares available for

sale {(Investment fuctuation fund)
Total

) Amount inTaka
Motes =
59,474,324 59,297,003
1,332,083 E04.910
18.00 11,721.373 10,514,284
724,500 920,000
444 008 275,634
306.150 360,631
115.000 115,000
200,000 100,000
2.0B0.115 1 452,000
25.00 36,312,209 37.486,140
40,03 528,000 730,400
210,230 394,000
1,714,424 1385 864
61.111 48 BEO
938,087 228 634
2.787.233 4438618
1,613,664 1,114,403
[ 1.613.664 || 1.114,403 |

187,718,488 146,013,267
248,806,475 206,424,674
154,207,841 142,163,022
17,080,976 19,944,842
98.681.297 100,467, T84

2.411,506 (3.095,977)
13.762,926 12,831,573
22,271,136 12,014,792
26.00 89 960.687 47 850,496
27.00 15.362.052) 21. 411,156
248,806,475 206,424,674

4.02 (14,756,419 (19,695,827)

(14,756.419)

(19,695,827)

The accompanying notes form an integial pait of these financial statements

Md. Sivdul Tslam
Chief Finnncial Officer

-
¢
Farhana Danesh
Director

halea, 09 February, 20235
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M. Mahfozur Rahman FOA
Company Secrelary

—

AREL{;ilmamm el Hoque
Dvirector

Signed 03 per our annexed report of even dote

b,

-
2 M Shahidullah
Chief Executive Officer

Wpadfphd b
Abdullah-Al-Mahwmud
Chairman

N84

Wasequl Hug Reagan. FCA
ICAR Enrolment MNo. 1517
Pairtner
Mahfel Hug & Co.
Chartered Accountants
DvE 2502091 517AS247199
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Crystal Insurance PLC

Profit and loss appropriation account
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Amount in Taka
Particulars
2024 2023

Qpening balance of appropriation account 59892199 30,091,567
Wet profit for the period 187,718,488 146,013,267
Total 247,610,687 196,104,834

200,380,026 136,212,635
Reserve for exceptional losses 4.01 21.304 480 T1.O73,734
General reserve during the period 4.03 1,000,000 1,000,000
Provision for vompanies incoms tax 11.02 42,585 366 20,065,815
Provizion for WFTE 13.00 8938970 2,933,013
Deffered tax (income)/expenses 8.00 {1.448,796) (2.879.927)
Dividend from [ast year profit 12.01 68,000,000 A0, 000,000
Balance transferred to balance sheet 47,230,661 59.892.199
Total 247.610,687 196,104,834
Earning per share (EPS) 34.00 313 2.7

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

N AR A,

S M Shahiduollah
Chief Executive Officer

M. Mahfuzur Rahman FCA
Company Secretary

M. Saydul Islam
Chief Financial Officer

i

i F

' Farhana Dancsh AJLM. Mozammel Hoguoe
Darector Dhregtor

Signed as per our annexed report of even date

Chamman

Al

Wasequl Hug Reagan, FCA
ICAR Enrolment Na. 1517

Partner

Mahfel Hug & Co,
Chartered Accountants
DVC : 250200151TAS247199

Dhakea, 09 February, 2025
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Particolars

Crystal Insurance PLC

Statement of changes in shareholders' equity
Far the year ended December 31, 2024

Paid-op

capital

Reserve for
exceptional

General
FESEEYE

Investment
fluctuation

P&L
appropriation

lozses

fund

AC

Opening halance 400,000,000 590,959,697 | 10,000,000 (26,240,791} 50,892,199 1.054.611.105
Changes in fave value of shares (14,756,419} (14,756,419}
Cash dividend (58,000,000) (68,000,000}
Stock dividend £0,000.000 40,000,000
Profit afier tax 146,581 918 146,581,918
Reserve for exceptional losses B1.304 480 (R1.304 480) -
Provision for WEPF (8,038,976) (8,938,976)
General reserve 1,000,000 (1,000,000) -
Closing halance 440,000,000 672,264,178 | 11,000,000 {40,997.210) 47,230,661 1.129.497.628

The boacd of directors, at its 104th meeting held on L8 Febiuagy 2024, proposed a 12.00% cash dividend for the year ended 31
Dzcember 2024,

Statement of changes in shareholders’ equity
For the vear ended December 31, 2023

. Reserve for : Investment P&:L
S Faid-up ; (xeneral - e
Particolars v exceptional Muctuation appropriation Toval
capital reserve ] e
losses Tund AT
Opening balance 400,000,000 | 519,885,963 | 9,000,000 (6,544,964) 50,001,567 972,432,566
Changes in fare value of shar=s - - (19,695,827} - (19,695,827)
Cash dividend - - - {40,000.000.00) {40,000, 000y
Profit after tax - - - - 128,827 37897 128,827,579
Reserve for exceptional losses - 71073734 - - (71.073,734.16) -
Provision for WEPF - - - 16.953.012.72) {6,953,013)
General regerve - - 1,000,000 - {1.000,000.00) -
Closing Balance 400,000,000 | 590,959,607 | 10,000,000 |  (26,240,791) 59,802,199 1,034,611,106
Md. Saydal Islam M. Mahfuzur BEahman FCA 5 M Shahidullah
Chief Financial Oficer Company Secratary Chizf Executive Officer

e I.',1
oV - Y
Y g apdid
" Farhana Danesh AH.M. Mozammel Hoque Abdullah-Al-Mahmud
Drirector Director Chairman

Dhaka, 09 Februagy, 2025
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Crystal Insurance PLC

Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended December 31, 2024

SL Particulars Amount in Taka
No. i
A, Cash flows from operating activities
Collection from premium 659,139,452 568,957,621
Other income 55.085 246474
Cash paid for management expenses,
re-msurance, claims, WPPF and (336,220,278) (482,745 ,443)
agent commission
Income tax paid including TDS {26.184.715) (16.799.554)
Net cash flows from operating activities 96,789,543 69,659,098
B. Cash flows from investing activities
Acquisition of fixed assets (27.316,280) (6,544.062)
security deposit against land (Rajuk) 11,450,000 (11,450,000)
Advance against office space (63.136.000) -
Eental income 2,029,528 2264416
Interest received during the period including TDS 58,551,722 41228217
Dividend from listed companies shares including TDS 6,953,588 4.931.392
Realised gain/loss and withdrawal from portfolio accounts (14.,440.476) 23.968.874
Investment in BGTB (59,165.720) {10.000.000)
Investmaent in ventura asset management - {20,000,000)
Investrent in listed companies shares 66.891.074 (14.196,841)
Net cash used in from investing activities (18,182,563) (19,798,005)
C. Cash flows from financing activitics
Dividend paid | (30484.95%)||  (39.664.801)]
Net cash used in financing activifies {30,484,953) (39,664,801)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 48,122,027 10,196,293
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the period 1.037.056,123 1.026,859,829
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period 1.085,178,150 1.037,056,122
Net operating cash flow per share (NOCFPS) (note no-335) | 2.20 || 1.58 |
N AR y 7/
M. Saydul Tslam M. Mahfuzur Rahman FCA 5 M Shahidullah
Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary Chief Executive Officer
M QUM S
AHM. Mozammel Hogue Abdullah-Al-Mahmud
Director Director Chairman
Dhaka, 09 February, 20235
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Crystal Insurance PLC

Consolidated revenue account
For the year ended December 31, 2024

heid %%;

Ampunt in Taks

Particulars Motes

Claims under policies less re-insorances

Claims paid during the period

Paid/Adjusted on PEB

Recovered/Adjusted on P'SB

Recoversd/Adjusted on reinsurance ceded

Claims outstanding at the end of the period

Claims outstanding at the end of the previous period

Agent gommission 25.00
Management expenses 2900
Stamp duly

Balance of account at the end of the period

as shown in the statement of financial position being reserve for unexpired risks @
4% of prepvum income of the period for fire, mwnne cargo, motor and
miscellaneous insurance business and @ 100% of premivm income of the perod
for marine hull

Profit transferred to profit and loss account
Total

Ealance of account at the beginning of the period

Premiom 155 re-insurances

Premiwm underwritten

Premium on PER

Reingurance premiom on PER
Reinsurance premmium ceded

Commission on re-insurances
Coramission earned on ré-insurance ceded
Commiggion earned on PSR

Topial

L2024 ) 2023

149,066,722 122,221,003
205243 493 183,086,687
31.681.371 30,048 632
(28,337,971) (28,921,484)
(71,685 819) (30,364,110)
131,979,169 119,813,521
{119.813.521) (152,342.243)
281,001,733 260,501,618
74,810,162 62 468,280
206,185,554 198,028,807
6,016 4,531
227,361,975 192,502,594
227,361,975 192,502,594
154,207,841 142,163,024
811,638,270 717,388,238
192,502,593 192,873,299
561,787,553 476,363,592
680,526,621 607,345 491
132,518,183 103,391 851
(119,888.278) (92.824.428)
(131,368,973) (141,549,322)
57,348,124 48.151.348
43,304,604 38,078,229
14,043,521 10,073.119
811,638,270 717,388,239

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements

AR

M. Mabforur Balman FCA
Caompany Secretary

il

AH.M. Mozammel Hogque
Director
Signed as per our annexed repart of even date

Md. Saydul Islam
Chief Financial Officer

-/i-‘nrh an.;a. Dranesh
Director

Dhakea, 08 Febroary, 2025
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y L

& H
5 M Shahiduliah
Chief Executive Officer

aap2s
Abdullabh-AL-NMahod
Chairman

A8

FPartmer
Mahfel Hug & Co.
Chartered Accouniants

Wasequl Hug Reagan, FCA
ICAR Eniolment Mo, 1517

DVC - 250200151 TAS247199
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Crystal Insurance PLC

Fire insurance revenue account

For the year ended December 31, 2024

Particnlars

Claims under policies less re-insurances

Claims paid during the period

Paid/Adjusted on PSB

Recovered/Adjusted on PSBE

Recovered/Adjusted on reinsurance ceded

Claims oulstanding at the end of the period

Claims outstanding at the end of the previous period

Agent commission 28.00
MManzgement expenses 29.00
Stamp duty

Balance of account at the end of the period

23 shown in the statement of financial position being reserve for unexpired vigks (@
40% of premium income of the period

Profit/(Loss) transferred to profit and loss account

Total

Balance of account al the beginning of the peried

Premium less re-insurances
Premium underwritten
Premium on PSB
Reinsurance premium on PSH
Reinsurance premium ceded

Commission on re-insurances
Commission earned on re-insurance ceded
Commisgion egmed on PSB

Total

(33.141.027)
(75.639.846)

Amonnt in Tala
2023
122,182,000 88,141,369
175,600,195 125 458.776
2,377 956 173,498
(1.174.821) (11.236)
(70,951,010 (3,856.829)
66,146,282 49 816.603
(49 816,603) (83439443
138.253.780 126,353,490
37,355,034 30.947.541
100,896,778 95,404,505
1.968 1.443
106,718,452 54,896,684
106.718452 B4 896.084
17,080,976 19,944, 842
3A84,235.207 319,336,355
84,896,684 83,074,095
266,720,130 212,241,710
340,348 479 300,886,300
34 728 524 15,203 430

(14,146,377)
(B9 701.643)

32,542,393 24.020.580
28,943 069 22 401,694
3,600,325 1.618.887
384235207 319,336,385

The accompanying noles form an integral parl of these financial stalements

M. Saydul Tslam
Chiel Financial Officer

M. Mahfozur Rahman FCA
Company Secretary

al

AH.M. Mozammel Hogque
Director

" Farhana Danesh
Director

Signed as per our annexed report of even date

Dhalea, 0% February, 2025
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S Shnhid;i‘]‘ah
Chief Executive Officer

Qfglud S

Abdullah-Al-Mahmud

Chatrman

A, 6

Wasequl Hug Reagan, FCA
[CAB Enrolment No. 1517

Pariner

Mahfel Hug & Co.
Chartered Accountants
DVC 250209151 TAS247190
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Crystal Insurance PLC

Marine cargo insurance revenue account

For the year ended December 31, 2024

Particulars

heid %5;

Amount in Taka

—

Claims under policics less re-insurances 24,358,325 23,253,887
Claims paid during the period 22 460,740 50.843.5%6
Paid/Adjusted on PSB 1,928,828 759,701
Fecovered/Adjusted on PSB (517.,703) {139.242)
Fecovered/Adjusted on reinsurance cedad . (26,507 281)
Clams outstanding at the end of the period G2.521.795 62,035,335
Claimz outstanding at the end of the previous period (62,035,335) {63,738,222)
111,338,467 100,376,799
Agent commission 28.00 30,227 124 24 318,307
Management expenses 29.00 81,111,343 76,058,497
Stamip Dty - -
Balance of account at the end of the period 91,875,955 TE.041.061
as shown in 1J.1elsratl_z=msnt of f'umnclaj.. position being reserve for unexpired risks 01,275 955 8.041.067
@ 40% of premium income of the period
Profit/(Loss) transferred to profit and loss account 08,681,297 L0467, 785
Total 326,254,044 302,139,532
Balance of account at the beginning of the peried TR.041.061 88.464,522
Premium less re-insurances 229,689 888 195,102,651
Premiom anderwritien 273327633 236,433,766
Premivm on PEB 30,541 473 26,486,586
Eeingurance premiom on PSB (24.336,788) (20.624,288)
Beinsurance premiom ceded {49,842 430) (47.193.414)
Commission on re-insurances 18.523.096 18,572,359
Commission eamned on re-insurance ceded 13655738 14.505.354
Commission carned on PSE 4,867,358 4,066,505
Total 326,254,044 302,139,532
The accompanying notes form an integral part of thege financial statemeants.
Md. Savdul Islam M. Mahfuzur Rahman FCA S M Shahidullah
Chi=f Financial Officer Company Secretary Chief Executive Officer
o Wptaplnd S
AH.M. Mozanumel Hoque Abdullah-Al-Mahmud
Darector Director Chairman

Signed as per our annexed report of even date

Dhaka, 09 February, 2025
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AS

Wasequl Hug Reagan. FCA
ICAB Enrolment Mo, 1517

Partner

Mahfel Hug & Co.
Chartered Accountants
DVC : 250209151TAS247199
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Crystal Insurance PLC

Marine hull insurance revenue account
For the year ended December 31, 2024

Claims under policies less ré-insurances

Claims paid during the period

Paid/Adpsted on PS13

Recovered/Adjusted on PSB

Rerocoversd/Adjusted on reinsurance cedod

Claims outstanding at the end of the period

Claims outstanding at the end of the previous period

28.00
29.00

Agenl comoimssion

bManagement expenses

Stamp duty

Balance of account at the end of the period
as shown in the statement of financial position being reserve for unexpired risks
@ 100% of premium income of the period

Profit/(Loss) transferred to profit and loss account

Total
Balance of account at the beginning of the period

Preminm less re-insurances
Premium underwritten
Premium on PSB
Beinsurance premium on PSE
Reinsurance premium ceded

Commission on re-insurances
Commission eamned on re-insurance ceded
Commission earnad on PSE

Total

Amount in Taka

{2.424,832) 3,184,599
327230 150,000
3,009,736 26,929 941
(4.911,798) (26.745.342)
- 2,850,000
(2.850.000) -
3,564,967 2,808,983
923432 326,008
2,641,535 2282975
4,411,539 3,261,928
4,411,589 3,261,923
2,411,506 (3,095.971)
7,963,230 6,159,540
3,261,928 1,996,589
4,411,589 3.261,928
8,590,460 5,114,093
2,190,156 9.077.168
(2.107,913) (8.517.286)
{4,261.114) (2.112.047)
289,713 901,022
173,778 416,072
115.935 434,951
7.963,230 6,159,540

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these (inanciagl statements,

Md. Savdal Tslam
Chief Financial Officer

Y 4 sl

' &
'{il‘nrhana Danesh AJANM,. Mozammel Hogue
Drirector Director
Signed as per our annexed raport of even date

M. Mahfuzur Rahman FCA
Cormmpany Secrelary

Dhaka, 09 February, 2025
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5 M Shahidullah

Chief Executive Officer

WUt/ gp S

Abdullah-Al-Mahmud

Chairman

G

Wasequl Huq Reagan, FCA
ICAB Enrolment No. 1517

Partner
Mahfel Hug & Co.

Chartered Accountants
DVC ; 2502081 517A5247199
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Crystal Insurance PLC

Motor insurance revenue account

For the vear ended December 31, 2024

Claims under policies 1688 re-insurances

Claims paid during the period

Paid/Adjusted on PSB

Recoversd/Adjusted on reinsurance ceded

Claims gutstanding at the end of the period

Claims cutstanding at the end of the previous period

Agent commizsion

Managemenl expenses

Stamp duty

Balance of account at the end of the period

a5 shown in the statemeont of financial position

being reserve for unexpired risks @@ 40% of
premium income of the period

Profit/(Loss) transferred to profit and loss account
Total

Balance of account at the beginning of the period

Preminm less re-insurances
Premium umderwritten
Premium on PSB
Feinsurance premivm on PSB
Feinsurance premium ceded

Commission on re-insurances
Commission samed on re-insurance ceded
Commission samed on PSR

Tiptal

28.00
29.00

heid %5;

Amdunt in Taka

6,027 258 5,635,519
207.760 101,852
(734 209) -

3,105.091 4,120,159
(4,120,159) (4.,964,734)
12,365,041 10,933,155
3.369.574 2,657,084
8,992,409 8.273.501
3.057 2.570
13,236,977 10,755,017
13236977 10.755.017
13,762,926 12,831,573
43,850,085 39,412,541
10,755,017 12,214,805
33,092 443 26,887,541
30511915 25.833.397
2,580,528 2402.563
- (107.643)
- (1.240.777)

2,625 310,195
2,625 310,195
43,850,085 39,412,541

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial stalemenis,

Md. Sayvdul Tslam
Chief Financial Officer

. P

Farhana Danesh
Diirector

)

AN AR

M. Mahfuzur Rahman FCA
Company Secretary

el

e
A H.M. Mozammel Hogue

Tirector

Signed 23 per our annexed report of even date

Dhaka. 09 Febrmuary, 2025
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= M Shahidnllah
Chief Execurive Officer

QUi 2-t

Abdullah=-Al-Mahnmud
Chairman

&

Wasequl Huyg Reagan, FCA
ICAR Encolment No. 1517
Partner
Mahfel Hug & Co.
Chartered Accountants
DV 2502091517A8247199
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Claims under policies less re-insurances
Claims paid during the period
Paid/Adjusted on PEB
Recovered/Adjusted on PSB

Claims outstanding at the end of the period

Claims cutstanding at the end of the previous period

Agent commission
Management expenses
Stamp duty

Balanee of account at the ¢nd of the period
as shown in the statement of financial position being reserve for
unexpired risks & 40% of premium income of the period

Profiv/(Loss) transferred
Total

Balance of Account at the beginning of the period

Preminm less reinsurances

Premivm vnderwritten
Premiuin on PSB

Reinsurance premium on PSR
Remsurance premium ceded

Commission on reinsurances
Commission eamed on re-insurance ceded
Commission eamed on PSB

Total

Md Savdul Islim
Chief Fimancial Officer

t/..

Farhana Danesh

Director

Dhaka, 09 February, 2025
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Miscellaneous insurance revenue account
For the year ended December 31, 2024

406,088 2.748,351

828070 1,808,794

22.157.090 2.083.640

{21,733,648) (2.025,665)

206,000 991,424
(991,424) (199 844}

15479479 20,029,192

23.00 2.934 0998 4019346
29.00 12,543,490 16,009,329
991 518

11,119,001 15,547.904

11.119.001 15.547.904

to Profit and Loss Account 22271136 12,014,792
49,335,704 50,340,240

15,547,904 7.123.288

27,797,503 38,869,760

27,248,134 39,077,935

62.477.503 50,222,101
(60,302,549) [(49,128,835)
(1,625 584) (1,301,441}

5,990,297 4,347,192

530,394 444,415

5459903 3,902,777

49,355,704 50,340,240

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Crystal Insurance PLC

Notes to the financial statements
As at and for the Period ended 31st December, 2024

1.0 General information

L0l Legal form of the Company
Crystal Insurance PLC (CIPLC) (the "company") was incorporated as a public limited company on 11th
November, 1999 under the Companies Act; 1994 having registered office in Bangladesh, CTPLC obtained
pernission (o commence insurance business from Chief Coniroller of Insurance, Dhirectorate of Insurance,
and Government of the Peoples Republic of Bangladesh on 23rd March, 1999, The name of the company
hag been changed from Crystal Insurance Company Limited to Crystal Insurance PLC on 28th Aungust,
2024, The Principal place of business of the company 15 at DR Tower (14th Floor). 65/2/2, Box Culvert
Road, Purana Paltan, Dhaka-1000, Bangladesh which is also the registered office of the company. CIPLC
is engaged in nop-life insurance business within the meaning of the Insurance Act, 2010,

1.02 Principal activities and nature of operations
The principal activities of the company 15 to offer general msurance products that include fire insurance,
marine hull and cargoe insurance, aviation insurance, motor insurance and miscellanecus insurance. These
Insurances provide protection against damage to policy holder's assets if damage occurs from risk covered
by policy. Premium income is the primary source of revenue for the company.

L03 Reporting period
The financial statements of the company cover one calendar period starting from st January 2024 to 31st
December, 2024,

1.04 Date of financial statements anthorized for Issue
Financial Statements of the company for the period ended December 31, 2024 were authorized for issue
on Febmary 09, 2025 in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors.

2.00 Summary of significant accounting and related policies

2.01 Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on going concern and accrual basis under the historical cost
convention. The preparation and presentation of the financial statements and the disclosure of information
have been made in accordance with the Insurance Act 1938 (as amended in 2010), the Insurance Rules
1958 and in conformity with Iniernational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS). the Companies Acl
1994, the Securities and Exchange Rules 1987, the listing rules of Dhaka Stock Exchange Limited and
Chittagong Exchange Limited and other applicable laws and regulations in Bangladesh,
Balance sheet (statement of financial position) has been prepared in accordance with the regnlations as
contained i part-I of the first schedule of the Insurance Act 1938 and as per Form "A" as set forth in Part-
II of that schedule. Profit and loss account (statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income)
and Profit and loss appropriation account has been prepared in accordance with the regulations contained
in part-I of the second schedule and as per Formm "B" & "C" as set forth in part-IT of that scheduls
respectively of the Insurance Act, 1938, Bevenue accounts of each class of general insurance business has
been prepared in accordance with the regulations as contained in par-1 of the third schedule and as per
form "F" as sct forth in Part-11 of that Schedule of the Insurence Act, 1938, The classified summary of the
assets has been prepared in accordance with Form "AA" as set forth in Part-II of the first schedule of the
Insurance Act 1938. The cash Flow Statement has been included as per requirements of the Securities and
Exchange Commissions Rules 1987 as well as guidelines of [AS-7.

2.02 Going concern
The sceompanying linancial statements have been prepared on a going conesrn basis, which contermplated
the realization of assets and the satsfacton of liabilifes in the normal course of business. The
accompanying financial statements do not nclude any actual or proposed adjustments that would result in
Crystal Insurance PLC (CIPLC) being unable to confinue as a going concern,
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2.03 Accounting estimates

Preparation of the fipancial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amount of assets and liabilities, Income
and expenses. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on historical experience and various
other factors that are believed to be ressonable under the circomstance, the results of which form the
basiz of making the judgments about carrving values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources, While mansgement belisves that the arnount included in the financial statement reflect
the company’s best estimates and assumptions, actual resull could differ fiom estimates,

2.04 Materiality and ageregation
Each material item considered by management significant has been presented separately in the financial
statement. No amount has been set off unless Crystal Insurance PLC (CIPLC) has legal right to set off the
amounnts and intends to seitle on a net basis. Income and Expenses are presented on a net basis only when
permitted by relevant accounting standards.

2.05 Comparative information
Comparative information has been disclosed in respect of the period ended 31 December, 2024 for all
numegical dala in the financial slalemenis and also for the narrative and descriptive information when it is
relewant for better understanding of the corent period’s fnancizl statements. Prior period figures have
been reclassified and rearranged whenever considered necessary to ensure comparability with the curreni

year,

2.06 Lease (IFRS-16)
Crystal Insurance PLC (CIPLC), as a leasee, recognize a Right of use {RolU) assets representing its right to
uze of the underlying leased assets and comresponding lease lighility representing its obligation to make
payments for office rent agreements. The RolJ assets and Lease Liability are recognize in the financial
stateraents considering the incremental borrowing rate.
The ROU agset is depreciated using the straight line method from the beginning to the end of useful life of
the ROUT asset or end of the leage term.
The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are adjusted for
monthly payvments,

2.07 Functional and presentation currency
The Financial Statements are presented in Bangladeshi Taka which is the company’s finctional currency
except indicated otherwise,

2.08 Status of compliance with IAS and TFRS
The Financial reporting standards that are applicable/not applicable for the financial statements for the

period, include the following:

IAS 1 Presentation of Fmancial Statemenis *

[AS 2 TInventories N/A
IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows Applied
TIAS 8  Accounting Policies. Changes in Accounting Estimates and Emrors Applied
IAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period Applisd
IAS 11 Construction Contracts NiA
[TAS 12 Ingome Taxes Applhied
IAS 16 Property, Plant and BEquipment Applied
IAS 19 Emplovee Benefits Applied
TIAS 20 Accounting for government granis and disclosure of povernments assistance MW/A
IAS 21 The effect of change in foreipn exchange rates WiA
IAS 23 Borrowing cost NiA
IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures Applied
TIAS 26 Accounting and Feposting by Retirement Benefit Plans Applied
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LAS 27 Consolidated and separate financial statements N/A
IAS 32 Fipancial Instruments: Presentation =

IAS 33 Bamings per Shatre Applied
IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting Applied
IAS 36 Impairment of Assets Applied
IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets Applied
[AS 38 Intungible Assels Applied
IAS 400 Investment Property Applied
IAS 41 Agricultwe N/A
IFRS 2 Share based payment N/A
IFES 3 DBusingss comhination N/A
IFRS 4 Insurance Contracs N/A
IFRS 5 Nou-currents asgets held Tor sale and discontinued operation fA
IFRS 6 Exploration for and evaluation of mineral resources N/A
IFRS 7 Financial instruments: disclosure b

IFRS 8§ Operating Segments Applied
IFRS @ Financial nstruments iz

IFES 13 Fair Value Measurement Applied
IFRES 16 Leases Applied
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts !

* The mapagement of Crystal Insurance PLC (CIPLC) has followed the principles of IAS & IFRS
consistently in the preparation of the financial statements to that extent as applicable to insurance
companies. Some of the standards have not been complied with, about which IDEA has special gnideline,
Departures from [AS/IFRS have been explained in note 2.33,

2.09 Components of the financial statements
Components of the financial statements includes the following as per the Insurance Act 1938 (as
ammended in 2010} and [A8-34 "Interim financial reporting”:
a) Balance sheet (Statement of financial position) as at December 31, 2024,
b) Profit and loss account (Statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income) for the year ended
December 31, 2024
c) Profit and loss appropriation account for the year ended December 31, 2024,
d) Staternent of changes in equity for the vear ended December 31, 2024,
e) Statement of cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2024;
f) Consolidated revenue account for the vear ended December 31, 2024;
g) Fire insurance revenue account for the yvear ended December 31. 2024;
h) Marine cargo insurance revenue account for the year ended December 31, 2024;
1) Marine hull insurance revenue account for the year ended December 31, 2024;
j) Motor insuranes revenue account for the vear ended December 31, 2024;
k) Miscellaneous insurance revenue account for the year ended December 31. 2024 and
1) Notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information to the
accounis for the year ended December 31, 2024,

2.10 Property, plant and equipment
i) Recognition and measurement
Property, plant and equipment are recognized 1Tl is probable that future economic bensfil associated with
the aszet will flow to the Company and cost of the asset can be measured reliably and the asset is available
for use. Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and
accunulated impairment losses.
Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost self-
constructed assets includes the cost of material and direct labor, any other costs directly atiributable to
bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use and the cost of dismantling and removing the
items and restoring the site on which they are located,
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2.13

Gains and losses on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment are determined by comparing the
proceeds from disposal with the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment. When revalued assets
are sold, the relevant amount included in the revaluation reserve is transferred to retained earnings.

i} Subsequent cost

The cost of replacing a component of an items of property, plant and equipment i8 recognized as an
addition to assel ([ it is probable (hat the fulure economic benefits associated with the part will flow to the
company and its cosl can be measured reliably. The carving amount of the replaced component is de-
recognized,

iii) Depreciation

Depreciation is charged on straight line basis. Depreciation is charged on newly acquired assets from the
date when asset is availablzs for use in the manner intended by management. In case of disposal,
depreciation charged up to the date of disposal. The rates of depreciation are furnished below,

Category of assels Rate of Depreciation
Furniture and fixtures 10%4
Office equipments 15%
Office decoration 0%
Sundry sssets 2000
Motor vehivles 20%%
(Office Spaces 5%

iv) De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment iz de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefits are expected from its use. Any gain or loss arisimg on de-recognition of the asset is included in the
Profit and Loss Account (Statement of Profit or Loss and other Comprehensive Income in the period the
asset is de-recognized.)

¥) Impairment of assets

The carrying amounts of the company’s non financial assets are reviewed at regular interval to determine
whether there has any mdication of impairment of an asset.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrving amount of an asset or its cash generating unit exceeds its
estimated recoverable amount. Impairment loszes ate recognized in the statement of comprehensive
income. Considering the present conditions of the assets, management concludes that thers is no such
mdication exisis.

Investment Property

Company’s property, plant and equipment which are held to earn rental income have been classified as
Investment Property as per IAS 40 and accounted for under cost model i.e., the asset is measured ai cost
less accumulated depreciation.

Valuation of assets

The walue of all assets as at 31 December, 2024 has been shown in the Balance Sheet and in the classified
summary of assets on "Form AA" annexed, which has been reviewed and the said assets have been gel
forth in the Balance Sheet on amounts at their respective book value which in the aggregate do not exceed
their aggregate market vahue.

Investment in shares and securities

Company has invested in different types of financial assets. Investment in shares are recorded at fair value.
Investment Fluctuation Fund , accumulates or is adjusted for varealized gains or losses . Realized Income,
gaing, losses generated from the investments iz credited to the Profit and Loss Account. Investment in
Grovt. Securities is recognized at cosi and interest income [om such Securities is recognized in Statement
of Profii and Loss and Comprehensive Income on an accrual basis and periodic adjustment for
premium/discount by made in accordance with IFRS-09,
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2.14 Cash and cash egquivalents

Cash comprises cash in hand. demand deposit, cash equivalents on short term, mghly liquid investments
that are readily convertible to know amounts of cash and those which are what o an insignificant risk of
changes 1n value. Cash and cash equivalents are not restricted in vse and accordingly cash in hand. FDR
and bank balances have been considered as cash and cash equivalents.

2.15 Statement of cash flows
The statement of cash flows has been prepared in accordance with TAS-7 and the cash from the operaling
activities has besn presenied using direct method.

2.16 Reserve or contingencies accounts
i) Reserve for exceptional losses
In line with 4th Schedule of the Income Tax Act 2023, to meet the exceptional losses, CIPLC sets aside
10% of the Gross Premium Income of the period in which it is set aside from the balance of the profit to
the reserve for exceptional losses,
ii) General reserve
Transfer to (reneral Reserve from piofits is done on a lump sum basis as management deems fit. A general
reserve is a reserve, which is created from appropriation of profits. The aim of creating a general reserve is
to provide additional working capital or to strengthen the cash resources of the busmess out of profits and
equalizing the rate of dividend in the periods in which distributable profits are inadequate.

2.17 Deposit premium account
Premium deposit account represents amount of premium deposited with the company agamst cover notes
for which policies are yet to be issued up to the end of the period.

2.18 Provision for liahilitics
According to IAS 37: “Provision, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets” the company recognizes
the provision when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past event and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to seitle the obligations.

2.19 Branch acconnting
Crystal Insurance PLC (CIPLC) now has {42} forty two branches with no overseas branch as of 31
December, 2024, Accounts of all branches have been consolidated (aggregated) at the head office from
which these financial statements are drawn up,

2.20 Segment reporting
A business segment is a distinguishable component of the company that in providing services that are
subject to risks and refurns that are different from those of other business segments. The company
accounts for segment reporting of operating results using the classes of business. The performance of
segments is evaluated on the basiz of underwriting results of each segment. The company has four peimary
business segments for reporting purposes namely fire, marine, motor and mizcellansous.

2.21 Revenue recognilion
1. Premiwm is recognized when insurance policies are issned. The sum of premium income as appeared in
classified revenue accoumis is nel of the refund made, re-insurance ceded and re-insurance premium on
public sector business.
2. The premium in respect of company’s share of public sector insurance business (PSB) is accounted for
in the period in which the relevant statement 1s receivad from Shadharan Bima Corporation (SBC).
3. Amounts received against issue of cover notes are recognized as income at the earlier of cover notes
converted info policies or after expiry of cover notes in accordance with SBC's circular.
4. Interest on fixed deposit receipt (FDRL), account and bonds are recognized as revenue on accrual basis,
5. Income from marketable securities iz accounted for al actual amount earned and received on its
disposal.
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2.22 Provisions relating to collection of premium
The company has complied with the section 18 of the Insurance Act, 1938 (as amended in 2010) az
applicable in regard 1o provision of collection of premium.

2.23 Allocation of total management expenses
Tuolal related managernent expenses have been allocated among the different revenue sccounts on pro-rata bagis of
their respective gross premium income.

2.24 Income Lax
Income tax expense is recognized in the profit and loss appropriation account,
i) Carrent tax
Current tax is the expected tax payable on taxable income for the peviod, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
which are enacted at the reporting date, including any adjustment for tax payable in previous periods.
Provision for Income tax has been made at best estimate keeping in view the provisions of Income Tax
Act 2023 and amendment made thereto from time to time, Applicable rate of income tax for the company
is 37.5%.
ii) Deferred tax assets / liabilities
Company recognizes deferred tax as per IAS-12 on the temporary difference between written down value
of assets. Deferred tax has been included in current period accounts.

2.25 Emplovees details
Dring the year ended 31 December, 2024 total 310 person are emploved. All employees are full-time and
no employees are on contractual basis. Information of the emplovees is given below:

2024 | 2023 |
Mo. of employess' received salary more than Tk, 3,000/= per month 310 317
Mo, of employees’ received salary less than Tk. 3.000/= per month Nil Nil
Mo. part time employees are employed in the company. Nil Hil

2.26 Employee benefits
Crystal insuranee PLC offers a number of bencfit plan for all permanent Employees of the company which
includes contributory provident fund, workers profit participation fund. incentive bonus. group life scheme
(GLS) and car/motor cycle loan scheme which have been accountad for the accordance with the provision
of International Aceounting Standard TAS 19 (Employee Benefits).
{i) Provident fund
Conmmpany operates a recognized provident fund. Permanent employees of the Company are eligible for
the said provident fund. Employees of the company contribute 10% (ten percent) of their basic salary and
the employer makes a similar coniribution. The provident fund is wholly administered by the Board of
Trustees and no part of the fund is included in the assets of the company.
(ii) Group Insurance Policy
The company has been operating a group insurance policy for all its permanent employees for the family
assistance after death of any employee's as per Group insurance Policy terms and condition,
{1ii) Worlcers profit participation fond (WPPF)
The Board of Directors of Crystal Insursnce PLC (CIPLC) in its 81st meeting held on 5 March, 2018
decided 1o introduce workeis® profit participation and welfare fund (WPPF) with effect from 1st January,
2019.
{iv) Gratuity
The company has initiated a funded maluity scheme, The fund is in process for approval by the Mational
Board of Revenue (NBR). and will be administered by the Board of Trustees. Employees are entitled to
benefit at a graduated scale based on the length of sevvice that completed 5 years. When the fund is
approved by NBE, CIPLC will start contribution to the fund and recognize it the finamcial statements,
(v} Other benefits
In addition to the above, Crystal Insurance PLC (CIPLC) providing other benefits to ifs employees likes
incentive bonus, group life scheme (GLS), car/motor cycle loan scheme subject to fulfillment of certain
terms and conditions.
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2.27 Others
Figures have been rounded off 1o the nearest taka .

2.28 Earning per share
Eamings per share have been calculated in zccordance with International Accounting Standards 33:
Earnings Per Share, and shown on the face of profit and loss appropriation account and computation
showm in note 34.00.
Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year
This represents the mumber of ordinary shares outstanding at the beginnmg of the year plus the number of
ordinary shares issued during the year multiplied by a time weighting factor. The time-weighting factor is
the mumbers of days the specific shares are oufstanding as a proportionate of the number of days in the
year,
Diluted earnings per share
Diluted EPS is calculated if there is anv commitment for issuance of equity shares in foreseeable finture,
i.2., potential shares, without inflow of resources to the Company against such issue. There was no such
commitment during the vear and accordingly no dilution is required in the period December 31, 2024,

2.29 Prohibition of loans
Company has not granted any loan or temporary advance to any firm or company in which any director,
auditor, officer, manager, actuary of the company or family member of these people has any interest as
propristor, pariner, director, manager or managing agent without prior approval of the board of directors.

2.30 Related party disclosure
Crystal Insurance PLC (CIPLC), m normal course of business, carried out a number of transactions with
other entities that fall within the definition of related party as per "Intemmational Accounting standavd 24:
Related party Disclosures™. All transactions mvolving relating parties arising m normal course of business
are conducied om an arm’s length basis a commercial rates on the same terms and conditions as
publishable to the third parties. Detailed disclosures have been presented in note 40.00.

2.31 Event after the reporting period
Proposed dividend
The proposed dividend is not recognized as a liability in the statement of financial position in accordance
with "LAS 10; Events after the reporting period"”. Dividend payable fo the company’s sharcholders are
recognized as a liahility only when declared and the shareholders right to receive payment is established.
The dividend proposed afier the balance sheei dale bul before the financial statemenis are authorized [or
izsue, ig disclosed in the notes o the financial statement.
All material events occucring after the reporting period has been considered and where necessary. adjusted
for ar disclosed in the note.

2.32 Risk [actors relating to the company
The vital fagtors ensuring sound health of a msurance company are identifying, measiuring. monitoring and
controlling various type of nsks. Crystal Insurapce PLC (CIPLC) 15 mereasingly focusing op development
of appropriate risk management framework for managing risks of the organization,
a) Operational risk management
Operational risk focuses on how things are accomplished within an organization and not necessarily hat is
produced or mherent within an indusiry. These risks are often associated with active decisions relating to
how the organization functions and what it prioritizes. While the risks are not guaranteed to result in
failure, lower services, or higher management costs, they are seen as higher or lower depending on various
inteinal management decizions.
Mitigation of operational risk
1. Crystal Insurance Company assesses ifs operations and activiries against a menu of potential operational
rizk vulnerabilities.
2. Risk mapping identify the key steps in business processes, activities and organizational fimctions, Risk
mapping can reveal individual risks, risk interdependencies, and areas of comtrol or risk management
weakness.
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2. Risk mapping identify the key steps in business processes. activities and organizational functions. Risk
mapping can reveal individual risks, risk interdependencgies, and areas of control or risk management
weakness.

3. Risk indicators are staiistics and/or metrics, often financial. which can provide insight into risk position
of insurance industry.

4. The use of dala on historical underwriling loss experience could provide meaningful information for
assessing ifs exposure to operational risk and developing a policy to mitigate the risk.

b) Liguidity risk

Liquidity is the ability to meet expected and unexpected demands for cash. Specifically, it is a company's
ability to meet the cash demands of its policy and contract holders without suffering amy (or a very
minimal) loss. The liquidity profile of & company is a function of both its asseiz and labilities. Tiquidity
rigk is inherent in the financial services industry and one muost understand measure, monitor and manage
this rigk.

Mitigation of liquidity risk

1. Adhere to the lines of auvthority and responsibility that management has established for managing
liquidity rizk.

2. Oversee the implementation and maintenance of management information and other sysiems that
identify, measure, monitor and conirel the liquidity risk of CTPLC: and

3. Establish effective internal controls over the lLiguidity 1isk management process and ensure that the
same is communicated ta all officials.

¢) Marlket risk

Market risk is the risk of losses in positions arising from movements in market prices, The most
commonly used types of market risk are; Equity risk, Intemnet tate risk Currency risk, Commodity risk,
Margining risk. Shape risk, Holding period risk. Basis risk etc,

Mitization of market risk

1. Imaplement the market risk management policies:

2. Oversee the developmenl, implementation and maintenance of an appropriate MIS that identify
measure, monitor, and control marcket risk.

3. Establish effective internal controls to monitor and control market risk.

4. Establish and utilize a method for accurately measuring the market risk; and

5. Monitor and control the nature, composition and quality of the company’s securities portfolio and
ensure that the securities portfolio is soundly and conservatively valued.

d) Underwriting risk

Underwriting risk refers to the potential loss to CIPLC emanating from faulty underwriting. The same may
affect the solvency and profitability of the company in an adverse manner. Underwriting is a critical risk
mitigation mechanism adopted in the insurance industry. The process helps in deciding the appropriate
premium for an insured. The underwriter needs to match the premivm received with the claims paid with
an eye on profitability. In the event of a dichotomy between the two, with the premium received not
sufficient enough to cover the claims, the company is confronted with the probability of loss,

&) Re-insurance risk

Ee-insurance risk refers to the inability of the ceding company or the primary insurer to obtain insurance
from a reinsurer at the right time and at an appropriate cost, Insurers transfer a part of their portfolio to a
remsurer in exchange for a premium. However, the umavailability of reinsurance at the right time and cost
has ramifications for the ceding company. A default on the part of the remsurer can lead to adverse
mmpactz on the profitability and solvency of the ceding insurer.

f) Environmental and social visk

Environmental rigk, however, presents many difficullies to the insumance industy, especially when the
focus is on the so-called gradual pollution phenomena, which are characterized by: factual uncerlainty and
long terms effects, Environmental risk is a peculiar one, given that it includes components of both factual
and legal uncertainty. Given the complexity of modern production technologies. problems of adverse
gelection could be widely present in environmenial insurance seitings, whenever the classificaiion of every
specific rislk vndertaken is not accurately performed bw the insurer. Moral hazard phenomena are also
seriously involved in this context. It is easy to understand how the industry could erroneously perceive the
insurance coverage and the insurance premium.
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Mitigation of environmental and social risk

1. At the time of cover noting, all environmental issues relevant {o the proposed business activity has
been determined.

2. Once the environmental risk are identified, these are evaluated based on Guidelines of IDRA.

3. Afier evaluation of the environmental risk CIPLC incorporate this business as a risk-associated zone,

) Strategic Risk

Strategic risk is the risk that failed business decisions may pose to a company. Strategic risk is offen a
major factor in determining a company’s worth. particularly observable if the company experience a sharp
decling in s short period of lime.

Mitigation of Strategic Risk

1. Identify the risks categories such as mdustry, technology, brand, competitors, customers, project and
regulations etc.

2. Mapping the risks to provide wisual representation of associated risks across the categories and
criteria,

3. Quantifying the fsks with a view Lo express those in monetary term.

4, TPrieritizing the risls as per their significance and impact,

3. Developing proper rislc mitigating action plan is crucial for mimimizing potenfial losses.

6. Monitoring the risks by assigned group and responzible parties.

h) Compliance risk

Compliance risk is exposure to legal penalties, financial forfeiture and material loss an organization faces
when il fails to acl in accordance with mdustry laws and regulations, internal policies or prescibed best
practices, Compliance risk 15 also sometimes known as integrity risk.

Mitigation of compliance risk

1. Establish and implement the compliance risk management framework based on criteria and standards
set by the authority.

2. Ensures that employees at all levels fully understand their individual reles and responsibilities in
implementing compliance risk management framework.

3. Ensures ongoing compliance training that covers compliance requirements for all business lines af
different regulatory.

4, Submit compliance risk management report to the Audit Committee,

i) Anti Money Laundering (AML) Risk

Actions that show crime assstz as income from a legitimale souree to hide the illegal source of money are
Called money laundering, and with the development of techmology, money laundering events are
increasing, At this point, businesses need. Money laundering (AML) Risk Assessment, an analytical
process applied to a business to measure the possibility of rooney lanndering or terrorist financing,
Mitigation of Anti Money Laundering (AML) Risk

1. Understanding the aspeciz of Money Laundering & Terronst Financing risk, managemeni exhibits
slrong commilment o complianece,

2. The Auvthority approved an AML & CFT compliance programa  that includes adequate policies,
procedures, controls, and information systems.

3. In order to ensure AML compliance, CIPLC gonstruct Central Compliance Unit and amrangs training
for all the officials of CIPLC.

4. Crystal Insurance PLC (CIPLC) takes necessary steps immediately againel suspicious aclivily or
substantive violations of law.

5. The Compliance and controls system of the company is promptly adapt the changes in internarional lists
regarding AML & CFT issues.

1) Information Technology Risk

CIPLC has an IC'T audit team vnder HIAC, which has been formed to conducts IT audit in each branch on
a periodic baziz and provides suggestions to higher management. The team also assesses the IT related
igks faced by the company and suggests appropriste measures (o mitigale rislk.
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2.33 Disclosure of departures from few requirements of TFRS due to mandatory compliance of
Insurance Aci’s requirements
The management of Crystal Insorance PLC (CIPLC) has followed the principles of TFRS consisienily in
preparation of the fnancial statements to that extent as applicable o the company. Some requirements of
Insurance Act 1938 (as amended in 2010) and Insurance Rules 1958 and regulations contradict with [FRS,
As such the company has departed from those contradictory requirements of IFRS in order to comply with
the Tules and regulations of IDRA which arg disclosed below:
1) Insurance Act 1938 {as amendad in 2010) has issued templates for fnancial statements which has to be
followed by all general and life insurance companies. CIPLC followed the guidelines of IDRA and
presented financial staternents accordingly.
i1} Invesiments in quoted shares and unquoted shares revalued at the period end &l market price and as per
book value of last audited Balance Sheel respectively. Pravisions are created by netting off any unrealized
gain/(loss) arising at the period end date as per industry practice which has been widely pragtice in
insurance sector in Bangladesh, However as per requirements of [FRS 2 investment in shares falls either
under “at fair value through profit and loss account™ or under “fair value through other comprehensive
income” where any change in the fair value at the period-end is talen to profit and loss accoumt or other
comprehensive income regpectively.
iii) General provision on insurance premium and re-insurance premium are ceealed as per Insurance Act
1938 (as amended 2010) . However such general provision cannol satisfy the conditions as per JAS 37. Ad
the period end the CIPLC has recopnized provision of BDT 227361974/~ as balance of fimd and
liabilities in the balance sheet under liabilities.
iv) As per IDRA puidelines, financial instrumenis are categorized, recognized and measored differently
[rorm those prescribed in IFRS &, Disclosures in the presciibed templates of IDEA puidelines are disclosed
only,
v) IFRS-17 Insurance Contracts, is not applied in preparing the Financial Statements for the year ended 31
December 2024 in line with the general practices prevailing within the insurance industry in Bangladesh.
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Amount in taka |

300 Share capital
Anthorized capital

100000000 crdingry shares of Tk 10,00 each — L000.000.000  _ 1.000.000.000
Issned, subseribed and paid up capital
44,000,000 vrdinary shares of Tl 10/- sach 440,000,000 400,000,000

4,000,000 Bonus Shares hus been dishursed during the year,
Caregory-wise sharcholdings

Category of shareholders Muo. of shares Amount in th Percentage

Director and sponsor sharsholders {3.01) 25,520,000 255 .200,000 52,0083
Tnglitute 7.873.029 T8.730.290 17.89%
Foreign 14,444 144 440 0.03%
General public 10,592,527 105.925.270 24.07%

Grand Todal 44,000,000 440,000,000 L00%%

3.01 Director and sponsor shareholders
Name Position N, of ghares Ampunt in Th. Percentage
Abdullah Al-Mahmod (hatrman 4. 400,000 44,000,000 10.00%
Abdullah Hasan Diractor 4,400,000 44,000,000 10.00%
A H.M. Mozammel Hogoe Director 280,000 8,300,000 2.00%
Md. Tajul Islam Director 590,000 4,500,000 225%
Farhana Danesh Director L0350, 500 10,505,000 2 39%
Mabila Mahmud Dipector 2,200,000 22,000,000 3.5
Soera Zahir Director 2,200,000 22,000,000 5.00%
Nusrat Mahrmud Director 4,400,000 44,000,000 10.00%
Amfat Rashid Director BE0,000 B30, 000 2.00%
Azoke Ranjan Kapurie Sponser Shareholler 1,320,000 13,200,000 3000
Igkal Hasan Mahmoaod Spoasor Sharaholder 412,500 4,125,000 0.94%
Sarah Hasein Mahmood Sponsor Sharsholder 330,000 5,300,000 0.75%
Rubyat Tanves: Huda Sponsor Shareholder 257,000 2,970,000 0.68%
Svyed Salman Habib Sponsar Shareholder 586,666 5,866,660 1.33%
Syeda Samina Mirza Sponsor Sharcholder 293,334 2,933,340 (.64
Surava Akler Tondra Sponzor Eharcholder 440,000 4. 400,000 1.00%%
Ehalid Al Mamun Sponsor Shareholder 220,000 2,200,000 0.50%
Zarif Al Mamuon Sponso; Sharsholder 220,000 2,200,000 (.50%
Twtal 25.520,000 255200, 00 S5.00%%
= As per the succession order by the court Syeda Samina Mirza and Syed Salman Habib inherited the shares from late Shahzadi
Beguim,
400 Reserve and surplus

Reserve for exceptional losses (note no- 4.01) 672,264,178 SO0.959,697
Retained earnings (Profit and loss appropriation account) 47230661 59.892.199
Investment luctuation fund (note wo- 4.02) (40,937.2100 (26240.731)
General regerve (note no-4.03) 11,000,000 10,000,000
Total 659,497,628 634.611.106

4.01 Reserve for exceprional losses
Rrzserve for exceptional losses kept as per pavagraph 6 of the fourth schedule of Tncome Tax Act 2023, Detailed caleplation s

given below,

Opening balance 590,950,607 519,885,963
Reserve made during the year B1.304 430 71.073.734
Cloging balance 672,264,178 590,959,697

Reserve for exceptional losses made during the period @ 10% on Gross Premiom (Le. 10% of BDT. B13,044.804).

Particulars Grosspremipm | =9 I;:rﬂ“““' 2024 2023
Fire insurance 375.577.003 10% FF.557.700 31.608.973
Marine cargo insurance 303,869,106 10%% 30,386,911 26,292 035
Marine hull insurance 10780616 10%% 1078062 1415126
Motor insurance 33,092,443 10% 3,300 244 2,823,598
Miscellaneous insurance 80,725,617 10% 8,572,564 8,930,004
Total 813,044,804 81,304,480 T1.073.734
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4.02

4.03

5.0

&.00

7400

.00
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Investment Doctuation Mond

| Amountin taka

Opening balance (26,240,791 (6,544,964 )
Provigion made doring the year (14,756,419) [19.695.827)
Closing balance (40,997,210} (26,240,791}
General resérve

Opening balance 10,000,000 2,000,000
Reserve made during the year 1.000.000 1,000,000
Closing balance L0, 00 10,004,001
Balance of funds and accounts

Fire insurance revenue account 106,718.452 24,896,684
Marine cargo insurance revenus account 01.875955 TE 41061
Marine hull insurance revenue sccount 441,589 3,261,928
Motog insurance revenue acooumnt 13,236,977 10,735,017
Miszcellaneous. Insurance revenue account 11.119.001 15,547 904
Closing balance 227.561.974 192,502,593

The above balance represent regerve for unexpited risk @ 40%: of premium income of the year for fire. macine cargo, motor and
nuscellaneous insurance business and (@ 100% of premiom mcome of the period for marine hull business.

Leaze liability

Opening balance 18.610.675 11,679,387
Addition during the year 12.927.956 14,726.926
Be-payment of lease ligbiliny {10,879,741) (7,795,638)
Closing balance 20,658,800 18,610,675
Deposit premimm

The below mentioned amonnt inclodes premium received agrinst cover notes for which policies have not been issued within 315t
December, 2024, While the nisks against non-marine and marine hull hawe been assumed from the issuance of cover notes, risks
agningt marine cargo have not been assurned vatil shipment advices are provided. After receiving of shiprment advices. policies

are issued for manne cargo Businesses.

Fire insuiance - -
Marine cacgo insurance S6443 228 117,830,397
tiarine hull insurance - -
Motor msurance - -
Miscellaneous ingurance - -
Cluosing balance 96,443,228 117,830,387
Deferred tax liability

Accounting base written down value of property, plant and eguipmeniz 2TT.835.590 286,351,528
Tax base written down value of property. plant and equipiments 2768.910.213 281,542 685
Taxable temporary dilference (945.383) {4.808.843)
Tax rate 37.50% 37.50%
Deferred tax Hability 354.519 1.B03.315

To caleulats tax base wiitten down value we charged depeeciation on propeily, planl and squipments as per the 3rd schedule of

Incame Tax Act 2023,

Deferred tax liabilivy/assels

Opening balance 1,803,315 4,683 242
Differed lax [income)/expenies (1.448,796) {2.879.927
Closing halance 354519 1.803.315
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9.00 Estimated liability in respect of ouisinnding claims whether due or intimated
Fire ingurance business
iarine cargo msurance business
ilarine bull mswrance business
iotor Insurance business
iizcellaneous ingurance business
Closing Balance

% ol %%;L
Amount in taka

66,146,232 40,816,603
62,521,795 62,035,335
: 2,850,000
3,105,001 4,120,159
206.000 99 424
131,979,168 119,813,521

Al the claims against which the company received intimations within 31st December, 2024 have been taken info consideration

while eatimating the liability of outstanding claims,

10.00 Amounts doe to other persons or bodies carrying on insurance business
Opening balance
Payable for the peciod
Clam recovery
Paid/Adjusted during the year
Closing balance

This balance represent the dus amount to Sadharan Bima Cosposation (SBC) for re-insurance arrangements.

1L00 Sundry creditors
A, Management expense
Audit fees
Car Mainfenance
Fuel and lubricant
Office rent
Office decoration
Muotor vehicle payable {car)
Provident fund
Printing and starionary
Legal fees
Loan from united securities
Oiffice Equipment
Salary and allowances
Telephone bill
VAT at source payable
Tax at source payable
VAT on office cent pavable
Total
B.(nher pavables
Advance deposit (office premises)
Prowvision for income tax (note no- 11.01)
Stamp duty
Security deposit
VAT pavable®
Total

Closing balance (A+E)

275.661.204 214,034,728
51,659,243 08 614264
(35,242,257 .
(22 473.862) (37.987,699)
269.604.418 275,661,294
597,000 480,000
30,000
50,000 50,000
1171276 622,750
- 1,303,914
500,000
3472.134 5.826.854
162,500 79,292
12,431,462 9968718
15,500 12,500
3228253 2,776,032
1.320.444 3.013.715
%0375 56,336
23,077,943 24,190,111
1,565,300 1,363.170
125.500.638 85424273
20,393,602 22384174
80,000 80,000
3672.737 3340272
151.221.277 112,491,889
174299320 136,682,000

¥ Vat payable represent amomnt payable to gove. treasury for the month of December 2024 which was peid in January 2025,

1101 Prowision for incgme tax
Cipening balance
Prowvision of income tax for the wear (note no- 11.02)
Tax paid for meome year - 2023 (assesement year 2024-2023)
Closing balance
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85424273 71,287,135
42,585,366 20,065,215
{2.500.000) (5.928.677)
125,509,638 85,424,273
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11.02

12.00

13.00

14,00
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Provision of income tax for the period
Profii before tax as per profif and loss acgount
Reserve for exceptional losses

Interest on Bangladesh govt. ireasuiy bond
Bealized Loss Again) on investment in shares
Dividend income

Provision for workers profit participation fund
Buginess income

Profit om dividend income

Realised gain on investment in shares

Interest on Bungladesh govt, treasury bond
Total imcome

a) Tax on business income {@37.50%

b} Tax on realised gain on shares (@ 15%

) Provigion far Tax againgt Stock Dividend @ 10%*

¢} Provision for tax for interest on Bangladesh gowt, treasury bond (@ 37.50%

d) Tax on dividend income §& 20%
Tax provision for the period
Tax rates are assumed as per the income tax act 2023,

Amount in (alea

187,718,488 146,013,267
(81,304,480) (71,073,734)
(8,290,991} (3.795,041)
14,440,476 (13,968.874)
{6,953 ,588) (4.931,392)
(8.938,976) (6,953,013
96,670,929 45,291,214
6,953,588 4,931,392
(14,440, 476) 13,968 874
8,290,951 3,795,041
97,475,032 67,986,320
36,251,398 16,984,205
(2,166.071) 2,095,331
4,000,000 -
3,109,121 s
1,390,718 086278
42,585,366 20,065,815

* As stock dividend (ie. 10%) exceed cash dividend (iie. 07%) toe the year 2023 the company made provision for income fax

{@10%) om stock dividend (i.e 40,000,000} as per sec. 23 of the Incoms tax act 2023,

UnpaidMnclaimed dividend
Opening balance

Dividend payable

Tax deducted af source on dividend
Paid during the year

Closing balance

Provision for workers profit participadon fund (WPPF)
Balance at beginning of the vear

Erovision of WPET fur the year

Faid during the year

Closing balance

Provision of WPPF for the period-end

Profit before tax and WIPFF

Frofit before tax (Profit before tax and WPPF/1.05)
Provision for WPPF (5% of Profit belore tax)

Property, plant and equipments
Clost at the beginning of the vear
Additien during the year

A. Cost at the vear-gnd
Accumulated depreciation
Balance at the beginning of the year
Addition during the year

B. Balance at the period end

Writlen down valug af the perind end (A-IF)

2,953,778 2,618579
68,108,339 40,000,000
{3.300,598) (4,581.284)

(67.292,695) (35.083.517)

468,825 2,953,778
6,953,013 6.201.873
8,938,976 6,953,013
(6,953,013) (6.201,873)
8,938,975 5,953,013

187,718,488 146,013,267

178,779.512 139,060,254

8,938,976 6,953,013

530, 145,900 523,601,838
27.816.280 6,544,062

557,962,181 530,145,900

272,589,256 237.258.103
34,157,201 35,331,133

306,746,436 272,589,236

251,215,745 157,556,665

Schedule for the detail of property, plant and equipments presented in Annexuré A (Fixed Asseis Scheduls),
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1500 Advaneg against land and office space
Opening balance
Security deposit against land (RAJUK)
Security deposit money refind apgainst land (RAJUK)
Advance sgaisnl office space (Gulshan)
Cloging balance

% B %%ﬂ;

‘ Amount in taka

23,450,000 12,000,000
: 11,450,000
{11.450,000) 2
63,136,000 =
75,136,000 23,450,000

In 2012, the company booked 2 10 katha plot in the Baghundhaza Riverview Green Tawn project at a total cogt of ik, 12,000.000
and paid the fotal amount (e, k12,000,000, boi the land registration process is vet 10 be completed,

16.00 Investments
Bangladash govt. treasury bond (note no-16.01)
Irvestment in Venluga &sset Management
Investment in shares-Fair value of the shares (note no-16.0.2)
Closing balance

16.01 Bangladesh govt. treasury bond {BGTB)
Oqrening balance
Purchased during (be year
Adjustment during the year
Closing balance

119,213 887 60,000,000
50,000,000 50,000,000
117,445,380 199,092 874
286,659,267 300,002 574
60,000,000 50,000,000
39,165,720 10,000,000
48,167 £
119,213,887 o0, 000,000

During the reporling period, adjustments wers made 1o the Bangladesh Government Treasury Bond (BGTR) to reflect discount

piices m comphiance with IFRS &

1602 Tovestment in shares (Fair value of the shares)
Opening balance
Opening cash balance on B/O accounts
Irvvestment during the vear
Withdrawal during the year
Pealized gainloss
Loan from united securities
Lozn paid to United Securities
Closing ledger balance
Fees and chagges
Unrealizged gainloss
Closing balance

199,092 873 214,591,839
102,217 221,296
1,00} 116,273
(52,390,000) (10.000,000)
{14.440,475) 13,968,874
5 5413

e (5413)
{153.393) (102.217)
(10,423) (7,384)
{14,756.419) (19,695,827
117,445,380 199,092,873

Investment in shares has been stated in the statement of financial position at macket value as of 313t December 2024, Unrealised

gainloss is shown in a separate fund called "Tnvestment fluctuation fund” on the liability side of the Balance Sheet,

1700 Investment property
Opening balance
Depreciation dusing the yeat
Closing balance

28,794,864 30,949,872
{2.155.008) (2.155,008)
26,639,856 28,794,864

The let-out office spaces of Agrabad and Jessors were recognized as investment property under 1AS 40, initially recognized al

cost plug divectly attributable cost to the asset.

1800 Right of use (Roll}y assels
Opening balance
Addition during the year
Adjustment with advance office rent
Amertization of ROU agsets
Closing balance

19080 Insuramce stamps
Insurance stamps
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20,653.392 12,136,172
14,827 484 19,031,504
{976.586) i
(11,721,173} (10,514,284
22,783,117 20,653,392
927,538 1,584,825
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20.00

2100

2200

22.m

23.00

24.00

2500

2600
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Amount due from other persons or bodies carrying on insurance business
Receivable fvom SBC

Opening balance

Addirion during the vear

Cloging balanee

Accroed interest

Accrued bot not dug

Acerued interest of FDR accounts

Accrued interest of Bangladesh govt. weasury bond

Closing balance

The amounts represent interest acoried but not recerved diiing the period.

Sundry debtors {including advances. deposits and prepayments)
Advance against office rent

Advance againgt office salary

Advance againsl motor vehicle

Advance to Printing

Dividend receivable

Security deposit agamst office rent

Holding Period Intersst Recemvable (BGTE)

Receivable from CICL employees provident fund
Advance intereal paid on Bangladesh govt. ireagury bond
Advange income t@x (note no-22.01}

Closing Balance

Advance income thy

Balance at the beginning of the year
Advance tax deduction against interest on FDRs STD A/C and BGTBS
Advance tax deposited against vehicle
Advance tax deposit against office rent
Advance tax deposited ugaingt Aodil Fee
Dreduction against dividend on shares
Advance tax paid

Cloging halange

Cash and bank balances

Cash in hend

B/ account balance

Cash at banks on ST accounts

Cash at bapks on CD accounts

Closing balance

Fixed deposit receipt (FDR) with banks and other financial institutions

Amonng in taka |

138.203,082 126497 497
13,324,135 11,705,583
151,527,207 138,203,082
£4320,079 14,134 542
1,805,934 830,373
56,126,013 14,765,215
1,483 257 1,756,543
6,123 832 4547 857
450,000 6,400,000
g 9
1,223,000 1,150,000
158816 -
543 202 501,979
450,241 450,241
84,782,508 6l057.883
103,413,953 76,264,651
£1,057,883 50,516,867
10,635,836 £6.226.036
1,595,000 1,212,500
63.162 121202
40,000 =
1.390,718 981,278
10,000, 000 2,000,000
84,792,508 61,057,383
76,586 148,625
153,393 102,217
27,966,265 28,049,079
10,634,289 2.908.583
38,830,532 31,208,505
1.046.347.617 1005 847.617

The above balance inchades investment in banks and financial institetes, which are readily converfible to cash at short notice.

Depreciation
Depreciation on property. plant and equipment
Depreciation on investment property
Total
Interest income
FDR accounts
STD accounts
Bangladesh gove. reasury bond
Total

34.157.201 35,331,133
2.155.008 2.155.008
36,312,209 37,486,140
90.938.628 38,522459
731,068 532.997
§.290,991 3,795,041
99,960,687 42,850,496
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27.00

28.00

29.00

ther income
Miscellangous income
Office rent (investment property)
Crarage rent (investment properiy)
Service charge on co-inswrance and refund premivm
Realized gain'{loss) from sale of listed companies shares
Forfeiture amount of provident fund
Dividend income from listed companies shares
Total

Agent commission

Class of busingss

Fire insurames

Marine cargo insurance

Marine hull insurancs

Mitor insurance

Miscellaneous insurance

Togal

Management ¢xpenses

AGM and annual conference
Cable and internet bill

Car allowanoe

Car maintenance

Charge allowance

Conveyance

Earned leave-zncashment
Electivity,water and gas bill
Entartainmeni

Festival Bonus

Fuel and lubricant

Garage rent

Insurance Premiurm

Inapection Fee

Legal expenses

Mecting exponse

Office maintenance

Office rent

Paper and periodicals

Postage and revenue

Ponting and stationary
Professional Fee

Provident fund

Press release

Scholarship

Salary and allowance

Service charge of co-insurance
Eepair and mainteqance
Telephone (Mobile and residential)
Telephone {Office }

Tanning fees

Travelling allowance

Lhility Tl

VAT paid on office rent
Wages

Management expenses except public sector business
Management expéenses for public sector buginess (PSB)
Tuotal

Sl Report 2024
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Amount in taka

55085 4TAL4
1,993,528 2,228,416
36,000 36,000
- 7,700
(14,440,476) 13,968 874
40,223 191,360
6,953.588 4931392
(5.362.052) 21,411,156
37.355.034 30,947,541
30,227,124 24318301
923432 526,008
3,369,574 2,657,084
2,934,998 4,019,346
74,810,162 52,468,280
462750 165 444
£30.730 §27.693
7.251.669 18,343,167
663,320 310258
1,913.000 1,994,000
1,755.483 1,536,396
420,820 685,287
1,476,464 1,392,871
2,363,800 2,131,323
12.204.106 11,038,821
1,105.476 1,015,480
79,800 85,975
174.568 132,894
5420
86.938 532,500
. 161,855
B67.635 1.177.802
427,105
126.006 123,259
803,262 755,714
6,506,203 4,081,376
107402 360,000
4,322,640 4,284,700
2 345381
215,500 228,500
143,148.567 129,223 422
415317 384 984
: 929,925
1704770 1528415
412 875 321,009
55.000 87.665
265966 149 459
4,394,435 3,914,721
958938 1,207,373
504,817 405,550
196,246,781 190,274,419
9,938,773 7,754,388
206.185.554 198,028,807
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33.00

34.00
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Management expenses

PSB business as
pir Statements
shown by SBC

Classes of business Expenses agains

direct bosiness Kispense eatininl

Total management
expenses for 2024

Total management

expenses for 2023

Fire insurance GH.292138 S0.09% 2.604,6039 100.8%6,778 93,404 305
Marine cargo msuranes TR.B20,823 40, 16% 2.200,520 81,111,343 78058497
Marine bull msuiance 2477273 1.26% 164,262 2.641.535 2RI NTE
Motor insurance 2.T98.ETO 4 48% 153,540 3,992,409 8273500
Digeallaneong msumnee TE5T76TT 4.00% 4.685.813 12,543 490 16,009 3249
Tatal 196,246,781 100%, 9.938.773.45 206,185,554 198,028,807

Events afier the reporting period

The board of directors, at its 104th meeting held on I8 Febmary 2024, proposed a 12.00% cash dividend for the year ended 31

Diecember 2024,
Liability for VAT

The liabilities of VAT amounting o Tk, 3,672,737 only for the month of 31st December 2024 which has subsequently been

deposited in govt. freasury on January, 2025,

Tax assessment position:
Dietails have been shewm m the Anpexure -B.

Met agset value (NAY) per share

Assels (A)

Property, plant and equipments

Advence agamst land and office space

Investments

Investment property

Right of use (Roll) agsets

Insurance stamps

Amount dee from other persons or bodies carmymg on insurance buginess
Accroed inferest

Sundry debtors (including advances, deposits and propayments)

Cash and cash equivalents

Total nssets

Liabilities (B)

Balanee of funds and acconnts

Leaze [isbilivy

Depogit premiutm

Deferred tax liability

Estimated liability in respect of outslanding claims whether due of intimated
Amounts due to other persans or bodiss carrying on insurance business
Sundry creditors

UnpaidUnclaimed dividend

Provision for workers profit participation fond {WEPF)

Tojal liahilities

Met nssets valoe [C) = [A-B)
MNuomiber of auistanding shares (T¥)
Med assels valog per share{C/T¥)

751,215,745 257.556,665
75,136,000 23,450,000
286.639.267 309.092.874
268,630 854 28,7094 Bo4
22783117 20653302
927,538 1,584 825
151,527,207 138,203,082
56.126.013 14,765.215
103,413,955 76,264,651
1,085,178,150 1,037,056,122
2,059 606,847 1,907.421,691
727.361.974 192.502.593
20,658,890 15,610,673
06,443 228 117,830,397
354,519 1,803,315
131,979,168 119,813,521
269,604,418 275,661,294
174,299,220 136,682,000
468,825 2,953,778
8,938,975 6,953,013
930,100,218 872.810,586
1,129,497,629 1,034,611,105
44,000,000 44,000,000
25.67 23.51

Previous Year's NAV (ie. BDT 25.87) has bean restated during the year due to issuance of Bonns Shares.

Earning per share (EPS)

Eaming per share (EPS) has been computed by dividing the basic earning by the numbei of ordinary shares outstanding at the end

Met profit after tax and WPPF (note na-34.01)
Mumber of shares onistanding

Earning per share (EPS)

Previous Year's EPS (i.e. BDT 3.05) hus begn restated during the yeuar due to isgoance of Bonus Sharey,

Met profit after tnx and YWEPK
Wet profit for the period

Provision for companies income tax
Provigion for deferred tax
Provizion for WPPF

Met profit after tax and WEPKF

137.642 9432 121,874,367
44,000,000 44,000,000
3.13 2.77
187,718 488 146013267
(42,585,366) (20,065.815)
1,448,795 2879927
(8.938.976) (6.953,013)
137,642,942 121,874,367
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3500 Net operating cash flow per share (NOCEPS)

Amnuntin taka

Met cash flaws from operating activities 96,78%.543 069,655 098
Mumber of shares ouistanding 44, 000,000 44,000,000
Net operating cash flow per share (NOCFPS) 2.20 1.58

Pravious Year's WOCFPE (Le. BDT 1.74) has been restated during the year due to issuance of Bonus Shares. NOCFPS increased
by 26.42% frowm the previows year due 1o inerease of premijum income during the year.

Reconcilintion of net income with cash flows from operating netivities

Net profit before income tax 187,718,488 || 146,013,267
Adjustment for:
Diepreciation 36,312,200 37486140
Interest income [99,960,687) (42 850.496)
DMividend income (6,953,588) (4,931.392)
Loss/ {(Gain} on sale of shares 14,440 476 (13.965.874)
Office rent {Investment property) (1,993,528} (2,228 416)
(Garage rent {investment property) (36.000) {36.000)
(58.191.118) (26,529,038)
Change in operating assets
Increassi{decrease) the balance of fund 34.859 381 (370,706)
Increase/{decrease) the premimm deposit (21.387.169) (38, 387.870)
Incrgase{decrease) of amount due to other persons or budies (6.056,876) 61,626,566
Increase/{decrease) of cutstanding claims 12,165,645 (32.528.722)
Inerease/{decreases) of sundoy creditor except tax pavable (1,000,153) 4 841753
{Increase)/decrease of stock of stamps and others 637,287 3E2 962
{Increase ) deciease of advancs, depoail and piepayment except AIT (5.514,000) (10,682, 102y
{Increase)/decrease of amoimt due from other persons or bodies (13,324.125) [11,705,585)
WEPF amount paid (6,953,013) (6,201,873)
Income tax paid (26,184,715} (16,799,554}
(32,737.826) (49.825.131)
Net eash generated from operating activities (indirect method) 06,789,543 na,t.sggm
Net eash generated from operating activities {direct method) U6.789.543 69,659,008

3700 Cootingent asset/Tliability:

38.00

J.00

There 15 no conlingent asset or liability of the company a3 at 3 [-12-2024 except the following:

Contingent liability for VAT demand

The Commissioner of Customs Excise & VAT Commissionerate, Dhaka (South), Dhaka vide their letter No. 8/ b{aen)T
o, S 48/on/a08% B demanded an amount of VAT tk 293354800 and Interest amount Taks 1,173,579 for the
period 2006, The Company has submitted necessary papers and documents vide letter No, BrerEBueSie/farzesq/oeas ofiy:
safdafaodd againgl such umacceptable demand of the Comimdgsioner of Customs, Excige & VAT Commissionerate, Dhaka
(South), Dhaka. Subsequently management of CIPLC 2lso appealed to the Appealed Tribunal of Customg, Bxeise & VAT and the
authority has not given final decision till date.

Borrowing position of the company
Mo credit facility undar any confract other than frade credit available in course of business were availed by Crystal Insurance PLC
(CIPLC) for the period ended 31 December. 2024,

Foreign currency (ransactions
Mo transaction incurred in foreign currencies for the period endad.
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Crystal Insurance PLC (CIPLC)
FORM "AA"

Classified summary of assets as at 31st December, 2024

Hpe

Bty

:l} Classes of assets 02 4Amﬂm1t =L talmmza Remarks
1 |Property, plant and equipments 251,215,745 257,556,665 |Realisable value
2 |Advance against land and office space 75.136.000 23,450,000 |Fair Value
3 |Investments 286,659,267 309,092,874 WDV
4 |Investment property 26,639 856 28.794.864 (Cost
5 |Right of use (RolU) assets 22783117 20,653,392 [Cost
6 |Insurance stamps B27.538 1,584,825 |Realizable value
7 j:'r;";; 2:‘: :]1:; ‘:fa:;:‘;:gﬁq s 151.527.207 138.203.082 |Realisable value
§ |Accrued interest 56,126,013 14.765.215 |Realisable value
9 :ﬁ;ﬁiﬁgﬁgd“hg aivances. depndia 103.413 955 76.264.651 [W.D.V
10 |Cash and cash equivalents 1,085.178.150 1.037.056.122 | At Cost

Total 2,059,606,847 1,907,421,691

M. Saydul Tslam
Chief Financial Officer

Director

Dhaka, 09 February, 2025

Sunaal Report 2024

A AN

M, Mahfuzur Rabhman FCA
Company Secrelary

-~

<
A H.M. Mozammel Hogue
Director

Al

S W Shahi

ﬁql’llah

Chief Executive Officer

%

Abdullah-Al-Mahnud
Chairman
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Crystal Insurance PLC (CIPLC)

Income tax assessment position (up to 31.12.2024)

Annexure-B

Income
Year

Assessment
Year

Status

2007

2008-09

The tax authority assessed (ax th, 13,366,504 with gimple interest the. 1.835.445as per demand nolice
/5 133, 15t & 2nd appeal completed, Further, App2al has been filed to the honowrsble High Court
Division and the decision is pending before High Court Division,

2008

2009-10

Income fax retum was submitted to Deputy Commussioner of Taxes, Circle -Large Taxpayer Unit
(LTI, Zone-LTU Dhaka WS B2BB. As per demand notice USS 135 present tax demand is the 28 437/~
bt an application has been made by CICL U/E 173 for refund adjustment of th. 506.471/-

2009

2010-11

Income tax retum was submirted to Deputy Commussioner of Taxes, Circle -Large Taxpayer Unit
(LTLF), Zone-LTU Dhaka U/S 82BB. As per demand notice UYS 135 present tax demand is nil but an
application hag been made by CICL 1ES 173 fior sefund tie 1,722,097/~ ag DCT charged excess 1ax

2010

2011-12

The tax suthority assessed tax .9 866,812 with simple interest th. 1 488 007/-as per demand notice
U/S 135 but appeal hag been made againgt the learned CT (A) order to Tades Appellate Tribunal.
Status qus order has been given by the leamed Appellate Trilbunal Division

2011

2012-13

The tux authortty assessed tox 22,564,173 with simple interest th, 2,993 477/-08 per demand nolice
TS 135 dated 23.04.2013 and an appeal filed to the Taxes Appellate Division amd Tribunal hearing
has been complefed. Appeal pending to the Honourable High comrr.

2012

2013-14

The tax authority assessed tax th, 23,511,328 with simple mterest tk. 3,317.280/a5 per demand notice
/8 135 dated 15.03.2017 and an appeal filed to the Taxes Appellate Divigion and Tribunal hearing
has been completed. Appeal pending 1o the Honourable High court.

2013

2014-15

The tax authority assessed fax th 2,70.81.097 with simple interest th. 41,19.111/-as per demand notice
/S 135 dated 15.03.2017 and an eppeal filed to the Taxes Appellate Division and Tiibenal hearing
hag been completed, Appeal pending to the Hongurable High court.

2014

2015-1¢

Income tax refurn was submitted 0 Depoty commissioner of Taxes, Circle -Large Taxpayer Unit
(LT, Zone-LTU Dhaka U'S §2BB. The DCT Certify that ™ Assessment has been completed for the
assessment year 2005-2016"

2015

2016-17

The tax authority assessed tax th 47,862,942 with simple mterest the 6.134.490/-as per demand notice
/8 135 dated 27.06.2019. 15t Appeal pending to the learned CT (A).

2016

2017-18

IT Beturn has been gelecisd under audit. Assessment has been done w's B2BB/B2ER(3)/8312). Applied
for ceriified copy for filmg the 1st Appeal.

2017

2018-19

Income tax rvefurn was submitted to Deputy cameissioner of Taxes. Circle -Large Tawpayer Unit
[LTU). Zone-LTU Dhaka VS E2BR. The DOT Cestify that " Agsessment hag been completed for the
ussessment year 2018-2018"

2018

2019-20

Imcerme e refurn was submifted W Depoty commassioner of Taxes, Circle -Largs Taxpayer Unit
(LT, Zone-LTU Dhaka TS 32BB."

2019

2020-21

Income tax return was submitted to Deputy commissioner of Taxes. Circle -Large Taxpayer Unit
{LTU). Zane-L TU Dhaka U/S 828"

2020

2021-22

Income tax tetum was submmted to Deputy commissioner of Taxgs., Circle -Large Taxpayer Unit
(LT, Fone-LTU Dhaka 1178 82BB."

2021

2022-23

Income fax refurn was submitted (0 Deputy commissiones of Taxes, Circle -Large Taxpayes Unit
(LT, Zone-LTL Dhuka USS 82RB."

2022

2023-24

Income tax return was submitted fo Deputy commissioner of Taxes, Circle -Large Taxpayer Unit
(LT, Zone-LTU Dhaka 1/S 83587

2023

2024-25

The [ncoms Tax Returm wag submatled 1o Depuly commissionsr of Taxes, Circle -Lagge Taxpayer Unit
(LT, Zone-LTU Dhaka U/S 82RB."

2024

2025-26

The Ingome Tax Return wag submitted to Deputy comimissioner of Taxes, Circle -Lacge Tanpayer Lnit
(LT, Zone-L T Dhaka U5 82RB."
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Claim Management And Details
Of Outstanding Claims

When CIPLC gets an intimation of claim over phone or in writing, the company appoints a
Surveyor and also sends an Officer of Claim Department to conduct the survey of the affected
property, After the preliminary survey report, if the deemed loss is above TK 1.00 Million for
Marine & Others and TK 2.00 Million for Fire insurance another joint surveyor is appointed and
finally photographs and Video Clips of the incident is prepared for documentation. Depending on
the Survey Report and documentation, The CEO along with Consultant can instantly settle Claim
up to TK 0.30 million, the Claim Committee has been delegated to settle Claims above TK 0.30
million. The maximum time required to settle the Claims after the receipt of all necessary
documents is 90 days.

Fire insurance business 66,146,282 49,816,603
Marine cargo insurance business 62,521,795 62,035,335
Marine hull insurance business - 2,850,000
Motor insurance business 3,105,091 4,120,159
Miscellaneous insurance business 206,000 991,424
Closing Balance 131,979,168 119,813,521
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Accounting Ratios Pertaining

to Insurance Sector

Commission / Gross

Premium
Q.20%
I E.m
2024 2023

Cliam / Gross Premium

18.33%
I 17.20%
2024 2023
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Management Expense/
Gross Premium

36.36%

32.87%

2024 2023

Income Tax Expenses /
Gross Premium

5.06%

I ]

2024 2023
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Human Resource Accounting

Human Resource Accounting is the measurement of the cost and value of people to the organization. It
involves measuring costs incurred by the organizations to recruit, select, hire, train and develop
employees and judge their economic value to the organization.

In line with the investment perspective of HRA, CIPLC places a strong emphasis on HR training and
development programs. These initiatives are designed not only to enhance the skills and knowledge of
employees but also to improve productivity and overall organizational performance. By investing in the
development of its human resources, CIPLC aims to maximize their potential and drive long-term
success.

Waork Force Employees Field Force Employees
R, No. of % of Total Catezo Wo. of % of Total
ik Employees Employees Bory Employees Employees

Male 202 86.70% Male 71.43%
Female 31 13.30% Female 28.57%

233 100.00% Total 77 100.00%

Work Force Employees Field Force Employees

o Male B Female

Management Category ) _ Management Category

MNo. of % of Total ﬂ W

Employees Employees
B senior Management B Mid Management

Category

Total 310 100.00%

B Entry Level W Staff
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Human Resources Policy

At CIPLC, we recognize that our employees are the key to our success and nothing can be achieved without
their engagement. Our Human Resources Policy encompasses the guidelines which constitute a solid basis
for effective Human Resources Management throughout the organization. It explains to all CIPLC
employees the vision and mission of the Human Resources function and illustrates every aspect of our
employees’ lifecycle. The CIPLC Management inspire all the employees in their actions and in their
dealings with others.

CIPLC Human Resources Policy specifically aims to do the following:

#» We believe, keeping employees motivated and engaged is not only about remuneration and benefits,
it is also about the trust that our name brings to those who work in CIPLC; the relationships with our line
managers and fellow workers; recognition and experiences enjoyed; and possibilities to learn and grow.
These are as a whole, the Total Rewards our employees receive without any regard to age, sex, race,
political belief and religion. Reliance Insurance, therefore, focuses on fixed pay, variable pay, benefits,
personal growth and work life balance as the key elements that define Total Rewards.

» At Reliance we try to create a climate of trust, mutual respect and support within the company which
encourage the employees to work well together as a team and at the same time, to encourage them to be
innovative and creative in order to achieve company goals.

¥ To maintain a congenial working environment this allows employees to work with maximum
effectiveness and to ensure that safety rules and hygiene are strictly observed.

¥ Provide information to employees regularly about different aspects of the operation and its progress
which are relevant to them and involve them in matters which are of concern to their job and work
situation.

» To develop an effective internal communication and involvement mechanism which encourage
employees to identify themselves with the company and its activities.

¥ To adopt and institute a planned and systematic approach to anticipated changes and develop plans for
preparing employees for technological and environmental changes.

¥» To identify employees’' training and development needs and provide them with necessary
development opportunities for them to advance in their career.

» To ensure that employment opportunities conform to the established and acceptable practices of the
country.

¥ Toputin place succession plans for all senior management positions in the company.
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Report on Information Technology

Background

Since the very beginning of the Company till 2004, Crystal Insurance PLC had a computerized General
Ledger for Central Accounts Department only. But like most other insurance companies, its’ operation was
based on stand alone PC's and manual system. There was no IT enabled MIS system in place to help Crystal
Insurance Company Limited analyze the business figures and to track performance of products, customers,
branches, department and people. As a result Crystal Insurance Company Limited was severely
handicapped in the field of IT, resulting in inefficiency and improper management negatively impacting its
endeavor to maintain its’ position at the top of the Insurance fraternity.

Formation of IT Division

Against the backdrop of the above mentioned situation, Crystal Insurance PLC management decided in the
year 2000 to introduce a modern computer system to cater to future prospects of the Company. As part of
that vision, an Information Technology Division was established to make the dream come true.

The information technology's role in the business sector certainly can hardly be over emphasized. It is of
utmost importance, which enables businesses to effectively and successfully plan, manage, execute
strategies which lead to profit. Therefore the mission of this Division is to completely re-engineer and
automate Crystal Insurance PLC business processes to achieve higher productivity, lower cost, improved
quality, enhanced service and efficient management.

IT mainly deals with computer applications which are now completely automated. The technology has not
only made communication cheaper, but also much faster.

Information Technology Division has taken pragmatic approaches to bring the technological boon and
advancement into Crystal Insurance PLC business process to make it more competitive and adaptive for
the 21st century.

The software applications and the hardware devices are the main elements of use in information
technology. So a modern and dynamic IT Division was created with two departments like Hardware and
Software including a structured LAN for its smooth operation and getting the technical advantage.
Operating the IT system at CIPLC, there are six experienced and professional IT personnel.

Software development & implementation

Software Is an important integral part of information technology which relates to computer applications
that enable a company to generate, store, program, and retrieve data as and when needed. Like an ERP
Software, a Computer Integrated Insurance System (CIIS) was jointly developed with the co-operation of
IBCS PRIMAX (Bangladesh) Ltd. Under which all the business process and functionalities were included.
After 14 months of development by IBCS and Crystal Insurance PLC 10 programmers, it was completed and
on 1st of July 2004 it was implemented successfully at Crystal Insurance PLC, On the job training was also
provided to all end users.
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Website Information

The official website of Crystal Insurance PLC, accessible at www.ciplcbd.com serves as a hub for the latest
corporate updates and information. This platform is designed to keep stakeholders, shareholders,
investors and wvalued clients informed about the company’s activities. The website provides a
comprehensive overview of the company, including details on its Capital Structure, Assets, Investments,
Corporate Governance and Price Sensitive Information, ensuring transparency for all interested parties.
Additionally, the site features the profiles of the Board of Directors and the Management Team, offering
insight into the leadership behind Crystal Insurance PLC. Visitors can easily access information about the
locations and operations of the company’s branches. Financial information is also readily available,
including the latest financial statements, such as the Balance Sheet, Income Statement, Cash Flow
Statement and Shareholders' Equity changes. The site also hosts annual reports from various years for
those interested in the company’s financial history.

Moreover, Crystal Insurance PLC enhances customer experience by offering digital insurance services,
allowing clients to avail themselves of a modern, efficient way to manage their policies.
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Disclosure Checklist
Regarding SAFA Standard

Corporate Objectives, Values & Structure Clarity and presentation:

Vision and Mission 14
Overall strategic objectives 16
Core values and code of cenduct/ethical principles 15,17-18
Profile of the Company 19-20
Director’s profiles and their representation on Board of other companies & Organization 2835
Chart

Management Report/Commentary and analysis including Director's Reports/Chairman’s
Review/CEOQ's Review etc.

A general review of the performance of the company 58
Description of the performance of the various activities/products/segments of the
company and its group companies during the period under review. [(Weightage to be given B3-66

for pictorial/graphical/tabular presentations used for this purpose}
A brief summary of the Business and other Risks facing the organization and steps taken
to effectively manage such risks
& general review of the future prospects/outlook, 56
Information on how the company contributed to its responsibilities towards the staff
(including health & safety)
Information on company's contribution to the national exchequer & to the economy

Sustainability Reporting

140-142

Social Responsibility Initiatives (CSR) 156-157
Environment related Initiatives 155
Environmental & Social Obligations 158
Integrated Reporting 145-149

Appropriateness of Disclosure of Accounting policies and General Disclosure
Disclosure of adequate and properly worded accounting policies relevant to assets,

s | i i : : iz
Any Specific accounting policies 187-198

Impairment of Assets
Changes in accounting policies/Changes in accounting estimates

Accounting policy on subsidiaries (if there is no any subsidiary, full marks should be
granted) N/A

Segment Information

Comprehensive segment related information bifurcating Segment revenue, segment
results and segment capital employed

Avallability of information regarding different segments and units of the entity as well as
non-segmental entities/units

Segment analysis of

165-167

Segment Revenue
Segment Results
Turnover 175-186
Dperating profit

Carrying amount of Net Segment assets
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Financial Statements (Including Formats)

Disclosures of all contingencies and commitments 205
Comprehensive related party disclosures 206-207
Disclosures of Remuneration & Facilities provided to Directors & CEO 206-207
Statement of Financial Position / Balance Sheet and relevant schedules 175-176
Income Statement [ Profit and Loss Account and relevant schedules 177-178, 181-186
Statement of Changes in Equity / Reserves & Surplus Schedule 179
Disclosure of Types of Share Capital 147
Statement of Cash Flow 180
Consglidated Financial Statement (CF5S) N/A
Extent of compliance with the core |AS/IFRS or equivalent National Standards 188-189
Disclosures / Contents of Notes to Accounts 187-212
Information about Corporate Governance
Beard Of Directors, Chairman And CEO 29-35, 38-39
Audit Committee (Composition, rele, meetings, attendance, etc) Internal Control & Risk 88.01
Managament
Ethics And Compliance 130-133
Remuneration and other Committees of Board 207
Human Capital 134
Communication to Shareholders & Stakeholders 135
Information available on website and Other information
Management Review and Responsibility 138
Disclosure by Board of Directors or Audit Committee on evaluation of quarterly reports 136
Any other investor friendly information 136-137
Risk Management & Control Environment
Description of the Risk Management Framework
Risk Mitigation Methodology 139-142
Disclosure of Risk Reporting
Stakeholders Information
Distribution of shareholding (Mumber of shares as well as category wise, e.g Fromoter 69, 197
group, Flletc) =
Shares held by Directors/Executives and relatives of Directors /Executives B4, 197
Redressal of investors complaints 77
Graphical/ Pictorial Data:
Earnings per Share
Net Assets
Stock Performance 63-66
Shareholders' Funds
Return on Shareholders Fund
Horizontal /Vertical Analysis including following. Operating Performance (Income
Statement)
Total Revenue
Operating profit
Profit Before Tax 59-62
Profit After Tax
EPS
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Statement of Financial Position (Balance Sheet)

Shareholders Fund

Property Plant & Equipment

Met Current Assets

Long Term Liabilities/Current Liabilities

175-176

Profitability/Dividends/ Performance and Liquidity Ratios

Claim Ratio

Earning before Interest , Depreciation and Tax
Price earning ratio

Solvency Ratio

Return on Capital Employed

Debt Equity Ratio

67-65

Statement of Value Added and Its Distribution

Government as Taxes

Shareholders as dividend

Employees as bonus/remuneration

Retained by the entity

Market share information of the Company's product/services
Economic value added

4-76

Presentation of Financial Statements

Quality of the Report/ Layout of Contents Qualitative

Cover and printing including the theme on the cover page Qualitative

Appropriateness and effectiveness of photographs and their relevance Qualitative

Effectiveness of Charts and Graphs Qualitative

Clarity, simplicity and lucidity in presentation of Financial Statements Qualitative

Timeliness in issuing Financial Statements and holding AGMs 3 months time to produce the
Annual Report and hold AGM are considered reasonable for full marks Delay after the initial
period of 3 months - deduction of 2 marks is to be made for each manth If the period is over &
mornths - no marks shall be awarded

Clualitative

Additional Disclosures For Example

Human Resource Accounting
Any other good additional disclosures

220-223

Specific Areas for Insurance Sector

Claims management and details of outstanding claims (IBNR & IBNER) with ageing thereof 214

Disclosures pertaining to Solvency Margin 215-217

Certificate of Actuary giving details of the liabilities on account of live policies and

; N/A
estimates/assumptions made for the same /

Accounting ratios pertaining to insurance sector 218

Review of assets quality 219
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Our Branches

: i LE

Agrabad Corporate E:hanch Mr. Moh am_med Mohasin Mob: 01819-394799
01 Aktaruzzaman Center (9" floor), Siddiquee e s
21/22, Agrabad C/A, Chattogram. Sr. Addl, MD & In-Charge e
Agrabad Branch
02 Makka Modina Trade Center =
(10" Floor), 78, Agrabad, Chattogram.
Mrs. Saila Ahmed Shilpi
03 Arambagh Branch Executive Vice President Mob. 01818114107
& In-Charge
B.B. Avenue Branch Mob, 01716412320,
04 21, B.B, Avenue (6" floor), Dhaka- AL R AP Hlassen Tel. 223351725
, B.B. Avenue oor]}, Dhaka DMD & In-Charge al. =
1000. 223390692
s | Bf'b"';j i:“"“hc ; Mr. Md. Showkat Ali Mob. 01711-321638,
. Armenian Street, Mona Complex, DMD. & In-charge ¥
Babu Bazar, Dhaka. \ Vel $7392036-8
B A::"f;;' B':nﬂ_' S Mr. Shah Alam Sheikh
06 abah Alter Uddin Mansion, 25/, | o\ ey mive Viee Prasiden
Zindabazar 1 Lane, Nayabazar, g Mob. 01720-064029,
Dhaka-1100. Gt
‘Barishal Branch Mr. Shafiqul Islam e
07 Shopnonir House-6/ ?' RDE{? Noy;-65; Sr. Executive Vice President o ’
Block No.-A, Rupatoli Housing State & In-Ch Tel.02-478830727
Rupatoli, Barishal. i{harge
08 Bitu T Bnﬂ;;ﬁﬂﬂrancha r e . Shalidul Alam Mob. 01764573916
itu Tower ( oor), Borogola, Addl. MD & In-Charge :
Bogura.
Chandpur Branch
i Holding No. 685, Fazlu Mansion Mr. Md. Shafiuddin Ahmed Moh. 01886473900,
{1st Floor), Chandpur Sadar, Asst, M.D. & In-Charge 01711473900
Chandpur-3600.
Corporate Branch
16 DR Tower |( 14t Floor), 65/2/2, Purana Mr. S.A.M. Shafiqul Hasan Mob. 01715749327,
Paltan, Box Culvert Road, Dhaka- Sr. Addl. MD & In-Charge Tel. 551127534
1000.
Cumilla Branch ME: MEs OmarFavok
i i L Mob. 01682-961262,
11 Khan Mansion (Purana Cinema Hall Vice President & in-Charge

Market), Chattipatti, Rajganj, Cumilla,
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Dewanhat Branch Md'ch:;z;" :P:th'lr:que
12 DR Plaza (2™ Floor), Doniwalapar, St Bt i Pras bt Mob. 01757-097283
Road #1559, D.T Road Chattogram :
& In-Charge
i Mab. 017123-044147
13 | Fazl RD:RUSh: Bian:t 7), 72 g A Tol. 9514208,
arlur Rahman Center (Lv-7), 72, : ‘
Dilkusha C/A, Dhaka-1000. el MD & ln-Chiarge 57165738,
Dinajpur Branch Mr. Md. Nur Islam
; ; ; Mob. 01724-393382
14 Hasna Plaza (3" floor), Lilir More, Executive Vice President = '
Munshipara, Sadar, Dinajpur. & In-Charge gL 02 3pede il
Elephant Road Branch ; : Mob. 01745-806953,
- Ms. Nargis Parvin
15 Khan Plaza (6" Floor), BMD & In-Charee Tel. 58610787,
32/1, Mirpur Road, Dhaka. % 223369293
Shahazadi Habeba Sultana
16 Hatkhola Branch e " Mob. 01717937189
DMD & In-Charge
Imamganj Branch
17 Joynal Tower {S“" floor]), 31-33, Mr. Md. Mizanur Rahman Mob. 01707-245904,
Roy Issher Chandra Shil Bahadur Addl. MD & In-Charge Tel. 57319397.
Street, Imamganj, Dhaka-1211.
18 | Shafig M J:malﬂl: Bm; EIIJI Road e Mob. 01918-893669
afiq Mia Bazar (New College Road), DMD & In-Charge : :
Jamalpur.
" J Jf':h""" ;’Z“:lh ] Mr. Bipul Ananda Halder Mob. 01716-257045
ess Tower (3rd Floor : .
39, M.K. Road, Jashore. 5r. Vice President & In-Charge Tel. 02477766428,
Jubilee Road Branch Mob. 01819-643586,
& Mr. Md. Kamrul Alam
20 Kamal Chamber (5™ Floor), B Tel. 02-333350827-8
61, Jubilee Road, Chottagram. ’ B 5
Mob. 01711-762450,
Khatungon] B: srei Mr. Syed Nurul Bashar
21 SW. Tower [2" Floor), DMD & In-Chares Tel. 02-333353418,
304, Khatungonj, Chittagong. & 02- 333355907,
Khulna Branch Mr. Md. Haider Ali
22 11 Lower Jassore Road, Executve Vice President Mob, 01711-449879.
Khulna. & In-Charge
Kishoreganj Branch
i Mr. Saiful Islam Chowdh
23 Ishaki‘ua Road, I:Il:ﬂdrng Ntfmher—dz ury Mob. 01711-389773.
{1" Floor), KishareganjSadar, DMD & In-Charge
Kishoreganj.
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o S ““5::'“ Br:":h’ L Mr. Faruk Hossain Mob. 01712-984537,
ach Raster Moor, Kaderia Super
' In- Tel. 02-47 f
Market, Kushtia., Manager & In-Charge el, 02-478853405
Local Office _— .
% Shamsur Rahman Bhaban > “;:::ma: Anear Mob. 01713-032889,
(10th Floor), 18, Rajulk Avenue, Addl. MD & In-Charge Tel. 41053371-2
Dhaka-1000.
Malibagh Branch
96 Al-haz Samsuddin Mansion (6" Mrs. Nazma Akhter Mob. 01787658832,
Floor), 17 New Eskaton, Moghbazar, Addl. M.D. & In-Charge Tel, 222229844,
Dhaka.
Mirpur Branch
Mr. Mohammad Wahidul
54 Mirpur Tower (10" Floor, 11-B) S Mob. 01766-336677,
th .
4™ South Bishil, Darus Salam Road, Asst. MD & In-Charge Tel. 48032976.
Mirpur-1, Dhaka-1216.
Moulvi Bazar Branch Mr. Pranesh Chandra Bardan | njob. 01712-536736,
28 Court Road, Chowmuhani, Executive Vice President 01402-471322
Moulvibazar. & In-Charge {Office)
Mymensingh Branch Mr. Sharif Uddin
29 36, Borobazar Sikder Bari Executive Vice President Mosr el e,
! . ! Tel. 02996663058
Mymensingh. & In-Charge
Narsingdi Branch
20 Holding No. 206/1, Shaheprothab, Mrs. Farhana Rahman
Near of Narsingdi PBI office, DMD & In-Charge Mob: 01773-717408
Marsingdi Sadar, Narsingdi
Nayabazar Branch Mr. Md. Ashraful Alam
, : Mob: 01715-067312
31 Mustakim Mansion, 77/3, Chowdhury
j Tel: 02-57316759
Moulvi Bazar, Dhaka-1000. Addl. MD & In-Charge
Lal Dighi Branch
n En
. Orion Tower (4™ floor) Mr. Abdul Malek Begh L.
1 No. KB Ameen Road DMD & In-Charae ob: -
Laldighi Uttar Par, Kawtowali,
Chattogram
Paltan Branch Mr. Md. Zoaherul Islam
Mob. 01613-370167
33 Sky view Henolax Center (67 Floar), Talukder <ol oRbaras
3/1, Purana Paltan, Dhaka-1000. Addl. MD & In-Charge '
Pragati Sharani Branch
& : Mr. Md. Joaher Ali Mob. 01819-489034
34 Holding No. LA-58/1, Progoti Sarani, Sr. Vice Prasident & In-Charge
Middle Badda, Dhaka-1212. ' Tel. 226600469
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Principal Branch RIS, at
- Shamsur Rahman Bhaban r. Mid. Ziaur Rahman (Miron) | . 51019 e4167
(10™ Floor), 18, Rajuk Avenue, Addl. MD & In-Charge Tel: 02-41053705
Dhaka-1000.
Rajshahi Branch Mr. Md. Ziaul Islam
36 3 o A Mob: 01727-226728
595, Shiroil, Boalia, Rajshahi. VP & In-Charge
37 | g “:f ':1" "“*;:Ebﬂ"“‘[";}h oo, | Mr-Sved Moshfiqur Rahman | Mob: 01711-570850
amsur Rahman Bhaban oor), } i
18, Rajuk Avenue, Dhaka-1000. DMD & In-Charge Tel: 02-47121235-6
; Rahgpur Brand) - Mr. Md. Abdus Sobur
33 5hE';'E'ha”' Super Market (3™ Floor] Sr. Executive Vice President Mob. 01761-565652,
Station Road (Mear of Salek Pump), & h
Rangpur. In-Charge
29 Sadarghat Branch Mr. Md. Jahid Hossain Khan Mob. 01912-073647
45, lohnson Road, Dhaka. Vice President & In-Charge Tel, 58951105
Sylhet Branch Mr. Mohammad Fazlur
40 Room No-446/447, 3" floor, Manru Rahman Mob: 01715-262060
Shopping City, Chowhatta, Sylhet EVP & In-Charge
Uttara Branch
41 AH, Tower (14" Floor) Mr. Khandaker Shaheen Mob. 01712-070444,
Plot No.56, Road No # 02, Vice President & In-Charge Tel. 58951105.
Sector # 03, Uttara, Dhaka.
VIP Road Branch
49 Crystal Insurance PLC Mr. Md. Shahadat Hossain Mob: 01711-639141
36, Rokeya Mansion (4" floor), Addl. M.D & In-Charge Tel: 02-226665120
Purana Paltan, Dhaka
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%I fr_qsta.l' Insurance PLC
2 o e [ [

Ltle i Gl peice CaPiaezieat
Registered Difice & Corporate Office:
DR Tower (14th floor), 85/2/2. Box Culvert Road, Purana Paltan, Dhaka-1000
Tel: +8802-55112733-38, Fax: 55112742, E-mail: info@ciplcbd.com, v ciplebd.com

PROXY FORM

O D DU i
P
a member of Crystal Insurance PLC do hereby appoint MriWIS. ..o iveies ihininiins innsvainsensnsins basskanras vibansvs

L |
................................................................................................................... as my proxy to vote for me and on my behalf

at the 25th Annual General Meeting of the Gompany to be held on 23rd March, 2025 at 11:20 am and at any adjournment
thereof or at any ballot to be taken in consequence thereof.
B B IS e e st e b e o e v a Ve RS T N e o e o e e R 2025,

SIGNAMUFE OF PIOXY .. vexrrvioncns e ensees s sescesemsres s cesscns s sn s ensenee

Rayenua Signature of Shareholder
Stamp FOUO/BO MO ND. ...ceeeeeeeee e me e e e e e
1L No. of Shares....... iR iR wiRnar e

N.B. : IMPORTANT

1) This form of Proxy, duly completed, must be deposited at least 72 hours before the meeting at the Company’s
Registered Office. Proxy is invalid of not signed and stamped as explained above.

2)  Signature of the Shareholder should agree with the specimen signature registered with the Cornpany.

fry!tal Insurance PLC
farBteT Z3easT fHaqafor
Lilzice Geale gudce cubiinesct

Begistered Office & Corporate Office:
DR Tower (14th floor), 65722, Box Culvert Road, Purana Paitan, Dhaka-1300

Tel: +8802-55112733-38, Fax: 55112742, E-mail: info@ciplcbd.com, wan.ciplcbd.com
ATTENDANGE SLIP

| hereby record my attendance at the 25th Annual General Meeting of the Company bieng held on
Sunday the 23rd March, 2025 at 11:30 AM through hybrid system.

Namme of SharenoldEr PrOMY. . ..o reicsurmsssnssissnssns sesssssmsnerensisssssassseass sassnessas

Signature of Sharsholdar
Mol ShEres s e s

M.B. Shareholder attending Meeting in person or by Proxy are requested to complete the attendance slip and
hand over it to the Share Department of the Company.
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frystal Insurance PLC

Registered Office & Corporate Office:
DR Tower (14th floor)

65/2/2, Box Culvert Road, Purana Paltan, Dhaka-1000

Tel: +8802-55112733-38, Fax: 55112742, E-mail: info@ciplchd.com
www.ciplchd.com



